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HSBC USA Inc.

PART 1

Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)

Interest income:

Loans............... $ 464 $ 464
Securities 207 228
TTAQING ASSELS ....veeuteetieteeiieteeiteee et e et et e st et e e st et e e s eeteesee bt eate st ensesseenseeseenseeneenseeneensesnsenseensanseensanseans 48 24
Short-term investments 16 14
OBRCT .ttt b bbbt b et b bttt et h bbbt bt sb e b b e 10 10
TOtAL INLEFEST IMCOME ................c..ceeeeeeeee ettt ettt at bt ebe ettt be bt nen 745 740
Interest expense:
DIEPOSIES ..ttt ettt ettt et ettt a et h et e h e bt ea ekt ea b et e ea et ehe et e ea e e bt ene e bt ent e bt entenbeententeens 35 43
ShOTt-term DOTTOWINES ...c..eoviriiriiiirtirientetet ettt ettt sttt et ettt ettt eb e b sae st nne e 9 9
o) Y 153 0 6 <1 o TP UTRSRRU 170 167
OBRCT ettt b bbbt b e b bbbttt a e h bt et eb e bt he bbbt 12 16
Total interest expense 226 235
INEE INEETESE TICOIMIC ...ttt ettt et et e e s a et s et e et e st e sbeesse s bt em s e sbeen b e sbeeneeebeenaeenee 519 505
Provision fOr CTEdIt LOSSES ... ..couieiiriieiietiee ettt ettt ettt et et e e e et et esbeestesbeemnesbeeneenneens 16 21
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 503 484
Other revenues:
CrEdit CATd FEES. ...cveeueriiitiiteitert ettt ettt ettt et b bbbt eb e ebe s bbb be e 14 13
Other fees and COMIMISSIONS........eiuertiieieieieiiei ettt ettt ettt e ettt e s e st et ebeebesbesbesbesbeseens 173 170
TTUSE TICOMMIC ...ttt ettt b e bt e b et e st e bt e st e ebe et e she e besbt e besmtenbeesbenbeennenbens 31 32
TTAQING TEVEIUE. ..ottt ettt ettt et ettt te e st e bt es et e emeeeteeneeeseeneeeaeeseemeebeemeenbeemeenseeneenseans 133 164
Net other-than-temporary impairment 10SSES™ ..............cooivivevieieeeeeeeee e 2) —
Other SCCUTTHES ZAINS, TICL ....eeuvitieieeiieieeiesteeterteete e eetesteestesteessesseessesseessesseensesseessesnsessesssessennsensenns 22 131
Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates ...........cccovirieriecienieieceeieceeeceee e 47 54
Residential mortgage DanKing FEVEIUE ..........ccvervirieriieieitieiesieeteee et eeeeteseeessesreessesssesseessesseessesseens 48 46
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives ...........ccoceveveenenienneee 28 27)
Other income...................... 6 9
Total other revenues 500 592
Operating expenses:
Salaries and eMPloYee DENETIS .......ceevviiieiiieieiiciecee ettt sttt beeaeenneens 215 252
Support services from HSBC affiliates 354 324
OCCUPANCY EXPEIISE, TET ..eeuvieiiiieuieiieniesttetestteteetteste et tenbeette bt estesteeseesbeentesaeensesseebesstenbesstenbeennenseans 57 59
OHET EXPEIISES ...euveteentieiietietieete e e et et stte bt eueete e s tebeesee bt esee st enteeseameeeseenseeseenseemeebeemeenbeemeebeennensens 124 133
TOtal OPEFALING EXPENSES..............c..oeeveeeeeeeiiecieeecreeeiee et eeteeeteesaeeteestbe e bt estaeebeessseesbeesssassseessseanseenseeas 750 768
Income before INCOME LAX EXPEIISE ...euverviererrrerierierteeiesteeresteestesseesesseesesseassesseessesssessesssessesssessesssessenns 253 308
INCOME TAX EXPEIISEC ..cuvrevvenrieeeiriieteeteeteeeeetesstesesseesesssesseesseseesseseessenseessesssessesssessesssessesssessesssessenssensenns 149 125
INEEIHCOME..............ceoeeeeeeete ettt ettt a e e a et e st e sttt b e st s e st s e st e s entesensesensesensesensenn 3 104 $ 183

" During the three months ended March 31, 2014, other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI") losses on securities held-to-maturity totaling $2 million was

recognized in other revenues. There were no losses in the non-credit component of such impaired securities reflected in accumulated other comprehensive
income ("AOCI"), net of tax. During the three months ended March 31, 2013, there were no OTTI losses on securities recognized in other revenues and no
OTTI loss on securities were recognized in the non-credit component in AOCI, net of tax.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended March 31,

INELEHICOME...............c.oeieee ettt ettt ettt b bt b e bt bbbt st et e ae e neen
Net change in unrealized gains (losses), net of tax:
Securities available-for-Sale..........ccccueoiiiiiiiiiiiiieccc s
Other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities held-to-maturity..........ccceceveeeeneereneenereeeneee
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges ..........ccecvriririninininiiciccece e
Total other comprehensive iICOME (I0SS) ...............c..ccueeveeceiiieeeieeieeeee et et e e eraeeae s
COMPIENENSIVE INCOME ..................ccoecueeeeeiieiieiieiieiiese et esaeeeessestesse st e seesbesbeessesseessesseessesssensesseensennes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2014 2013

(in millions)

104 $ 183

130 (150)
1 —

(20) 23

111 (127)

215§ 56
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions, except share data)

Assets™”
Cash and dUE fTOIM DAIIKS ......coviiiiiiiciie ettt ettt e et e et e e eaae e st e e eraeesnteeeteesenseesnneesneeeennes $ 1,155 § 961
Interest bearing deposits With DANKS .........ccceeiiieiiieieieiescse ettt s s essessesresseesnns 23,466 19,614
Securities purchased under agreements t0 TESE1L........cucivcieriiriereriereceeeeeeee ettt sresreeenns 1,352 2,119
TTAING ASSCES...veuveuvitietietietiettetetest et e e stestesteeseeseestessessessessesseesessassaessessessessensesenseaseaseassassensensansansensansassensanns 27,336 28,894
Securities aVaIlable-TOI-SAlE ............ccviiiiiiceie ettt e ettt e s rae e ereeeaaeeeneeas 53,588 54,906
Securities held-to-maturity (fair value of $1.4 billion and $1.5 billion at March 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013, TESPECHIVELY) -ttt et b e s bt bt sttt et ettt st e b b enean 1,285 1,358
LLOAMS ...ttt ettt ettt e et te et e e he e bt e be e be e beeabeeabeetbeeabeeateeat e bt e beebeenbeenbeenseenbeeaseereans 68,897 67,695
Less — allowance fOr CTEAIt LOSSES ......uerueriiriririieieiieieieieste sttt ettt ettt st st ettt ettt et e e st ebesbesbesbessesnens 574 606
LOANS, ML ...coiiiiiiiieiiiecteeee ettt ettt e et e ettt e eabeeentae e tbeeeabeeenseeesbeeesbeeenteeetbeeenbeeensaeesbeeenbaeenraeenne 68,323 67,089
Loans held for sale (includes $753 million and $58 million designated under fair value option at March
31,2014 and December 31, 2013, reSPECIVELY) ...eveueeuirieiiriiieiirieieie ettt ettt 969 230
Properties and €qUIPIMENE, NMET.........ccueruiririrtietietieiieitet ettt sttt ettt e et et e sbesbe s bt ebeeseesb e tententesbesbeeseeneas 259 269
INtANGIDIE ASSELS, TICT ....evietieiieiieitetee ettt b et eb ettt et et et et e st e e bt e bt e bt e st en e e st enbenbebenbesbenbesenane 262 295
Goodwill......... . 1,612 1,612
Other assets 7,567 8,140
TOUAL ASSELS..................ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt et et et e et e e te e ae e eteeeae e e e et e eaaeenteeaeeerteeaseeteenseenssenseenns $ 187,174 §$ 185,487
Liabilities™”
Debt:
Deposits in domestic offices:
INONINEETESE DEATINEZ .....eveevienieieiesie sttt ettt ettt ettt e it et e st et et e tesbesbeebeeseeneeneensensensasessessessesseans $ 28,243 § 29,707
Interest bearing (includes $7.6 billion and $7.7 billion designated under fair value option at March
31,2014 and December 31, 2013, 1€SPECHIVELY) ....uvuverrrerceereee et 62,437 62,903
Deposits in foreign offices:
INONINEETESE DEATINE ...eveeeieeiiieiieieet ettt ettt ettt s bbbt b et st et e st b e s es e b et eb e e eseebeneeeenee 1,331 1,364
Interest bearing . 13,520 18,634
TOLAL AEPOSIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt a et s bt s et e s e e bt s e st b e st e st b e st b et e st be st et n e b eneeeenes 105,531 112,608
SROTT-EETIN DOITOWIINZS ...c.ceevereeiietenieteetet ettt ettt ettt s et e et e e bt ben et et ese s b e e et e seseeteneeseaeeneeseeeneanan 28,767 19,135
Long-term debt (includes $7.7 billion and $7.6 billion designated under fair value option at March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, 1eSPECIVELY).c..eruieuieieieiiniiriietieitetieieitet ettt sttt sbe e eneas 22,953 22,847
TOtAL OBttt ettt ettt et te et e et e e b e e b e e b e aaeeabeeae e eae e te e beebeenbeebeenbeenbeeaneereans 157,251 154,590
TTAdING HADIIILIES ....euvivieeieiieiieiteiete ettt ettt ettt et et et e e tesbesbeebeese e st eneensensensansesbessessesseans 9,349 10,875
Interest, taxes and Other LADIIITIES. .........coviiiviiiirie ettt ettt et e et e e eereeeeteeeeareeeneeereeeenns 3,907 3,558
Total liabilities 170,507 169,023
Shareholders' equity
PIEferT@d STOCK ...uviiiiiieiiceii ettt ettt ettt ete et e be et e et e eabeesbeeaseesseenseaseeessesseesbeenseenseenreennas 1,565 1,565
Common shareholder’s equity:
Common stock ($5 par; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 713 shares issued and outstanding at
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013) ...ooiuieiierieeieeieeieeie ettt eenaesnaens — —
Additional paid-in capital... . 14,112 14,106
RELAINEA CAITUIES ....veueetieeiieieieiiete ettt ettt et b et s et et b e b e st e b et e s e b e s e e b e s es e et enees e s eseebeneeeenee 1,038 952
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME (10S8).....cuveuerieiriiiriirieisieeierte et (48) (159)
Total common Shareholder’s EQUILY .......couerriirieirieieterte ettt ettt se e eee s 15,102 14,899
Total ShareROlAers’ @qQUILY.......................ccoouevuecueiuieeieeieieieeiesteee et ettt e s e et e s sesteeaeeseeseessessessessassesseeseess 16,667 16,464
Total liabilities and ShareRolders’ eqUity........................ccoceeeeieieeeieieieiesiese et ssesse s e sbesaeeaeees $ 187,174 $ 185,487

M The following table summarizes assets and liabilities related to our consolidated variable interest entities ("VIEs") as of March 31, 2014 and December 31,

2013 which are consolidated on our balance sheet. Assets and liabilities exclude intercompany balances that eliminate in consolidation. See Note 16, "Variable
Interest Entities," for additional information.
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March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Assets
Interest bearing deposits with banks 3 8 5
Securities held-t0-MAtUITY..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii e 180 200
ORET @SSEES .ttt ettt ettt et ettt ettt et s et h et et se ettt e st ea e s b e s e st eb e b e s entes et ene e st ssen e es et e s eneen e et et eneebenneneenen 479 502
TOTAL ASSELS.....cuveveuiiieiiaieteteeet ettt ettt ettt et et be et b et e et et b et e b et e bbbt s b sttt nenne $ 662 $ 707
Liabilities
LONG-EIM AEDL.......oiiiiii e 92 92
Interest, taxes and Other HADIIITIES ...........ccveieiriiieicieiee ettt sttt ese b sseseebesneseenas 80 93
TOLAL THADILILIES ..ttt ettt b bbbt e s et s bt st et eb e bt et es et et eseebenaeneens $ 172§ 185

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Preferred stock
Balance at beginning and end Of PETIOd ........coueruiriiriiiiiieieeee ettt $ 1,565 § 1,565
Common stock
Balance at beginning and end Of PEriOd ........ccveviiviiriiirieieieieeeseee ettt ere e — —
Additional paid-in capital
Balance at beginning 0f PErioq........c.couiiiuiiiiiriiee ettt ettt bbbt se b 14,106 14,123
ORET ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et et e st s et et e s eae e A et oAt e A en e ek et e a e ek en e ek et en e b ent e s e b eneebenteneebeneenannas 6 (36)
Balance at nd Of PETIOQ .......ovieuiriieiieiieet ettt ettt ettt ettt b e bbb et et e bente e 14,112 14,087
Retained earnings
Balance at be@inning 0f PEIIOQ........coecveieiieiierierierieseeeeeee ettt e et et et e s e sesbesbesseeseeseessessensensesensanes 952 1,363
INEE ITICOIMIC. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt st st e et et e st et et e bt e e em ek et e st eeemeeb e e es et e s e e b et eneebeneene s eneanennas 104 183
Cash dividends declared on preferred StOCK ..........oiiiiireiiiieeee et (18) (18)
Balance at end Of PETIOA .......oouiiuietieiieiiee ettt ettt ettt bbbttt et et et et et e 1,038 1,528
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance at be@inning 0f PEIIOQ. ......coecviieieiieriereriereeeeee ettt ettt et et e e testesbesbeeseese e st eneensensensansessenee (159) 785
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax ... 111 (127)
Balance at eNd Of PETIOA .......cveieiiieieieciceeeetetet ettt ettt et e st e te st e s teeseese e st essesbesbessesseeseeseessessessassensans (48) 658
Total common Shareholder's eqUILY .......................ccoooeeceeiieeceeeieeieeeesee sttt ste e aesae e ssaesseesseesseenseeseenes $ 15,102 § 16,273
Total SRAreholders’ EQUILY .....................ccueeueeeeeiiieeieeeie et eee et e te et s e te e be e te e b e e beeaseesaessaesseessaesseesseeseeseenseanes S 16,667 $ 17,838

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended March 31,

2014

2013

Cash flows from operating activities
INEE ITICOIMIC ..ttt ettt ettt b etk ekt skt s bkt sa b st esa ket s e b st s saebemenseaeseaesaebeneaenen
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amMOTTIZALION ..........evuerereruteieietetere ettt ettt et et testesbe s bt s bt e bt e st e st et essebensesbesbesaesbeeneeneensensens
Provision fOr CTEAIL IOSSES......c.couiieuiriiiiriiieiiriciet ettt ettt b ettt b ettt et
Realized gains on securities available-for-sale...........ceiierierireierieieieeeeeec ettt
Realized (gains) losses on securities held-t0-MAtUIILY .......cccevveriererieieieieieseseete ettt ee et e e seesee e sreeseeseensensens
Net change in other assets and HabIlItIes ..........cooeiiirieirieeeeee ettt
Net change in loans held for sale:
OTIZINALIONS OF LOAIS ....veuvitiiiitieiieitetete ettt ettt ettt ea e et et e b et e te st e s bt e bt e st e st e st et e besbesbeebeebeeneensensenes

Sales and collection of 10ans held fOr SALE............coouiiiiiiiiiiieeeeceee e er e et

Net change in trading assets and Habilities.........ccccceeereririeiierienieneseseeeeee

Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments on loans held for Sale .........cccoievieciecieiierienenesececeeeeeeens

Loss (gain) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives ..........c.coceeereenenneneinieeee e
Net cash provided by (used in) OPErating ACIVILICS .......eoueueruertertietieiieiieietete ettt sttt ettt ete et et sbesbesbeeaeeseenseneenes
Cash flows from investing activities
Net change in interest bearing deposits With DANKS ..........ccecueeieieieieieieieiee ettt nee
Net change in securities purchased under agreements t0 reSCll........c.evveierierieririiieieieee e
Securities available-for-sale:

Purchases of securities available-for-Sale ...........coiriiiiiiiiii e

Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-8ale...........oociviriiiiiiiriiiiee e

Proceeds from maturities of securities available-for-sale............ccoeoireriiniiniiincccce e
Securities held-to-maturity:

Proceeds from sales of securities held-t0-MatUITtY........c.ccererierieririeieieieese ettt e sre e seeeseeseensensens

Proceeds from maturities of securities held-to-Maturity..........ccceoereriiinieineieee e
Change in loans:

Originations, NEt OF COLIECLIONS ........eeutiuieiiiiiieteeteet ettt e bt ettt e b et e st e s aesbesbeeseeneeneens

Loans S01d t0 third PATTIES. ......c.coueiriirieuirieietitecec ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt sttt ne
Net cash used for acquisitions of properties and equipment
(11 1= W 1 1= SRR
Net cash provided by (used in) INVESHNG ACIVILIES ....c.eeveeeuirieiitiietieie ettt

Cash flows from financing activities
INEt ChANZE 11 AEPOSILS ...veuvititieiieiieieiee ettt ettt b e bbbt e st et et e aesbesbe st e e bt ebeestenten b et ebe b e ebeeneeneentensensenee
Debt:

Net change in ShOTt-termM DOITOWINES .......cveveieieierierieriesiesteeteeteeetetestestestesseeseeseeseessessessessessessessesseeseessessensensen

ISSUANCE OF LONG-LEITN AEDL......ccuiieieiieiieieieieeeteete ettt ettt ettt e b e b e b e ebeeseeseessessessessessessessesseeseensensans

Repayment of 10ng-term deDE .........oorieiiiiieieee ettt
Other increases (decreases) in Capital SUTPIUS. ......couiiiriiitiririreeetet ettt
DIVIAENAS PAIA ..ottt et ettt st b e bt e st e s e st e e b e b e e bt eh e eh e e bt es b e st e st et e nbeebeebe bt ebe e st entententan
Net cash provided by (used in) fINANCING ACTIVITIES ....c..eveuirieiriiieiirieinteteertet ettt enes
Net change in cash and dUe from DANKS............ccveiiiiiierieieecceee ettt e b e eae e sa s nsenes
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period

Cash and due from banks at end of PEriod .........................ccooeveiiiieieieieiesieseeeee ettt sse e sre e eseesaessessessens

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(in millions)

104 $ 183
32 83
16 21
(22) (123)
2 ®)
743 365
(376) (650)
385 804
32 1,005
1 3
(28) 27
889 1,710
(3,852) (3,780)
767 (3.212)
(5,783) (6,357)
6,855 12,378
701 1,909
— 79
75 116
(2,014) 222
11 475
®) (6)
— (15)
(3,245) 1,809
(7,147) (716)
9,632 (3,131)
767 1,203
(690) (942)
6 (36)
(18) (18)
2,550 (3,640)
194 (121)
961 1,359
1,155 § 1,238
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1. Organization and Presentation

HSBC USA Inc. ("HSBC USA"), incorporated under the laws of Maryland, is a New York State based bank holding company and
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC North America Holdings Inc. ("HSBC North America"), which is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc ("HSBC" and, together with its subsidiaries, "HSBC Group"). The accompanying
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of HSBC USA and its subsidiaries (collectively "HUSI") have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X, as well as in accordance with predominant
practices within the banking industry. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally
accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring
adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim
periods have been made. HUSI may also be referred to in these notes to the consolidated financial statements as "we", "us" or
"our". These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31,2013 (the "2013 Form 10-K"). Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts
to conform to the current period presentation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Interim results should not be considered
indicative of results in future periods.

On January 1, 2014, we adopted new accounting guidance on the presentation of Low Income Housing Tax Credit ("LIHTC")
investments and related tax benefits. See Note 20, "New Accounting Pronouncements," for further details and related impacts.
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2. Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities consisted of the following.

March 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Trading assets:

LS. TIOASULY ...ttt ettt et et e st e s bt eea e e b e e eae et e eae et e eaeeneennesaeennes
U.S. Government agency issued Or UATANTEEd .........c.ecveeieriieieriieiierieieseeie e eteseeee e essesseeseeeeenns

)

U.S. Government SpONSOTEd ENLETPIISES ....eecueerrierieerieerieesieesreesteeeseesseesseesseessseesseessseessassssasssesans
Obligations of U.S. states and political SUDAIVISIONS.......c.ccceriririririninenineeenceeeeeeceeeeee e
ASSEE DACKEA SECUITLIES .....euetitiiiititeitet ettt st ettt ettt be bbb b
Corporate and fOreign DONAS .........co.iiiiriiiiiie ettt
(0313 T 1 L (TSP URRSRP
PrECIOUS METALS ....eouiiiieiieiieiiicei ettt st b bbbttt es et ese b ebeebesaea
DIEIIVALIVES ..ttt ettt ettt et sttt s h et s b e bt b e bt e b et ea e et e e st e et e emeeebeem et sbee et sbeenbesbeenbeenaens

Trading liabilities:

Securities s0ld, N0t Yet PUIChASEA .......c..coouiiiiiiiiiieiie e
Payables for precious MEalS.........ooiioiieieriiiee ettt et sttt
DETIVALIVES ....viveiietenietiietine ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt ea sttt b e a e eb et a bt a st n st neseenenes

(in millions)

2,140 § 1344
17 19
64 159
25 25
484 481

10,265 9,099
21 25

10,332 11,751

3,988 5,991

27,336 $§ 28,894
434 $ 308

3,926 3,826

4,989 6,741

9349 § 10,875

M Includes mortgage backed securities of $38 million and $133 million issued or guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA") and
$26 million and $26 million issued or guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC") at March 31,2014 and December 31,2013,

respectively.

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the fair value of derivatives included in trading assets has been reduced by $3,247
million and $3,870 million, respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the obligation to return cash collateral received under

master netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the fair value of derivatives included in trading liabilities has been reduced by $1,945
million and $2,116 million, respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral paid under master

netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

See Note 9, "Derivative Financial Instruments," for further information on our trading derivatives and related collateral.
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3. Securities

Our securities available-for-sale and securities held-to-maturity portfolios consisted of the following.

Non-Credit
Loss
Component of
Amortized OTTI Unrealized Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2014 Cost Securities Gains Losses Value
(in millions)
Securities available-for-sale:
ULS. TIEASULY wvvevieirereeeiiieieteeeteeete ettt ssebesesesesesesessenes $ 27,599 $ — 388 $ (73) $ 27,914
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:""
Mortgage-backed SECUTItIES .......ceeerueruirireriinienierieeine 164 — — 3) 156
Collateralized mortgage obligations ........c..cccceceverenuennenee 40 — — 1 39
Direct agency obligations. .........cccueererirerenenenenenieiene 4,107 — 247 (12) 4,342
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUTItIES .......cceeereruirireriinieniereiene 10,280 — 36 (239) 10,077
Collateralized mortgage obligations ........c..cccceceverenuennenee 5,210 — 14 (121) 5,103
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions............. 741 — 13 17 737
Asset backed securities collateralized by:
Residential mortgages .........ccoeeeeeeerenininieniseneseeseene 1 — — — 1
Commercial MOTrtgages .........cccoecvvveevrireeineieceeeeeeene 95 — 1 — 926
HOME EQUILY ...vevieeieieeeieeee e 253 — — 33) 220
(13115 SRR 103 — — ) 94
Foreign debt Securities™ ............ocoovevevreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 4,649 — 9 12) 4,646
EqUity SECUITHIES.....eiuieiieeieiieiieie et 165 — 2 “) 163
Total available-for-sale SECUIIHIES. ........ecuereeieirieiinerercsenieeene $ 53,407 $ — 3 710 $ (529) $ 53,588
Securities held-to-maturity: -
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:”
Mortgage-backed SECUTILIES ......ccceeereruerererenrenenenienenn $ 805 $ — 3 84 § — $ 889
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUTILIES ......ccceeereruerererenrenenenienenn 50 — 9 — 59
Collateralized mortgage obligations ...........ccccecevereneennene 204 — 23 — 227
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions............. 28 — 1 — 29
Asset-backed securities collateralized by residential
INOTEZAZES ..coevvenrienrerieentenitereeerenreeerenteeanesaeestesseenesaeesaeennenuees 18 — 1 — 19
Asset-backed securities and other debt securities held by a
consolidated VIE® ...........cco.covviimirieeeeeeeeeeeeeeree e 281 (101) 30 — 210
Total held-to-maturity SECUrities..........cceveereereereneesenieiene $ 1,380 $ (101) $ 148 $ — $ 1,433
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Non-Credit

Loss
Amortized Com(l))’([)‘l’i‘elnt of Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2013 Cost Securities Gains Losses Value
(in millions)
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. TIEASUIY ....cvevieievieeeteeeeteteteeete ettt $ 27,716 $ — 3 391 $ (113) $ 27,994
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:""
Mortgage-backed SECUTItIES .......c.eeervervinerereenierienieeenene 159 — — (14) 145
Collateralized mortgage obligations...........ccceveveereenennne. 41 — — (1 40
Direct agency obligations .........cccceceverererereneneneneennenn 4,115 — 225 (16) 4,324
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUTItIES .......c.eeervervinerereenierienieeenene 10,304 — 40 (342) 10,002
Collateralized mortgage obligations...........ccceveveereenennne. 6,584 — 17 (154) 6,447
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions............. 755 — 12 (25) 742
Asset backed securities collateralized by:
Residential mortgages.........ccvevevieeveniiecienieieneeie e 1 — — — 1
Commercial MOrt@ages .........cecuevveeeeniieienieeneee e 125 — 1 — 126
HOME @QUILY....veiieiieieiieiecieeieeee e 263 — — (36) 227
OLhET ..o 100 — — (6) 94
Foreign debt securities®.............cocovveureeevrernnenn. 4,607 — 10 (15) 4,602
Equity SECUTItIES ...ccvveereeeiieiieeiie et . 165 — 2 %) 162
Total available-for-sale securities $ 54935 § — 3 698 $ (727) $ 54,906
Securities held-to-maturity: -
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:*’
Mortgage-backed SECUTItIes .......c.eeverreeieriieierieeie e $ 845 $ — $ 88 $ — $ 933
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUTItIES .......c.ceververvinerervenrenienieeennnn 52 — 8 — 60
Collateralized mortgage obligations...................... . 214 — 24 — 238
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions............. 29 — 1 — 30
Asset-backed securities collateralized by residential
INOTEGAZES ..vvveeeeiiiriieee et e et eeeeerreeeeeesenrneeeesennneeeeeans 18 — 1 — 19
Asset-backed securities and other debt securities held by a
consolidated VIE™ ..o 304 (104) 19 — 219
Total held-to-maturity SECUrIties .........ccoevevveviereriereriereeereeeerenea $ 1,462 $ (104) $ 141 $ — $ 1,499
M Includes securities at amortized cost of $171 million and $167 million issued or guaranteed by FNMA at March 31,2014 and December 31,2013, respectively,
and $33 million and $33 million issued or guaranteed by FHLMC at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
@ At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, foreign debt securities consisted of $1,232 million and $1,101 million, respectively, of securities fully backed
by foreign governments. The remainder of foreign debt securities represents public sector entity, bank or corporate debt.
@ Includes securities at amortized cost of $378 million and $398 million issued or guaranteed by FNMA at March 31,2014 and December 31,2013, respectively,
and $427 million and $447 million issued and guaranteed by FHLMC at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
@

Relates to securities held by Bryant Park Funding LLC ("Bryant Park"), a variable interest entity which was consolidated in the second quarter of 2013. See
Note 16, "Variable Interest Entities" for additional information.
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The following table summarizes gross unrealized losses and related fair values as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
classified as to the length of time the losses have existed:

One Year or Less Greater Than One Year
Number Gross Aggregate Number Gross Aggregate
of Unrealized Fair Value of Unrealized Fair Value
March 31, 2014 Securities Losses of Investment Securities Losses of Investment

(dollars are in millions)

Securities available-for-sale:

U.S. Treasury ....ccoeveevveeeerieeeeieeeenresnesneennns 18 $ 52) $ 9,246 5 8 21 $ 507
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises...... 19 “@ 234 24 a7 462
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed ..........ccceveireiniineeeee 138 (354) 7,557 12 (6) 137
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUbdIVISIONS ....c.covviiiiiiiiiciicc 40 1 324 9 (6) 106
Asset backed securities ............ccoccoevcennnne 4 )] 115 10 33) 230
Foreign debt securities...........ccocververvenennen. 2 — 245 7 12) 2,863
Equity SECUTItIeS......covveuiiiiiiiiiiciecie 1 “@ 155 — — —
Securities available-for-sale...........c..coccoenennene. 222§ (434) $ 17,876 67 $ 95 $ 4,305
Securities held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises...... 15 $ — S — 49 $ — S —
U.S. Government agency issued or
gUAranteed ......coovveeeriieieiee e 74 — — 843 — 2
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUDAIVISIONS ..o 1 — 1 4 — 2
Securities held-to-maturity..............cccecueneene 90 $ — $ 1 896 $ — $ 4
One Year or Less Greater Than One Year
Number Gross Aggregate Number Gross Aggregate
of Unrealized Fair Value of Unrealized Fair Value
December 31, 2013 Securities Losses of Investment Securities Losses of Investment

(dollars are in millions)

Securities available-for-sale:

U.S. TICASUIY et 22 3 82) $ 16,958 6 3 31D $ 630
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises...... 23 (12) 400 20 (19) 356
U.S. Government agency issued or
gUAranteed ......ccevveeeieieieeeeceee e 170 (494) 10,243 5 2) 23
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUbAIVISIONS ... 42 (19) 330 5 (6) 65
Asset backed SeCUrities ...........ccoevrreennennnn 3 6) 115 10 (36) 237
Foreign debt securities .........cccecevverirenennene 1 — 50 7 (15) 2,916
Equity SECUTTHIES.......eerueiriereieerieeereeenenene 1 5) 154 — — —
Securities available-for-sale................cocoovnne.n. 262§ (618) $ 28,250 53§ (109) § 4,227
Securities held-to-maturity: -
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises...... 13 3 — § — 48 3 — 3 —
U.S. Government agency issued or
UATANtEed ....c.oeevveeirieiieeeceeee 79 — — 859 — 2
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUDAIVISIONS ... 7 — 4 2 — 1
Securities held-to-maturity ................cccoevevenen.e. 929 § — $ 4 909 $ — 3 3
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Net unrealized gains and losses increased within the available-for-sale portfolio in the first quarter of 2014 due to sales of U.S.
government agency mortgage-backed securities that were in a net unrealized loss position at December 31, 2013 and a decrease
in yields on U.S. Government agency securities and U.S. Treasury securities during the quarter.

We have reviewed the securities for which there is an unrealized loss for other-than-temporary impairment in accordance with our
accounting policies, discussed further below. As a result of consolidating Bryant Park during the second quarter of 2013, we had
held-to-maturity asset backed securities that were previously determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired which totaled $180
million and $200 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. We do not consider any other debt securities
to be other-than-temporarily impaired at March 31, 2014 as we expect to recover their amortized cost basis and we neither intend
nor expect to be required to sell these securities prior to recovery, even if that equates to holding securities until their individual
maturities. However, additional other-than-temporary impairments may occur in future periods if the credit quality of the securities
deteriorates.

On-going Assessment for Other-Than-Temporary Impairment On a quarterly basis, we perform an assessment to determine
whether there have been any events or economic circumstances to indicate that a security with an unrealized loss has suffered
other-than-temporary impairment. A debt security is considered impaired if its fair value is less than its amortized cost at the
reporting date. If impaired, we assess whether the unrealized loss is other-than-temporary.

An unrealized loss is generally deemed to be other-than-temporary and a credit loss is deemed to exist if the present value of the
expected future cash flows is less than the amortized cost basis of the debt security. As a result, the credit loss component of an
other-than-temporary impairment write-down for debt securities is recorded in earnings while the remaining portion of the
impairment loss attributable to factors other than credit loss is recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income provided we
do not intend to sell the underlying debt security and it is more likely than not that we would not have to sell the debt security
prior to recovery.

For all securities held in the available-for-sale or held-to-maturity portfolios for which unrealized losses attributed to factors other
than credit have existed for a period of time, we do not have the intention to sell and believe we will not be required to sell the
securities for contractual, regulatory or liquidity reasons as of the reporting date. Our assessment for credit loss was concentrated
on private label asset-backed securities. Substantially all of the private label asset-backed securities are supported by residential
mortgages, home equity loans or commercial mortgages. Our assessment for credit loss was concentrated on this particular asset
class because of the following inherent risk factors:

*  The recovery of the U.S. economy has been slow;
*  The high levels of pending foreclosure volume associated with a U.S. housing market in the early stages of recovery;
*  Alack of significant traction in government sponsored programs in loan modifications;

* A lack of refinancing activities within certain segments of the mortgage market, even at the current low interest rate
environment, and the re-default rate for refinanced loans;

*  The unemployment rate although improving remains high compared with historical levels;
e The decline in the occupancy rate in commercial properties; and
*  The severity and duration of unrealized loss.

For a complete description of the factors considered when analyzing debt securities for impairment, see Note 5, "Securities" in
our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no material changes in our process for assessing impairment during 2014.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, none of our debt securities were determined to have initial other-than-temporary
impairment while one of our debt securities, which was held by Bryant Park, was determined to have a change to its previous
other-than-temporary impairment estimate related to the credit component. The additional credit loss associated with the impaired
debt security, which reflects the excess of amortized cost over the present value of expected future cash flows, was $2 million and
was recorded as a component of net other-than-temporary impairment losses in the accompanying consolidated statement of
income.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, none of our debt securities were determined to have either initial other-than-
temporary impairment or changes to previous other-than-temporary impairment estimates relating to the credit component, as
such, there were no other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized related to credit loss.

AtMarch 31,2014 and December 31, 2013, the excess of discounted future cash flows over fair value, representing the non-credit
component of the unrealized loss associated with all other-than-temporary impaired securities which is recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss), was $101 million and $104 million, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the rollforward of credit losses on debt securities that were other-than-temporarily impaired which
have previously been recognized in income that we do not intend to sell nor will likely be required to sell:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Credit losses at the beginning of the Period...........ccceciriririiiinininneeeeee e $ 61 §$ —
Increase in credit losses for which an other-than-temporary impairment was previously recognized ... 2 —

Ending balance of credit losses on held-to-maturity debt securities for which a portion of an other-
than-temporary impairment was recognized in other comprehensive income (10ss)........ccccceevereeeennen. $ 63 $ —

AtMarch 31, 2014, we held 21 individual asset-backed securities in the available-for-sale portfolio, of which 8 were also wrapped
by a monoline insurance company. The asset-backed securities backed by a monoline wrap comprised $315 million of the total
aggregate fair value of asset-backed securities of $411 million at March 31, 2014. The gross unrealized losses on these monoline
wrapped securities were $42 million at March 31, 2014. We did not take into consideration the value of the monoline wrap of any
non-investment grade monoline insurers as of March 31, 2014 and, therefore, we only considered the financial guarantee of
monoline insurers on securities for purposes of evaluating other-than-temporary impairment on securities with a fair value of $95
million. No security wrapped by a below investment grade monoline insurance company was deemed to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at March 31, 2014.

At December 31, 2013, we held 22 individual asset-backed securities in the available-for-sale portfolio, of which 8 were also
wrapped by a monoline insurance company. The asset-backed securities backed by a monoline wrap comprised $321 million of
the total aggregate fair value of asset-backed securities of $448 million at December 31, 2013. The gross unrealized losses on these
monoline wrapped securities were $42 million at December 31, 2013. We did not take into consideration the value of the monoline
wrap of any non-investment grade monoline insurers as of December 31, 2013 and, therefore, we only considered the financial
guarantee of monoline insurers on securities with a fair value of $98 million for purposes of evaluating other-than-temporary
impairment. No security wrapped by a below investment grade monoline insurance company was deemed to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013.

As discussed above, certain asset-backed securities in the available-for-sale portfolio have an embedded financial guarantee
provided by monoline insurers. Because the financial guarantee is not a separate and distinct contract from the asset-backed security,
they are considered as a single unit of account for fair value measurement and impairment assessment purposes. The monoline
insurers are regulated by the insurance commissioners of the relevant states and certain monoline insurers that write the financial
guarantee contracts are public companies. We did not consider the value of the monoline wrap of any non-investment grade
monoline insurer at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. In evaluating the extent of our reliance on investment grade monoline
insurance companies, consideration is given to our assessment of the creditworthiness of the monoline and other market factors.
We perform both a credit as well as a liquidity analysis on the monoline insurers each quarter. Our analysis also compares market-
based credit default spreads, when available, to assess the appropriateness of our monoline insurer’s creditworthiness. Based on
the public information available, including the regulatory reviews and actions undertaken by the state insurance commissions and
the published financial results, we determine the degree of reliance to be placed on the financial guarantee policy in estimating
the cash flows to be collected for the purpose of recognizing and measuring impairment loss.

A credit downgrade to non-investment grade is a key but not the only factor in determining the credit risk or the monoline insurer’s
ability to fulfill its contractual obligation under the financial guarantee arrangement. Although a monoline may have been down-
graded by the credit rating agencies or have been ordered to commute its operations by the insurance commissioners, it may retain
the ability and the obligation to continue to pay claims in the near term. We evaluate the short-term liquidity of and the ability to
pay claims by the monoline insurers in estimating the amounts of cash flows expected to be collected from specific asset-backed
securities for the purpose of assessing and measuring credit loss.

Realized Gains (Losses) The following table summarizes realized gains and losses on investment securities transactions attributable
to available-for-sale securities:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
GTOSS TEALIZEA ZAINS ...ttt ettt ettt ea et e b e bbbttt b e bbb e e e e s ene $ 43 $ 124
GTOSS TEALIZEA LOSSES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt st b e et ene (21) 1)
NEt TEAIIZEA ZAINS. c..evivetiieietetet ettt ettt et et b e eb e bbbt bbb et be st e e e eneene $ 22 % 123

During the first quarter of 2014, we recognized a loss of $2 million due to an other-than-temporary impairment credit loss on
securities held-to-maturity, as discussed above. During the first quarter of 2013, we sold six asset-backed securities out of our
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held-to-maturity portfolio with a total carrying value of $71 million and recognized a gain of $8 million. These sales were in
response to the significant credit deterioration which had occurred on these securities which had been classified as substandard
for regulatory reporting purposes and, therefore, these disposals did not affect our intent and ability to hold our remaining held-
to-maturity portfolio until maturity.

Contractual Maturities and Yields The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair values of securities available-for-
sale and securities held-to-maturity at March 31,2014 by contractual maturity. Expected maturities differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers have the right to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties in certain cases. Securities available-for-sale
amounts exclude equity securities as they do not have stated maturities. The table below also reflects the distribution of maturities
of debt securities held at March 31, 2014, together with the approximate taxable equivalent yield of the portfolio. The yields shown
are calculated by dividing annual interest income, including the accretion of discounts and the amortization of premiums, by the
amortized cost of securities outstanding at March 31, 2014. Yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a taxable
equivalent basis using applicable statutory tax rates.

After One After Five
Within But Within But Within After Ten
One Year Five Years Ten Years Years
Taxable Equivalent Basis Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

(dollars are in millions)

Available-for-sale:

U.S. Treasury.....cceceveererereereeneennene $ 1,224 34% § 21,867 1% $ 2,723 2.82% $ 1,785 3.98%
U.S. Government sponsored
153111535 0) 0 1< S — 980 2.42 2,597 3.37 734 3.88
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed........coceveveeeienieieinenceene. — — 13 423 85 240 15,392 2.83
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUDAIVISIONS ....oveveviieeirieirieeeierenenes — — 101 3.98 305 3.31 335 346
Asset backed securities.........cc.occeenenne. — 1 1.86 10 37 441 249
Foreign debt securities.........cc.ceceeerenene 636 3.01 4,013 194 — — — —
Total amortized COSt......c.ceevrververerieriierenses $ 1,860 1.26% $ 26,975 97% $ 5,720 3.09% $ 18,687 2.99%
Total fair value..........ccoevevievericeeriierieenn $ 1,863 $ 27,009 $ 6,023 $ 18,530

Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government sponsored

ENLEIPIISES ..ovvvveerreerereerereiereseresereanas $ 1 7.79% $ — —% $ 2 8.03% $ 802 6.14%
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed........cocooveveeeienieieinenceene, — — 1 762 2 773 251  6.50
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUDAIVISIONS ...ovvenveevenieeeieieeeieve e 5 530 10 4.56 6 395 7 5.05
Asset backed securities........c.ccoceerenee — — — — — 18 6.20
Asset backed securities issued by
consolidated VIE .........ccccocovuiieeinnnn. — — — — 63 .33 117 33
Total amortized COSt.......coovevverreiereereernnnn, $ 6 563% $ 11 4.92% $ 73 1.02% $ 1,195 5.64%
Total fair Value.......ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn $ 5 $ 12 $ 76 $ 1,340

Investments in Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock of $139 million and $483 million, respectively,
were included in other assets at both March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
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4. Loans

Loans consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and Other 1Al ESTALE ........c..ccverierieririeieeiee ettt seesse e esaesraesseesnens $ 9,165 §$ 9,034
Business and corporate DanKing ...........ccooeeriiieriiieieeeeeeee e 15,698 14,446
GIOBAL BANKING™ ........oooooeeeei et 21,979 21,625
Other COMIMETCIAL.......otieeiiiieiieie ettt ettt et e et et e s et e e eaeebesseenaesseeneeeneens 3,051 3,389
TOtal COMMETCIAL........eivieeieiieiiectieieete ettt ettt ettt et e e se e beesbesseessesseensesseessesseensesssensesssensenssens 49,893 48,494
Consumer loans:
Residential MOTEZAZES .....covevueruiriirierieietetet ettt sttt sttt ettt et et be et sae b b 15,900 15,826
HOME EqUItY MOTEZAZES ....vevverviriteieieteieteeetet ettt ettt st et se et ettt eaeeae b nnes 1,938 2,011
CIEAIL CATAS ..vveiieiieiiiteet ettt b bbbt b e bt sttt b e sttt et et et et e bt ebe e bt ebeebeebes 683 854
(0131 103113 1111 1<) ORI 483 510
TOtAL CONSUIMET ......vivieiieiieiieiieste ettt et e b e st eaeste e bestseseessesseessesseassenssensesseessesseensesssessesssensensnens 19,004 19,201
TOtAL LOAIS ...ttt ettt a et e e et e e s et e et e bt et e eae et eneeteene e beeneenteennen $ 68897 $§ 67,695

M Represents large multinational firms including globally focused U.S. corporate and financial institutions and U.S. Dollar lending to multinational banking
customers managed by HSBC on a global basis. Also includes loans to HSBC affiliates which totaled $5,277 million and $5,328 million at March 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively. See Note 13, "Related Party Transactions" for additional information regarding loans to HSBC affiliates.

Net deferred origination fees totaled $9 million and $23 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had a net unamortized premium on our loans of $15 million and $16 million,
respectively. We amortized net premiums of less than $1 million and $2 million on our loans in March 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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Age Analysis of Past Due Loans The following table summarizes the past due status of our loans at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013. The aging of past due amounts is determined based on the contractual delinquency status of payments under
the loan. An account is generally considered to be contractually delinquent when payments have not been made in accordance
with the loan terms. Delinquency status is affected by customer account management policies and practices such as re-age, which
results in the re-setting of the contractual delinquency status to current.

Past Due Total Past Due
At March 31, 2014 30-89days  90+days 30 Days or More Current”  Total Loans
(in millions)
Commercial loans:
Construction and other real estate..........cccceeveevvcevereeeiennnen. $ 8 $ 30 $ 38 $ 9127 $§ 9,165
Business and corporate banking .........c.ccoccevevveninienennen. 17 27 44 15,654 15,698
Global banking.........cceceeevererinenenineneneneeeeeeeeeeaee — 3 3 21,976 21,979
Other commercial .........ccceeveevieniierieeie e 26 — 26 3,025 3,051
Total cOMMETICIal.........cccvervieiieieiieieie e 51 60 111 49,782 49,893
Consumer loans:
Residential mOrtgages.........ccveeveeeeeneieienieeieneeieeeeee s 366 996 1,362 14,538 15,900
Home equity MOrtgages........ceceveeeruereenenieneeieneeeeseeens 22 53 75 1,863 1,938
Credit CardS ......oovveieieieeiieieeeeee ettt 12 14 26 657 683
Other CONSUIMET ........uvviiiiiiiiieee i 10 12 22 461 483
TOtal CONSUMET .....eouveiieiieiieieeeeeie ettt saeeneens 410 1,075 1,485 17,519 19,004
Total 10ans ...........cccveveiiiieiiieee e $ 461 §$ 1,135 $§ 1,596 $ 67,301 $ 68,897
Past Due

Total Past Due
At December 31, 2013 30-89days  90+days 30 Days or More Current”  Total Loans

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and other real estate.........ccceeevvveeeveveeeevneennne. $ 6 $ 58 $ 64 $ 8970 $ 9,034
Business and corporate banking ...........c.cceceeveevecieneeenennene 48 36 84 14,362 14,446
Global banKing.........ccceceeerereninenenineneseeeeeeeeeeeee e 8 3 11 21,614 21,625
Other commercial ............coooviiiiiiieeeiie e 27 9 36 3,353 3,389
Total coOMMETCial........cceeeveevieriieieiieierie e 89 106 195 48,299 48,494
Consumer loans:
Residential mortgages.........cocevevereriinienenenieieieceeeeene 443 1,037 1,480 14,346 15,826
Home equity mortgages. ........coceeevveruervenreneneenveneneeneeennenne 28 59 87 1,924 2,011
Credit Cards.....oeeeeieirieerereeeee e 16 14 30 824 854
Other CONSUMET .......eeuieiiieiietieieeeieee ettt 12 13 25 485 510
Total CONSUMET........cecveriieieerieiieeiere e eee e eee e e aeseeeneens 499 1,123 1,622 17,579 19,201
TOtal IOANS ...evveeeieeieecie ettt e et s e e ens $ 588 $§ 1,229 $ 1,817 $ 65,878 $ 67,695

M Loans less than 30 days past due are presented as current.

Nonaccrual Loans Nonaccrual loans totaled $1,175 million and $1,305 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. Interest income that would have been recorded if such nonaccrual loans had been current and in accordance with
contractual terms was approximately $28 million and $31 million in the three months ended March 31,2014 and 2013, respectively.
Interest income that was included in interest income on these loans was $12 million and $5 million in the three months ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. For an analysis of reserves for credit losses, see Note 5, "Allowance for Credit Losses."
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Nonaccrual loans and accruing receivables 90 days or more delinquent consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial:
Real Estate:
Construction and 1and L0ANS..........c.cceiviiiiiriiiiiieceeiece et eseens $ 32 3 44
Other 1Al ©STALE ....eevviiiiieeiieiie ettt ettt ettt e e te et eeeb e e taeesbe e baeeaseesseesnseesseesssens 62 122
Business and corporate DAnKINng ............ccccevierieiienieniienieeiesieeeese ettt eee e eee e sse e sseennens 21 21
G1ODAL DANKING. ...ttt ettt ettt be et be et e et et et e st e e st ebeeneeee — 65
Other COMMETCIAL .....c.viiiiiiiieiie ettt e s be et e e beeseeesbeessaeeaseenees 3 2
TOtal COMMETCIAL......ccueeiieeieiieieie ettt ete st e sttt et eeee et e esaesseesaesseessesseensessnensesssensenssens 118 254
Consumer:
Residential MOTtZAZES. ... .c.eeuieeieieriieierte ettt ettt ettt et e et eeesaeetesneenneeneens 907 949
HOME EQUILY MOTZAZES ... .eevveiieeieiieierieete st etesttetestete et eteesaesseessesseessesseessesssessesssensenssens 71 77
Total residential Mort@ages™ @@ . ... .o 978 1,026
Total CONSUMET LOANS .......ccuviiiiiieieiie ettt e e eaae e e e e et eeeeneeeenees 978 1,026
Nonaccrual 10ans held for SAlE ..........ccceiieiiieieiicieecee e 79 25
Total NONACCIUING LOANS...........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieece ettt sbeesaeeeebe e seeenseenees 1,175 1,305
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more:
Commercial:
Business and corporate DAnKing ............ccccevieriiiieniiiiieniieiesieeeese e sreeee e eaesraesse e sseesnens 6 5
Other COMMETCIAL ....cc.viiiiiiiieie ettt ettt e et e s beetee s sbeesseessseessaeesseenees 1
Total COMMETCIAL........ecuiiiieiieii ettt ettt ettt et e et e sseeneesseensesseensesneesesnnens 7 6
Consumer:
Credit card reCEIVADIES .......c.eecuiiiiieieecieesite ettt eree st e b e esteeebeesteeebeesseessseessaeesseenees 14 14
OthET COMSUIMIET ... eeutieiieiieetieteeeieteete st eteseeeaesseestesseenteeseenseesseseensesseensesneensesseensesssensesnnens 13 14
Total CONSUMET LOANS ... .cvieiieiieeiiiietecie ettt et e et et e esaesteesbesteessesseessesseessesssesensnens 27 28
Total accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more................c.cccceevvieiiienieecienieeeene 34 34
Total nonperforming IOANS.................c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiic et et te e e e S 1,209 $ 1,339

M At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, residential mortgage loan nonaccrual balances include $853 million and $866 million, respectively, of loans
that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

@ Nonaccrual residential mortgages includes all receivables which are 90 or more days contractually delinquent as well as loans discharged under Chapter 7

bankruptcy and not re-affirmed and second lien loans where the first lien loan that we own or service is 90 or more days contractually delinquent.

®  Residential mortgage nonaccrual loans for all periods does not include guaranteed loans purchased from the Government National Mortgage Association

("GNMA"). Repayment of these loans are predominantly insured by the Federal Housing Administration and as such, these loans have different risk
characteristics from the rest of our customer loan portfolio.

Impaired Loans A loan is considered to be impaired when it is deemed probable that not all principal and interest amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will be collected. Probable losses from impaired loans are quantified and
recorded as a component of the overall allowance for credit losses. Commercial and consumer loans for which we have modified
the loan terms as part of a troubled debt restructuring are considered to be impaired loans. Additionally, commercial loans in
nonaccrual status, or that have been partially charged-off or assigned a specific allowance for credit losses are also considered
impaired loans.

Troubled debt restructurings Troubled debt restructurings ("TDR Loans") represent loans for which the original contractual terms
have been modified to provide for terms that are less than what we would be willing to accept for new loans with comparable risk
because of deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition.

Modifications for consumer or commercial loans may include changes to one or more terms of the loan, including, but not limited
to, a change in interest rate, extension of the amortization period, reduction in payment amount and partial forgiveness or deferment
of principal. A substantial amount of our modifications involve interest rate reductions which lower the amount of interest income
we are contractually entitled to receive in future periods. Through lowering the interest rate and other loan term changes, we believe
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we are able to increase the amount of cash flow that will ultimately be collected from the loan, given the borrower’s financial
condition. TDR Loans are reserved for either based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans’
original effective interest rates which generally results in a higher reserve requirement for these loans or in the case of certain
secured loans, the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. Once a consumer loan is classified as a TDR Loan, it continues
to be reported as such until it is paid off or charged-off. For commercial loans, if subsequent performance is in accordance with
the new terms and such terms reflect current market rates at the time of restructure, they will no longer be reported as a TDR Loan
beginning in the year after restructuring. Since 2012, there have been no commercial loans that met this criteria and were removed
from TDR Loan classification.

The following table presents information about receivables which were modified during the three months ended March 31, 2014
and 2013 and as a result of this action became classified as TDR Loans:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Commercial loans:
Business and corporate DANKING ...........cceccveririieriiiieiieiereeteet ettt et sresee e s ae e essesseensesseensesseensenns 10 4

TOtAl COMIMETCIAL.......vviiiieiii ittt ettt e et e et e e e et e s eaeeessateeesaaeessaeessnaeesenaeeesnneas 10 4

Consumer loans:

ReSIACNtIAl NOTEZAZES ...eovvevieeiieiieiieiieie ettt et eet et e e te et e eseesbeeseessesseessesssesseessensaensesseensenseensenns 34 44
CIEAIE CATAS ...vvivieiieiieieeei ettt ettt ettt et e ettt e e e et e esb e be et s e teesseeseesseeseesseesaesbeesaesseessesseessesssessesseansens 2 —
TOTA]l COMSUIMET ... uviiitieieieeieeciie et e ette et e et e et e e st e ebeestbeebeessaeesseessseesseessseansaessseensaansseensaessseanseessseensenssas 36 44
TOTAL v veve vttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st et at ettt e st e s te b te et te s eas b e et et eab et e et et e b ete b ete et ese s esseseas et easeteasens $ 46 $ 48

The weighted-average contractual rate reduction for consumer loans which became classified as TDR Loans during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 was 1.50 percent and 1.99 percent. The weighted-average contractual rate reduction for
commercial loans was not significant in either the number of loans or rate.

The following tables present information about our TDR Loans and the related credit loss reserves for TDR Loans:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

TDR Loans"®:
Commercial loans:
Construction and Other real ESTALE...........cveruiiieriieieieeiere ettt se s e ese s $ 236 $ 292
Business and corporate Banking.............ceceeeeererienienienieieiieieieinese ettt e 17 21
G1ODAL DANKINEG ...t ettt b bbbt b e bbbttt ese b ebe b e — 51
Other COMMETCIAL ... .iiitiiiiieiie ettt ettt e eesteesbe e taeesbeeseesabeeseesnseesseeenseennes 10 25
TOtal COMMETCIAL ......eevieeieiieeieie ettt ettt et e e steesaeeseessessaessessaesseessensaensenseensenseenes 263 389
Consumer loans:
Residential MOTtGAZES™) ............oovoveiveeceeeeeeeeeeeeee e 939 973
CTEAIL CATAS ..evvieieeeeie ettt ettt et et e et e et e e te e sabeeteeesbeesaeesbeessaeesseesseesssaeseessseesssennseenses 9 8
TOtAL COMSUIMICT ... .evieiiietieniieiieteeetesteete st etesteebeeeeesteesaeseesseseesseeseessessaensesssesesssesanssenseensenseenss 948 981
Total TDR L0ANS™ ..o $ 1,211 $ 1,370
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March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)
Allowance for credit losses for TDR Loans®:
Commercial loans:

Construction and Other TEAL ESTALE .........veieiieeeiiee ettt e et e e e eeearteeeeseeseeeesesseaeeesesennes $ 7 9 16

Business and corporate Danking...........ccooceereiieiiiieiieeeee e 1 1

Total COMMETCIAL ..ottt sttt eb b 8 17
Consumer loans:

ReSidential MOTEZAZES .....cveveuieiieiieiietieiere ettt ettt sttt ettt eb b e 62 68

L3 (T Uo7 (o SRS 2 2

TOtAl COMSUIMET . ...c..euteiiieetetet ettt b bt sttt be bbbttt et et ebeebe b 64 70

Total allowance for credit 10SSes for TDR LOANS.........ccouuiiiiiiiieiiieieeiieeeee et eaae e $ 72 $ 87

" TDR Loans are considered to be impaired loans. For consumer loans, all such loans are considered impaired loans regardless of accrual status. For commercial
loans, impaired loans include other loans in addition to TDR Loans which totaled $46 million and $92 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively.

@ The TDR Loan balances included in the table above reflect the current carrying amount of TDR Loans and includes all basis adjustments on the loan, such
asunearned income, unamortized deferred fees and costs on originated loans, partial charge-offs and premiums or discounts on purchased loans. The following
table reflects the unpaid principal balance of TDR Loans:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(in millions)
Commercial loans:
Construction and OthEr TEAL ESTALE.........c.ueueueieteiieirieieie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt b ettt ebe e e benens $ 256 $ 309
Business and corporate banking.............coccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 48 60
GIObAl DANKING.......coviiiiiiiiiic s — 51
Oher COMIMETCIAL .......cueriieiiiieiiireetctee ettt et ettt b et s a et a et st n st s s esesnenenean 10 28
Total commercial 314 448
Consumer loans:
Residential MOTEZAGES ........cueuuiuiuiiiuiiiiiiiieiiiiicieieieieiet ettt ettt bbbttt bbb bbb bbbttt benne 1,121 1,153
CTEAIE CATAS ...ttt ettt b bt e b et e sttt es bt s e et e bt b et e st ea e st e st eb b e s e e st ettt et enesee e enes 9 8
TOTAL COMSUITIET . ......utiiitieiiet ettt ettt sttt ae e s b e s e b s s et s st s eneaesnenenean 1,130 1,161
TOTAL ...ttt h bbbttt e e st ee $ 1,444 § 1,609

©® " Includes $718 million and $706 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, of loans that are recorded at the lower of amortized cost
or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

@ Includes $362 million and $458 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, of loans which are classified as nonaccrual.

)

Included in the allowance for credit losses.
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The following table presents information about average TDR Loans and interest income recognized on TDR Loans:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)

Average balance of TDR Loans
Commercial loans:

Construction and Other 1Al ESTALE ..........c.evieriirieie ettt e reeaesreesaeseeas $ 264 §$ 320
Business and corporate DanKing ..........ccocoieeiiiieieiieeee e e 19 60
(2 e] 021 I 0T 11 =TSRSS 25 —
Other COMIMETCIAL .......eeiiiiiiiieiieiieetete ettt ettt e st e b s e e e e seesseeteesbeessesseessesseeseesseensesseessensens 18 31
TOtal COMMETCIAL......eeieiieiieiiieectieeie ettt te et e e be e et e st eessaeenb e e saeesseessaeessaenseesnseenseenssas 326 411
Consumer loans:
ReSIAENtIAl MOTEZAZES ..vveveerieeierieeieriietesie ettt et e et et e steesbeete e s e eteesseeseessesssesseeseesseessesseessessens 941 849
CTEAIL CATAS.....vieiieeiieceie ettt ettt e et e et e e b e e taeasbe e taeesbeeseeesseessseesseessseasseessseansaenseesnseasssensss 8 14
TOtAL COMSUIMICT .....ovvetieeieeiieieetiet et este et este et e steesaesseensesseessessaessesseensensaesseassanseassenseassesseensesseensensens 949 863
Total average balance of TDR LOANS........ccccciiiiriiiieriieieieeieste ettt e aesee et seesteessesreessesseessesseesseens $ 1,275 § 1274

Interest income recognized on TDR Loans
Commercial loans:

Construction and Other TEAl ESTALE .........cc.veiiiuiiiiiiieeeeie et e e et e s eaeeeeeaeeeeas $ 6 3 2
OhEr COMIMIETCIAL ......vvviiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e ettt e e e e eaae e e e s e eaaaeeeessesaaeeesssensaaeeessesnnsaeeeas —
TOtal COMIMIETCIAL. ......eiiiiviiiiieie ettt e et e e e et e e et e e eeaaeeeeaaeeeenteeeenneeenaneeens 6 3

Consumer loans:

Residential MOTEZAZES .....ooveeriieeieiieiiere ettt ettt ettt et et es e et et e et e e saeeneesneensennean 9 8
TOtAL COMSUIMET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt st a et a et a ettt et e e et seebenaebesaenens 9
Total interest income recognized on TDR LO@NS.......ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiisee e $ 15 11

The following table presents loans which were classified as TDR Loans during the previous 12 months which for commercial
loans became 90 days or greater contractually delinquent or for consumer loans became 60 days or greater contractually delinquent
during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Commercial loans:
Construction and Other TEAL ESTALE ..........uviiiiiieiiiiee et e ettt e e s et e e e senaeeeessesnaeeeeeeanes $ 12 2

TOtal COMIMIETCIAL.......vviiieeiiieeeee ettt e et et e et e eeaaeeeenteeeenaseeeeneeesensessenareeennens 12 2

Consumer loans:

ReSidential MOTEZAZES .. .uveeveeiieiieieeiieee ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st e teeseesaeeneesseentesseensesseenseeneensens 8 13
CLEAIE CATAS ..vvivieiieiieiiete ettt et et e b et e s te et e s bessb e teesbeeseesseeseenseeseensesseenseessesseessensannsenseensensennsenns — 1
TOTA]l COMSUIMET ....vveeivieiieeieeciieeieeette et e et e et e e st e eteessbeesbeessaesssaessbaenseessseansaesseansaansseanseesssasnseessseenseensees 8 14
TOTAL ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e et e et et e et ene et ent et eat et et et et et et ene et ene et ene et ene et entetenserenseneasenn $ 20 $ 16
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Impaired commercial loans The following table summarizes impaired commercial loan statistics:

Amount
Amount with without Total Impaired
Impairment Impairment Commercial Impairment
Reserves Reserves Loans(l) @) Reserve

(in millions)

At March 31, 2014

Construction and other real €State............coovvvvvvieiiieiiiieeiieiireeee e $ 56 $ 204 S 260 $ 9
Business and corporate banking.............cccceeeeeeeririninenenesese e 19 10 29 4
Global DANKING.......coceririiiiriiniitete ettt — — — —
Other COMMETCIAL......cc.eciierieierieie e 1 19 20 1
1] 1 TSR $ 76 $ 233 § 309 $ 14
At December 31, 2013 -
Construction and other real €State........coeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen, $ 122 $ 211 $ 333 § 32
Business and corporate banking...........c.ccceeeeeeerenininencninenenenen 28 12 40

Global BanKING.......covevviruirrinirierteieeeeteteteeee e 14 51 65 5
Other COMMETCIAL......cc.ecieriieieitieie ettt e 1 42 43 —
0] 71 ORI $ 165 $ 316 $ 481 § 40

@ Includes impaired commercial loans that are also considered TDR Loans which totaled $263 million and $389 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively.

@ The impaired commercial loan balances included in the table above reflect the current carrying amount of the loan and includes all basis adjustments, such

as partial charge-offs, unamortized deferred fees and costs on originated loans and any premiums or discounts. The following table reflects the unpaid
principal balance of impaired commercial loans included in the table above:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Construction and OthEr TEAL ESTALE ..........c.eruirieirtiieiete ettt ettt ettt ettt es e bt se et e st ebe st et eseete e enesbesseneebene $ 289 § 380
Business and corporate banking .............cceevcueiiiiiiiiiiieic s 71 91
Global banking .. — 123
Other commercial 20 47
TOTALL ettt ettt bt b et a bt b etk h ekt a e bRt e bRt b sttt b ettt n e et bbbt neaean $ 380 $ 641

The following table presents information about average impaired commercial loan balances and interest income recognized on
the impaired commercial loans:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Average balance of impaired commercial loans:

Construction and other real estate.... $ 297 § 445

Business and corporate banking ... 35 77
G1ODAL DANKING.......ueeiieiieiieiieit ettt ettt et e st e et e teesbesseessesseesesssesseessessaessessaansenseensenseensennes 33 18
Other COMIMETCIAL ......coviiiiiieiiiciie ettt ettt ettt 32 75
Total average balance of impaired commercial 10ans............coeceeieriiieriiienieeee e $ 397 $ 615
Interest income recognized on impaired commercial loans: -

Construction and Other TEAl ESLALE..........c..ecvruiiriririteieerte ettt $ 6 $ 3
Other COMIMETCIAL ..ottt ettt ettt et e s ae et e st e enee s bt enteeseenseeneenseeneeneeenes —

Total interest income recognized on impaired commercial [0ans...........ccccoevieieriererieninienineneneneen $ 6 $ 4
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Commercial Loan Credit Quality Indicators The following credit quality indicators are monitored for our commercial loan
portfolio:

Criticized asset classifications These classifications are based on the risk rating standards of our primary regulator. Problem loans
are assigned various criticized facility grades. We also assign obligor grades which are used under our allowance for credit losses
methodology. The following table summarizes criticized assets for commercial loans:

Special Mention  Substandard Doubtful Total
(in millions)

At March 31, 2014

Construction and other real eState..........cccvevveereenieiciienieeieesee e $ 392§ 299 § 7 9 698
Business and corporate banking...........c.cccceeeeeevererenienencninenenennes 749 217 3 969
Global banKing..........coceveeierenieniinieeieieieteeeee e 198 76 — 274
Other COMMETCIAL......cc.eeieiieieiieieecee e e 67 10 — 77
TO ALttt ees $ 1,406 $ 602 $ 10 $ 2,018
At December 31, 2013 -
Construction and other real €State...........ooevveeeeeeeireeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenes $ 351 $ 346 $ 30 $ 727
Business and corporate banking...........cccccceeeeeeervereninicncninenenennes 557 156 2 715
Global DANKING.......eiveiiiitirieierieteeeeete et 367 112 5 484
Other comMMETrCial........cccveeiiiiiieiieciiecieee e 79 33 — 112
TOtAL .ottt ettt reenaeees $ 1,354 $ 647 $ 37 % 2,038

Nonperforming The following table summarizes the status of our commercial loan portfolio:

Accruing Loans
Performing Nonaccrual Contractually Past
Loans Loans Due 90 days or More Total

(in millions)

At March 31, 2014
Commercial:
Construction and other real estate............ccoeevveeveveeeeneeennne. $ 9,071 $ 94 $ — 3 9,165
Business and corporate banking .........c.ccocceveeveninnincnnens 15,671 21 6 15,698
Global banking.........ccceceeevererinenenineneneneeeeceeeeeeee 21,979 — — 21,979
Other commercial ..........coceiieiiinieninienieeeeeeeeeeeee 3,047 3 1 3,051
Total COMMETCIAL........eeieeiiiieiee et $ 49,768 $ 118 $ 7 S 49,893
At December 31, 2013
Commercial:
Construction and other real eState.........cccevveeeevveeveeeeereennee. $ 8,868 $ 166 $ — 3 9,034
Business and corporate banking ............coccoevvevevirieninnnns 14,420 21 5 14,446
Global banKing.........ccceceeeeeririnenenineneseeeeceeeeeee e 21,560 65 — 21,625
Other commercial .........coceceverinenenineneneceeeeeeeee 3,386 2 1 3,389
Total COMMETCIAL....cooeeeeeeeeeeeeee et $ 48,234  $ 254 $ 6 $ 48,494
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Credit risk profile The following table shows the credit risk profile of our commercial loan portfolio:

Investment Invljsotl;ent
Grade(l) Grade Total
(in millions)
At March 31, 2014
Construction and other real EStALE ..........ceceerierierieiieie et $ 6,602 $§ 253 $ 9,165
Business and corporate DanKing ............cccceceeeeererinenenienee e 8,199 7,499 15,698
(0] 021 I 0T 11 1 =TT 19,011 2,968 21,979
Other COMMETCIAL ......c.eeivieviitieiiectieieete ettt ettt ettt e e et e e s e reessesreesaesreesseeenas 1,500 1,551 3,051
TOtal COMMETCIAL......c.eovieiieiiiiieiiieieiet ettt ettt b et stesbeseeseeteeseeseesennas $ 35312 $ 14,581 $ 49,893
At December 31, 2013 -
Construction and other 1eal €STALE ........cccveevvieriieeciierieeie ettt e reebeeeeaeenees $ 6,060 $§ 2965 $ 9,034
Business and corporate Danking ............cccceoeeererireneneneneneeeete et 7,279 7,167 14,446
G1ODAL DANKING .....venviieieieieieete ettt sttt ettt e esaeseeseeseeseeseeseesesseeseneas 18,636 2,989 21,625
Other COMMETCIAL .......eeiiieeieiieiietieiesie ettt ettt et et et e b e eseesbeesbesseessesseessesseessessnas 1,583 1,806 3,389
TOtal COMIMETCIAL......eviiiiiieiiiii ettt e e e et e e e seaae e e e s esanaaeeeeesnanees $ 33,567 $ 14927 $ 48,494

M Investment grade includes commercial loans with credit ratings of at least BBB- or above or the equivalent based on our internal credit rating system.

Consumer Loan Credit Quality Indicators The following credit quality indicators are utilized for our consumer loan portfolio:

Delinquency The following table summarizes dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency and as a percent of total

loans and loans held for sale ("delinquency ratio") for our consumer loan portfolio:

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Delinquent  Delinquency  Delinquent  Delinquency
Loans Ratio Loans Ratio

(dollars are in millions)

Consumer:
Residential MOTtGAZES ......ccveieeiriiieiieiiiteeiesieieieiete et eee e ere e e $ 1,132 7.10% $ 1,208 7.59%
Home equity MOTtZAZES ......ccveeveeiieeieiieierieeie e eaesieereereere e ese e esse e 59 3.04 68 3.38
Total residential mortgages™ ............ccooovvivvoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 1,191 6.66 1,276 7.11
Credit CATAS ...oovveieeieiieieeeeee ettt et et ee s 19 2.78 21 2.46
Other CONSUIMET ....euvvivieeiitieiieteeteeeesteeeesteesee e esaesbeesseeseesseesaesseeseeseens 17 3.11 19 3.32
TOtal COMSUIMET......eiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e et e e e e e eaaeeeeeennnaes $ 1,227 6.42% $ 1,316 6.80%

M At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, residential mortgage loan delinquency includes $1,041 million and $1,074 million, respectively, of loans that

are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.
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Nonperforming The following table summarizes the status of our consumer loan portfolio:

Accruing Loans

Performing Nonaccrual Contractually Past
Loans Loans Due 90 days or More Total
(in millions)
At March 31, 2014
Consumer:
Residential MOTtZages ......ceevvieveevvierieiieienieeieeie e $ 14993 § 9207 $ — § 15,900
Home equity mortgages. .......c.ceceeerervenenenenenienenieneeeeenennes 1,867 71 — 1,938
Total residential MOTtZALES......cveveverrereiereieeiererieeeieene, 16,860 978 — 17,838
Credit CardS......cvevvieieeieeieeiieieeeete e 669 — 14 683
Other CONSUMET ....cooviiiieeiieceiee et 470 — 13 483
TOtAl COMSUIMET .....veeeeee ettt e e e e e e $ 17999 $ 978 $ 27 $ 19,004
At December 31, 2013 - -
Consumer:
Residential MOTtZages ..........cveveveirvrrereiririerereieeeereeseseeseeenn, $ 14877 $ 949 § — $ 15826
Home equity MOrtgages. .......c.coueerirererenenenieneeneeeeeeeeneenes 1,934 77 — 2,011
Total residential MOItEages. ........ccoevveruerierenieieieceieeen 16,811 1,026 — 17,837
Credit CardS.......oovveecvieeieeee et re e 840 — 14 854
Other CONSUIMET ....eovveiiieiiiieieeieeteeeereeeesteeeesseeee e esaesreeseens 496 — 14 510
TOtA]l COMSUIMET ... eeeeens $ 18,147 §$ 1,026 $ 28 $ 19,201

Troubled debt restructurings See discussion of impaired loans above for further details on this credit quality indicator.

Concentration of Credit Risk At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, our loan portfolio included interest-only residential
mortgage loans totaling $3,679 million and $3,643 million, respectively. An interest-only residential mortgage loan allows a
customer to pay the interest-only portion of the monthly payment for a period of time which results in lower payments during the
initial loan period. However, subsequent events affecting a customer's financial position could affect the ability of customers to
repay the loan in the future when the principal payments are required which increases the credit risk of this loan type.
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5. Allowance for Credit Losses

The following table summarizes the changes in the allowance for credit losses by product and the related loan balance by product
during the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:

Commercial Consumer
Business
Construction and Home
and Other Corporate Global Other Residential Equity Credit Other
Real Estate Banking Banking Comm’l Mortgages Mortgages Card Consumer Total

(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Allowance for credit losses — beginning

of period.......covvviviiiiiiniiiiie $ 108 $ 112 $ 68 $ 20§ 186 $ 49 §$ 50 $ 13 8 606
Provision charged (credited) to income.... 2 19 7 “) (16) 2 5 1 16
Charge offs ......cccooeveviciiciccccee 19) (5) 8) — an 5) an ?2) 67
Recoveries 2 3 — 3 3 6 1 1 19
Net (charge offs) recoveries .................... 17 ?2) 8) 3 14) 1 10) 1) (48)
Allowance for credit losses — end of
PEriod ...c.coviiiiiii $ 93 § 129 § 67 § 19 $ 156 $ 52 $§ 45 § 13 § 574
Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment ..., $ 84 $ 126 $ 67 $ 18 8 9% $ 50 $ 43§ 13§ 497
Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment 9 3 — 1 60 2 2 — 77

Total allowance for credit losses.............. $ 93 $ 129 § 67 $ 19 § 156 $ 52 $§ 45 § 13 § 574

Loans:

Collectively evaluated for impairment..... g 8905 $ 15681 $21,979 $ 3,031 $§ 14,082 $ 1919 $ 674 $ 483 $66,754
.. . . (1)
Individually evaluated for impairment' .. 260 17 _ 20 202 19 9 _ 527

Loans carried at lower of amortized cost

or fair value less cost to sell — — — — 1,616 — — — 1,616
Total 10anS .......ovuvreveiieiiiiiiins $ 9,165 $ 15,698 $21,979 $ 3,051 § 15900 $ 1,938 $ 683 $ 483  $68,897
Three Months Ended March 31, 2013
Allowance for credit losses — beginning

of period......c.coeevreeennccnncces $ 162 $ 97 $§ 41 $ 17 $ 210§ 45 $ 55 8 20§ 647
Provision charged (credited) to income.... 9 2 (1) — 3) 17 2) (1) 21

Charge offs .....ceoeveeueireeeceeee (58) 6) — — (16) (12) (12) (6) (110)
RECOVETIES ..ouvveieeieeieiesieieeeieece e 3 3 — — 1 — 1 2 10

Net (charge offs) recoveries ...........c.c...... (55) 3) — — (15) (12) (11) (4) (100)
Allowance for credit losses — end of

PELIOd .o $ 116 $ 9% $ 40 3 17 8 192  §$ 50 $§ 42§ 15 $ 568
Ending balance: collectively evaluated -

for IMpairment ............coceeevveveeeereereenns $ 89 § 88 § 40 $ 17§ 115§ 47 $ 37 $ 15 $§ 448
Ending balance: individually evaluated

for impairment .............ccoeueveueuerenenennnns 27 8 — — 77 3 5 — 120
Total allowance for credit losses $ 116 $ 9% $ 40 § 17 $ 192§ 50 $§ 42§ 15 $§ 568
Loans:
Collectively evaluated for impairment $ 7,926 $ 12,678 $19,700 $ 2,803 $ 13,962 $ 2215 $ 736 $ 578 $60,598
Individually evaluated for impairment .. 393 47 18 74 216 21 13 — 782
Loans carried at lower of amortized cost
or fair value less cost to sell — — — — 1,552 — — — 1,552

Total 10ans .........ccccoeevvviviiiiiniiicne $ 8319 $ 12,725 $19,718 § 2877 § 15,730 $ 2236 $ 749 $ 578  $62,932

M For consumer loans, these amounts represent TDR Loans for which we evaluate reserves using a discounted cash flow methodology. Each loan is individually

identified as a TDR Loan and then grouped together with other TDR Loans with similar characteristics. The discounted cash flow analysis is then applied
to these groups of TDR Loans. Loans individually evaluated for impairment exclude TDR loans that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value
of the collateral less cost to sell which totaled $718 million and $632 million at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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6. Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)

COMMETCIAL JOANS ....ovviiiiiieeieiieieee ettt sttt et e e e beesb e st essesseessesseessesseessesssensesssessenssens $ 864 $ 76
Consumer loans:

Residential MOTEZAZES .....covevueruiriirierieietetet ettt sttt sttt ettt et et be et sae b b 42 91

OtNET COMSUITIET .....vieuvieieiieiieeiteeieeeteerteeeteesteessbeesteeesseesseeasseesseesssaeseessseessseasseesseasseeseesnsaenseesssens 63 63
TOtAL COMSUIMET .....c.uieuiieeietieiieieeie et et e et ete st esbesteesesseesseessesseessenseassansaessanssenseassessesssensesssensesssessenssens 105 154
Total 10ANS NELA FOI SALE ... ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e s nenees $ 969 §$ 230

We originate commercial loans in connection with our participation in a number of syndicated credit facilities. Syndicated loans
that are originated with the intent of selling them to unaffiliated third parties are classified as commercial loans held for sale. The
fair value of commercial loans held for sale under this program was $753 million and $58 million at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively. We have elected to designate all commercial syndicated loans classified as held for sale at fair
value under the fair value option. See Note 10, "Fair Value Option," for additional information.

Commercial loans held for sale also includes $54 million of global banking loans at March 31, 2014, which were transferred to
held for sale during the first quarter of 2014, as well as commercial real estate loans totaling $57 million and $18 million at March
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

We sell all our agency eligible loan originations servicing released directly to PHH Mortgage. Also included in residential mortgage
loans held for sale are subprime residential mortgage loans with a fair value of $27 million and $46 million at March 31,2014 and
December 31,2013, respectively, which were acquired from unaffiliated third parties and from HSBC Finance Corporation ("HSBC
Finance") with the intent of securitizing or selling the loans to third parties. Gains and losses from the sale of residential mortgage
loans are reflected as a component of residential mortgage banking revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of income.

Loans held for sale are subject to market risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk, in that their value will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market conditions, as well as the credit environment. PHH Mortgage is obligated to purchase agency eligible loans
from us as of the earlier of when the customer locks the mortgage loan pricing or when the mortgage loan application is approved.
As such, we retain none of the risk of market changes in mortgage rates for these loans.

Other consumer loans held for sale includes certain student loans which we no longer originate.

Excluding the commercial loans designated under fair value option discussed above, loans held for sale are recorded at the lower
of amortized cost or fair value. While the initial carrying amount of loans held for sale continued to exceed fair value at March
31, 2014, we experienced a decrease in the valuation allowance for consumer loans held for sale during the three months ended
March 31, 2014 due primarily to loan sales. The valuation allowance on consumer loans held for sale was $59 million and $77
million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
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7. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Mortgage servicing rights:

RESIACIILIAL ...ttt ettt ettt sttt senene $ 205 $ 227
COMIMETCIAL ...ttt 2 10
Total mortgage Servicing rights..........ccooiiiriiriiiiiniiieiciceeee et $ 207§ 237
Purchased credit card relationShips..........coevverierieriiiiiieieieter ettt 52 54
Favorable [€aSe a@IEEIMENLS .........coiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt st et s e e sbeenaeseeenbeeanens 3 4
Total INtANZIDIE ASSELS ......eeueiuiriiitiriiitieterterte ettt sttt ettt ettt et ebeebe bt saea $ 262 $ 295

Mortgage Servicing Rights ("MSRs") A servicing asset is a contract under which estimated future revenues from contractually
specified cash flows, such as servicing fees and other ancillary revenues, are expected to exceed the obligation to service the
financial assets. We recognize the right to service mortgage loans as a separate and distinct asset at the time they are acquired or
when originated loans are sold.

MSRs are subject to credit, prepayment and interest rate risk, in that their value will fluctuate as a result of changes in these
economic variables. Interest rate risk is mitigated through an economic hedging program that uses securities and derivatives to
offset changes in the fair value of MSRs. Since the hedging program involves trading activity, risk is quantified and managed using
a number of risk assessment techniques.

Residential mortgage servicing rights Residential MSRs are initially measured at fair value at the time that the related loans are
sold and remeasured at fair value at each reporting date. Changes in fair value of MSRs are reflected in residential mortgage
banking revenue in the period in which the changes occur. Fair value is determined based upon the application of valuation models
and other inputs. The valuation models incorporate assumptions market participants would use in estimating future cash flows.
The reasonableness of these valuation models is periodically validated by reference to external independent broker valuations and
industry surveys.

The following table summarizes the critical assumptions used to calculate the fair value of residential MSRs:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
Annualized constant prepayment rate ("CPR").....cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiniiieseeeeeeee e 12.7% 11.3%
CONSTANT QISCOUNTE TALE ....eueetentieiiete ettt sttt ettt sttt et e et e bt ea et e e st e st e et e ebeemtesbeenaesbeenbesseenbeennens 12.9 12.7
Weighted aVerage 1ife.......c.ooviriiiiiieeeeee ettt ettt ea e neennens 4.9 53
The following table summarizes residential MSRs activity:
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Fair value of MSRs:
Be@inning DALANCE .........cociiuiiiiiiiiiciiiii ettt ettt ettt ettt a ettt etseteereeteeteeaeereeteeaeeren $ 227 § 168
Additions related t0 10an SALES .........ooiiiiiiiiiee et e — 6
Changes in fair value due to:
Change in valuation model inputs Or aSSUMPLIONS ........ecvverviererreereerierieeeesteeeesseeeesseesesseessesseens (12) 26
CUSEOMET PAYIMICIIES .....ceuvetieutieueeteeteetteeeeteetesteenteestenteeseeteemeeteeneeeseeneeeseesesmeesesneenseensenseeneanseans (10) (10)
ENAING DAIANCE ......ovivitieietiectiecte ettt ettt ettt sttt sb et bt e bese b se b ese et e se et e e ebe s ete e ns $ 205 S 190

The outstanding principal balance of serviced for others mortgages, which are not included in the consolidated balance sheet,
totaled $26,003 million and $26,951 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Servicing fees collected are included in residential mortgage banking revenue and totaled $18 million and $21 million during the
three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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During the second quarter of 2013, we completed the conversion of our mortgage processing and servicing operations to PHH
Mortgage. Under the terms of the agreement, PHH Mortgage provides us with mortgage origination processing services as well
as the sub-servicing of our portfolio of owned and serviced for others mortgages with an outstanding principal balance of $43,126
million and $44,039 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Although we continue to own both the
mortgages on our balance sheet and the mortgage servicing rights associated with the serviced loans at the time of conversion, we
now sell our agency eligible originations beginning with May 2013 applications to PHH Mortgage on a servicing released basis
which results in no new mortgage servicing rights being recognized.

Commercial mortgage servicing rights Commercial MSRs represent servicing rights associated with commercial mortgage loans
originated and sold to FNMA and FHLMC and are accounted for using the lower of amortized cost or fair value method. During
the fourth quarter of 2013, we decided to sell $8 million of our commercial mortgage servicing rights and, as a result, we consider
these assets held for sale at March 31, 2014. As the estimated sale price of these MSRs was in excess of its carrying amount, these
MSRs continue to be carried at amortized cost.

Purchased credit card relationships In March 2012, we purchased from HSBC Finance the account relationships associated with
$746 million of credit card receivables which were not included in the sale to Capital One at a fair value of $108 million.
Approximately $43 million of this value was associated with the credit card receivables sold to First Niagara. The remaining $65
million was included in intangible assets and is being amortized over the estimated useful life of the credit card relationships which
is ten years.

8.  Goodwill

During the first quarter of 2014, there were no events or changes in circumstances to indicate that it is more likely than not that
the fair values of any of our reporting units have reduced below their respective carrying amounts.

9.  Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the derivative instruments entered into are for trading, market making and risk management
purposes. For financial reporting purposes, a derivative instrument is designated in one of the following categories: (a) financial
instruments held for trading, (b) hedging instruments designated as a qualifying hedge under derivative and hedge accounting
principles or (c) a non-qualifying economic hedge. The derivative instruments held are predominantly swaps, futures, options and
forward contracts. All derivatives are stated at fair value. Where we enter into enforceable master netting arrangements with
counterparties, the master netting arrangements permit us to net those derivative asset and liability positions and to offset cash
collateral held and posted with the same counterparty.

The following table presents the fair value of derivative contracts by major product type on a gross basis. Gross fair values exclude
the effects of both counterparty netting as well as collateral, and therefore are not representative of our exposure. The table below
presents the amounts of counterparty netting and cash collateral that have been offset in the consolidated balance sheet, as well as
cash and securities collateral posted and received under enforceable credit support agreements that do not meet the criteria for
netting. Derivative assets and liabilities which are not subject to an enforceable master netting agreement, or are subject to a netting
agreement that we have not yet determined to be enforceable, have not been netted in the table below. Where we have received or
posted collateral under credit support agreements, but have not yet determined such agreements are enforceable, the related collateral
also has not been netted in the table below.
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March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative
assets liabilities assets liabilities

(in millions)

Derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges”

OTC-CIEAIEAD ...t s et ee e e ese s es s eereen $ 49 $ 24§ 75 8 20
BAIALETAl OTCD ... s eee s eseees oo s e e eereese e 86 224 203 192
INterest rate COMEIACES .................cooiiiiiieiiiii et eae e 135 248 278 212

Derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges"

BilAteral OTC® ........oooooooimieeeereeeececesessssssess e sessssssssssss s sssssssss s — 17 — 3
Foreign exchange cONtracts..................cccocooviiiiiiiiiciccceeeeeee et — 17 — 3
OTC-ClRAred® ..........ooooeeeeeeeee et 14 — 16 —
Bilateral OTC® ..........ovvvoooorecevoeeese oo 10 90 16 62
Interest rate COMEIACES .............c.ocoiiiiiiiieiciiecceteee et aene 24 90 32 62
Total derivatives accounted for as hedges.......................ccoevevieioviviiiiceeeeeee e 159 355 310 277
Trading derivatives not accounted for as hedges®
EXChange-traded® ..............cooorvvvvveieneeceeooeese oo 88 33 82 32
OTC-CLEArEd™ ..........coooeoeeeeceeee oo 20,571 21,525 24218 25,468
Bilateral OTC® ...... . 29,574 29,397 31,097 30,451
Interest rate contracts 50,233 50,955 55,397 55,951
EXChan@e-traded® .............oooeceeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeee e eee e eeeee e s e s s 26 11 7 16
Bilateral OTC® _..........coooiiooioeeceeee oo 13,648 12,519 15,422 14,565
Foreign exchange CONtracts ...................c.ccooooviiiiiiiiciieeeeececeeeee et 13,674 12,530 15,429 14,581
Equity contract - bilateral OTC® _...............coo.coiiiiioeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,379 1,379 1,413 1,412
EXChan@e-traded® .............oooccoeeeeeeeeeeee oo eeeee e seeeeee oo see s eeee e es s s s 52 24 181 6
Bilateral OTC® _..........coooiiooioeeceeee oo 784 791 1,402 815
Precious Metals COMEIACES...............c..oooiiieiee et 836 815 1,583 821
OTC-ClEAred ..o s e 600 612 576 604
Bilateral OTC® ..........oooooeeoeeeeeeoeee oo 3,679 3,809 4,079 4,104
Credit COMEIACES ...........ooiiii e 4,279 4,421 4,655 4,708
Other derivatives not accounted for as hedges™
Interest rate contracts - bilateral OTC® ... 543 88 470 91
Foreign exchange contracts - bilateral OTCP oo 1 35 — 44
Equity contracts - bilateral OTCD oot es e se e 758 63 789 148
Precious metals contracts - bilateral OTC® .._..............ccoo.covoivommirmeeeeseeeceseeeeeseeeseeeerenees — 26 — 36
Credit contracts - bilateral OTC® ....................ccooovriiooreeeceeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeese oo eseee e 7 92 9 11
Total derivatives 71,869 70,759 80,055 78,080
Less: Gross amounts of receivable / payable subject to enforceable master netting
agreements© s 63,166 63,166 68,616 68,616
Less: Gross amounts of cash collateral received / posted subject to enforceable master
netting agreements(s)“’) ............................................................................................................ 3,247 1,945 3,870 2,116
Net amounts of derivative assets / liabilities presented in the balance sheet ..................... 5,456 5,648 7,569 7,348
Less: Gross amounts of financial instrument collateral received / posted subject to
enforceable master netting agreements but not offset in the consolidated balance sheet 1,129 2,466 1,641 3,094
Net amounts of derivative assets / liabilities .......................c..ccocooiiiiiiiiiice $ 4,327 $ 3,182 § 5928 $ 4,254

(M Derivative assets/liabilities related to cash flow hedges, fair value hedges and derivative instruments held for purposes other than for trading are recorded

in other assets / interest, taxes and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

@ Over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives include derivatives executed and settled bilaterally with counterparties without the use of an organized exchange or

central clearing house. The credit risk associated with bilateral OTC derivatives is managed through master netting agreements and obtaining collateral.
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OTC-cleared derivatives are executed bilaterally in the OTC market but then novated to a central clearing counterparty, whereby the central clearing
counterparty becomes the counterparty to both of the original counterparties. Exchange traded derivatives are executed directly on an organized exchange
that provides pre-trade price transparency. Credit risk is minimized for OTC-cleared derivatives and exchange traded derivatives through daily margining
required by central clearing counterparties.

®  Trading related derivative assets/liabilities are recorded in trading assets/trading liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.
@ Represents the netting of derivative receivable and payable balances for the same counterparty under enforceable netting agreements.
®  Represents the netting of cash collateral posted and received by counterparty under enforceable credit support agreements.

®  Netting is performed at a counterparty level in cases where enforceable master netting and credit support agreements are in place, regardless of the type of
derivative instrument. Therefore, we have not attempted to allocate netting to the different types of derivative instruments shown in the table above.

See Note 17, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Collateral," for further information on offsetting related to resale and
repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and lending arrangements.

Derivatives Held for Risk Management Purposes Our risk management policy requires us to identify, analyze and manage risks
arising from the activities conducted during the normal course of business. We use derivative instruments as an asset and liability
management tool to manage our exposures in interest rate, foreign currency and credit risks in existing assets and liabilities,
commitments and forecasted transactions. The accounting for changes in fair value of a derivative instrument will depend on
whether the derivative has been designated and qualifies for hedge accounting.

We designate derivative instruments to offset the fair value risk and cash flow risk arising from fixed-rate and floating-rate assets
and liabilities as well as forecasted transactions. We assess the hedging relationships, both at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, using a regression approach to determine whether the designated hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting
changes in the fair value or the cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Accounting principles for qualifying hedges require us
to prepare detailed documentation describing the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, including, but
not limited to, the risk management objective, the hedging strategy and the methods to assess and measure the ineffectiveness of
the hedging relationship. We discontinue hedge accounting when we determine that the hedge is no longer highly effective, the
hedging instrument is terminated, sold or expired, the designated forecasted transaction is not probable of occurring, or when the
designation is removed by us.

Fair Value Hedges In the normal course of business, we hold fixed-rate loans and securities and issue fixed-rate senior and
subordinated debt obligations. The fair value of fixed-rate (USD and non-USD denominated) assets and liabilities fluctuates in
response to changes in interest rates or foreign currency exchange rates. We utilize interest rate swaps, forward and futures contracts
and foreign currency swaps to minimize the effect on earnings caused by interest rate and foreign currency volatility.

The changes in the fair value of the hedged item designated in a qualifying hedge are captured as an adjustment to the carrying
amount of the hedged item (basis adjustment). If the hedging relationship is terminated and the hedged item continues to exist,
the basis adjustment is amortized over the remaining life of the hedged item. We recorded basis adjustments for active fair value
hedges which increased the carrying amount of our debt by $1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014, compared
with a decrease in the carrying amount of our debt of $1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013. We amortized
$3 million of basis adjustments related to terminated and/or re-designated fair value hedge relationships during both the three
months ended March 31,2014 and 2013, respectively. The total accumulated unamortized basis adjustment amounted to an increase
in the carrying amount of our debt of $29 million and $33 million as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
Basis adjustments for active fair value hedges of available-for-sale ("AFS") securities increased the carrying amount of the securities
by $176 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014, compared with a decrease in the carrying amount of the securities
of $155 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013. Total accumulated unamortized basis adjustments for active fair
value hedges of available-for-sale securities amounted to an increase in carrying amount of $113 million as of March 31, 2014
compared with a decrease of $84 million as of December 31, 2013.
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The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as hedging
instruments in fair value hedges and the hedged items in fair value hedges and their location on the consolidated statement of
income:

Net Ineffective
Gain (Loss)

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Items Recognized
Interest Income Interest Income
(Expense) Other Income (Expense) Other Income Other Income

(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Interest rate contracts/AFS Securities................ $ 64) $ 219) $ 102§ 213§ (6)
Interest rate contracts/subordinated debt ........... 4 1) (15) 1 —

Total ..o $ 60) $ (220) $ 87 § 214 8§ (6)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2013

Interest rate contracts/AFS Securities................ $ 56) $ 170§ 112§ (174) $ “)
Interest rate contracts/subordinated debt ........... 4 ) (14) 1 —

Total ..o, $ (52) $ 169 $ 98 $ (173) $ 4)

Cash Flow Hedges We own or issue floating rate financial instruments and enter into forecasted transactions that give rise to
variability in future cash flows. As a part of our risk management strategy, we use interest rate swaps, currency swaps and futures
contracts to mitigate risk associated with variability in the cash flows. Changes in fair value of a derivative instrument associated
with the effective portion of a qualifying cash flow hedge are recognized initially in other comprehensive income. When the cash
flows for which the derivative is hedging materialize and are recorded in income or expense, the associated gain or loss from the
hedging derivative previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is reclassified into earnings in the same
accounting period in which the designated forecasted transaction or hedged item affects earnings. Ifa cash flow hedge ofa forecasted
transaction is de-designated because it is no longer highly effective, or if the hedge relationship is terminated, the cumulative gain
or loss on the hedging derivative to that date will continue to be reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) unless
it is probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will not occur by the end of the originally specified time period as documented
at the inception of the hedge, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is released into earnings. As of March 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013, active cash flow hedge relationships extend or mature through July 2036. During the three months ended March 31,
2014, $1 million of losses related to terminated and/or re-designated cash flow hedge relationships were amortized to earnings
from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) compared with losses of $4 million during the three months ended March
31, 2013. During the next twelve months, we expect to amortize $8 million of remaining losses to earnings resulting from these
terminated and/or de-designated cash flow hedges. The interest accrual related to the derivative contract is recognized in interest
income.

The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges (including amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ("AOCI")
from all terminated cash flow hedges) and their locations on the consolidated statement of income:

Gain (Loss)

Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Locati{n of Gain Recognized
Recognized Reclassed (Loss) in Income
in AOCI on o of Gai From AOCI Recognized on the
Derivative Location of Gain into Income in Income Derivative
(Effective (Loss) Reclassified (Effective on the Derivative (Ineffective
Portion) from AOCI Portion) (Ineffective Portion and Portion)
—  into Income (Effective —_—~ ____ Amount Excluded from @———
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Portion) 2014 2013 Effectiveness Testing) 2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest income
Foreign exchange contracts....... $ 1§ — (expense) $§ — $§ — Other income $§ — § —
Interest income )
Interest rate contracts................. 36) 34 (expense) 4)) 4) Other income — —
Total...oooieieieieecee e, $35 $ 34 $ S @ $ — § —
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Trading Derivatives and Non-Qualifying Hedging Activities In addition to risk management, we enter into derivative instruments
for trading and market making purposes, to repackage risks and structure trades to facilitate clients’ needs for various risk taking
and risk modification purposes. We manage our risk exposure by entering into offsetting derivatives with other financial institutions
to mitigate the market risks, in part or in full, arising from our trading activities with our clients. In addition, we also enter into
buy-protection credit derivatives with other market participants to manage our counterparty credit risk exposure. Where we enter
into derivatives for trading purposes, realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in trading revenue or residential
mortgage banking revenue. Credit losses arising from counterparty risk on over-the-counter derivative instruments and offsetting
buy protection credit derivative positions are recognized as an adjustment to the fair value of the derivatives and are recorded in
trading revenue.

We have elected the fair value option for certain fixed rate long-term debt issuances as well as hybrid instruments which include
all structured notes and structured deposits and have entered into certain derivative contracts related to these debt issuances and
hybrid instruments carried at fair value. These derivative contracts are non-qualifying hedges but are considered economic hedges.
We have also entered into credit default swaps which are designated as economic hedges against the credit risks within our loan
portfolio. In the event of an impairment loss occurring in a loan that is economically hedged, the impairment loss is recognized
as provision for credit losses while the gain on the credit default swap is recorded as other income. In addition, we also from time
to time have designated certain forward purchase or sale of to-be-announced ("TBA") securities to economically hedge mortgage
servicing rights. Changes in the fair value of TBA positions, which are considered derivatives, are recorded in residential mortgage
banking revenue. Derivative instruments designated as economic hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recorded at
fair value through profit and loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in gain (loss) on instruments designated
at fair value and related derivatives, other income or residential mortgage banking revenue while the derivative asset or liability
positions are reflected as other assets or other liabilities.

The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments held for trading purposes and their locations

on the consolidated statement of income:

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income on

Location of Gain (Loss) Derivatives

Three Months Ended March 31, Recognized in Income on Derivatives 2014 2013
(in millions)

Interest rate CONtracts ...........cccoovveviiniiinnnnne Trading revenue $ 61 § 86
Interest rate contracts ........coceeeveereeenieeneennieenne Residential mortgage banking revenue 11 (7
Foreign exchange contracts..........cc.coccecevenennene Trading revenue 25 (138)
Equity contracts..........coceeeevereereneeennenieeneeeen Trading revenue — ()
Precious metals contracts.............c.coccocreeiennnne Trading revenue 8 42
Credit CONracts ......c.ocveevereeeieeieeeiee e Trading revenue @) 147
TOtAL..eoeieieecieec e $ 98 $ 128
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The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments held for non-qualifying hedging activities
and their locations on the consolidated statement of income:

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income on

Derivatives
Location of Gain (Loss) Year Ended December 31,
Three Months Ended March 31, Recognized in Income on Derivatives 2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest rate CONtracts.........coeveeeeveeeceenenennens Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives $ 116 $ (62)
Interest rate contracts.............cee...... Residential mortgage banking revenue — (1)
Foreign exchange contracts Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives 4 3D
Equity CONtracts ........coevveevevveneeieieeecnenenenaens Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives 81 314
Precious metals contracts ..........ccceeeeeeeecnennns Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives 16 —
Credit CONractS........c.ceveueueueueueueuereieereieeeereaenes Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives 1 1
Credit contracts... Other income 4) (1)
Total................. $ 214 $ 220

Credit-Risk Related Contingent Features We enter into total return swap, interest rate swap, cross-currency swap and credit
default swap contracts, amongst others which contain provisions that require us to maintain a specific credit rating from each of
the major credit rating agencies. Sometimes the derivative instrument transactions are a part of broader structured product
transactions. [f HSBC Bank USA, National Association's ("HSBC Bank USA") credit ratings were to fall below the current ratings,
the counterparties to our derivative instruments could demand us to post additional collateral. The amount of additional collateral
required to be posted will depend on whether HSBC Bank USA is downgraded by one or more notches and whether the downgrade
is in relation to long-term or short-term ratings. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related
contingent features that were in a liability position as of March 31, 2014, was $4,838 million for which we have posted collateral
of $4,052 million. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that were in
aliability position as of December 31,2013, was $5,614 million for which we have posted collateral of $5,059 million. Substantially
all of the collateral posted is in the form of cash or securities available-for-sale. See Note 17, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged
Assets and Collateral,” for further details.

In the event of a credit downgrade, we currently do not expect HSBC Bank USA’s long-term ratings to go below A2 and A+ or
the short-term ratings to go below P-2 and A-1 by Moody’s and S&P, respectively. The following tables summarize our obligation
to post additional collateral (from the current collateral level) in certain hypothetical commercially reasonable downgrade scenarios.
It is not appropriate to accumulate or extrapolate information presented in the tables below to determine our total obligation because
the information presented to determine the obligation in hypothetical rating scenarios is not mutually exclusive.

Moody’s Long-Term Ratings
Short-Term Ratings Al A2 A3

(in millions)
P ettt ettt et b et h e st naeen $ — 3 34 $ 144
P ettt ettt bttt a bt e h et sttt et e ae et e bt e aesaeeteeaean 1 34 144
S&P Long-Term Ratings
Short-Term Ratings AA- A+ A

(in millions)
ATttt st h ettt sttt e $ — 3 — § 33
AT ettt et ettt a bt e n e ne e 5 5 38

We would be required to post $6 million of additional collateral on total return swaps if HSBC Bank USA is downgraded by S&P
and Moody’s by two notches on our long term rating accompanied by one notch downgrade in our short term rating.
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Notional Value of Derivative Contracts The following table summarizes the notional values of derivative contracts:

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions)

Interest rate:

Futures and fOrWardS ......c....eviiiiiieiii et ear e e eaaaeee s $ 165,895 $ 175,468
SWADS eeettetteeite ettt ettt st ettt b e s it e e bt e s a e e bt st e e bt e sh et e bt e e at e e bt e eht e ebe e sabeebeesbbeebeenaees 3,631,662 3,645,085
OPLIONS WITEEETI....evvivieiieiieiieeiestteteeteetesteeaesteeseseeessesseessessaessesssesseessenseessenseensesseensenses 47,508 85,021
OPLIONS PUICHASEA .....viiiiieiieciie ettt et e et esaeebeesebeebeessaesnseessseenns 53,435 87,735
3,898,500 3,993,309
Foreign Exchange:

Swaps, futures and fOrWards ..........cceecierieiiiierie e e 819,858 804,278
OPLIONS WITHEETL....c.vetiieiteieniet ettt ettt sttt ettt et bttt eb ettt se et b e ensene 111,812 82,817
OptioNS PUICRASEA .....eouviiieiieeieiieteee ettt ettt esseenaeeneenaeneas 112,903 84,835
DOttt ettt bttt ettt a e et et st bt eb e bt ket eae et e teesenensenes 77,797 52,193
1,122,370 1,024,123

Commodities, equities and precious metals:
Swaps, futures and fOrWards ..........ccoecierieeiiierie e e 48,920 41,123
OPLIONS WITHEETL....cvetiiviteteietetet ettt ettt sttt ettt et ettt eb et sae e b e e nnenne 18,007 21,531
OptioNS PUICRASEA .....eeuvieiiiieeieiieeeee ettt ettt e esseenaeeneenseseas 28,884 21,723
95,811 84,377
CTedit AETTVATIVES ....vievieiiieiieeieeieeeite et e st e et e siteesbeeseseebeessseesbeesaseesseessssesaessseessessssennseens 335,725 355,286
TOLAL ettt b ettt ne e e $ 5,452,406 $ 5,457,095
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10.  Fair Value Option

We report our results to HSBC in accordance with its reporting basis, International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"). We
typically have elected to apply fair value option accounting to selected financial instruments to align the measurement attributes
of those instruments under U.S. GAAP and IFRSs and to simplify the accounting model applied to those financial instruments.
We elected to apply fair value option ("FVO") reporting to commercial syndicated loans held for sale, certain fixed rate long-term
debt issuances and hybrid instruments which include all structured notes and structured deposits. Changes in fair value for these
assets and liabilities are reported as gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives in the consolidated
statement of income.

Loans We elected to apply FVO to certain commercial syndicated loans which are originated with the intent to sell and are included
as loans held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet. The election allows us to account for these loans at fair value which is
consistent with the manner in which the instruments are managed. Interest from these loans is recorded as interest income in the
consolidated statement of income. Because a substantial majority of the loans elected for the fair value option are floating rate
assets, changes in their fair value are primarily attributable to changes in loan-specific credit risk factors. The components of gain
(loss) related to loans designated at fair value are summarized in the table below. As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
no loans for which the fair value option has been elected are 90 days or more past due or on nonaccrual status.

Long-Term Debt (Own Debt Issuances) We elected to apply FVO for certain fixed-rate long-term debt for which we had applied
or otherwise would elect to apply fair value hedge accounting. The election allows us to achieve a similar accounting effect without
having to meet the hedge accounting requirements. The own debt issuances elected under FVO are traded in secondary markets
and, as such, the fair value is determined based on observed prices for the specific instruments. The observed market price of these
instruments reflects the effect of changes to our own credit spreads and interest rates. Interest on the fixed-rate debt accounted for
under FVO is recorded as interest expense in the consolidated statement of income. The components of gain (loss) related to long-
term debt designated at fair value are summarized in the table below.

Hybrid Instruments We elected to apply fair value option accounting to all of our hybrid instruments issued, inclusive of structured
notes and structured deposits. The valuation of the hybrid instruments is predominantly driven by the derivative features embedded
within the instruments. Cash flows of the hybrid instruments are discounted at an appropriate rate for the applicable duration of
the instrument adjusted for our own credit spreads. The credit spreads applied to structured notes are determined with reference
to our own debt issuance rates observed in the primary and secondary markets, internal funding rates, and structured note rates in
recent executions while the credit spreads applied to structured deposits are determined using market rates currently offered on
comparable deposits with similar characteristics and maturities. Interest on this debt is recorded as interest expense in the
consolidated statement of income. The components of gain (loss) related to hybrid instruments designated at fair value which
reflect the instruments described above are summarized in the table below.

The following table summarizes the fair value and unpaid principal balance for items we account for under FVO:

Unpaid Principal
Fair Value Balance

(in millions)

At March 31, 2014
Commercial syndicated 10ans.........c..ccecviierieiriniinininneeeeeeee e $ 753 $ 753
Fixed rate 1ong-term debt ..........cccovieiiieiiiiicieeec e 1,956 1,750
Hybrid instruments:
SruCtured AEPOSIES ..evveviiieiieieeieie ettt ettt se e be e b e e e e sbeesaesseensesseenees 7,637 7,407
SEUCTUIEA TMOTES ..ot e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaanans 5,735 5,455
At December 31, 2013
Commercial syndicated 10ans.........c.cccecveoieriiiririinininneeeeeeee e $ 58 % 59
Fixed rate 1ong-term debt ..........cccovieiiieiiiiicieeec e 1,893 1,750
Hybrid instruments:
Sructured dEPOSIES ...vveviiieiieieeieie ettt et seeae st be st e e saesbeesaesseensenseennes 7,740 7,539
SEIUCTUIEA NOLES ..eeuviieiiieeiieeiee ettt ettt ettt e e e e tee et eesbeeesaeesbeessseeseessseensaessseens 5,693 5,377
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Components of Gain (Loss) on Instruments at Fair Value and Related Derivatives Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives includes the changes in fair value related to interest, credit and other risks as well as the mark-to-
market adjustment on derivatives related to the financial instrument designated at fair value and net realized gains or losses on
these derivatives. The following table summarizes the components of gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related
derivatives related to the changes in fair value of the financial instrument accounted for under FVO:

Long-Term Hybrid
Loans Debt Instruments Total

(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014
Interest rate and other components'"...............ccccooorrerrririereerenn. $ — 3 382) $ (153) $ (235)

Credit risk componentm@) ..................................................................... — 19 26 45

Total mark-to-market on financial instruments designated at fair
VAIUE oottt — (63) (127) (190)

Net realized loss on financial inStruments............ccccooeveeevveeevvneeeennennn. — — — —

Mark-to-market on the related derivatives .........ccccceeveveeercencninicncnnns — 70 131 201
Net realized gain on the related long-term debt derivatives.................. — 17 — 17
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related

EIIVALIVES ..ttt $ — 3 24§ 4 3 28
Three Months Ended March 31, 2013
Interest rate and other components.............c..ccocoovevvorvoireeresenn. $ — 3 63 % (316) $ (253)
Credit risk component®® .............cocccoiviireieereeee e 21 (42) 33 12
Total mark-to-market on financial instruments designated at fair
2221 L LTRSS 21 21 (283) (241)
Net realized loss on financial instruments..............cccoceoiviiiiniiinnnns ®) — — (8)
Mark-to-market on the related derivatives ............cccceceeeeenecnecnenenee — (62) 268 206
Net realized gain on the related long-term debt derivatives.................. — 16 — 16

Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related
ETIVALIVES....c.vieuiiticereetecte ettt ettt ettt et e e et e esseete s e eteeaeereeaeennas $ 13 $ 25) $ (15) $ 27

M As it relates to hybrid instruments, interest rate and other components includes interest rate, foreign exchange and equity contract risks.

@ During the first quarter of 2014, the gain in the credit risk component for long-term debt was attributable to the widening of our own credit spreads, while

the loss in the first quarter of 2013 is attributable to the tightening of our own credit spreads

®  During the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, the gain in the credit risk component for hybrid instruments was attributable primarily to the widening of credit

spreads on structured notes.
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11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) includes certain items that are reported directly within a separate component of
shareholders’ equity. The following table presents changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) balances:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale:

Balance at beginning Of PETIOQ.........c.cuouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic ettt ettt bbbttt $ a8) $ 992
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:
Net unrealized gains (losses) arising during period, net of tax of $93 million and $(61) million, respectively ............c.co.c..... 144 (82)
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income, net of tax of $(9) million and $(47) million, respectively" ... (14) (68)
Total other comprehensive income (10SS) fOr PEIIO........c.coveuiirieiiiiririeiiiriic ettt ettt ne e 130 (150)
Balance at @nd Of PEIIOQ........c.cuoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii bbbt 112 842

Unrealized (losses) on other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities held-to-maturity:
Balance at be@inning Of PEIIOM. ........eveuiiirieiiitee ettt ettt st b b e et bt t e st st e et e bt et et e bttt e e e neen (60) —
Other comprehensive income for period:

Reclassification adjustment related to the accretion of unrealized other-than-temporary impairment, net of tax of $1

INETION™ Lottt bbbttt 1 —
Total other comprehensive INCOME fOr PETIOM. ......c.euiirieuiirieieiiieieit ettt sttt ettt ebe e 1 —
Balance at end Of PEriod..........ccviiiiiiiiiii s (59) —

Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:

Balance at beginning of period (83) (201)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:
Net gains (losses) arising during period, net of tax of $(13) million and $13 million, respectively.......c.cccoevvnrnrrrninenene. 21 21
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income, net of tax of less than $1 million and $2 million,
respectively'™ ........... 1 2
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for period... . (20) 23
Balance at €0 OF PEIIO.........o.cueririeiiirieiciiiret ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt b et b et e bttt b ettt ettt (103) (178)
Pension and postretirement benefit liability:
Balance at beginning and end Of PETIOA ..........c.cuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt 2 6)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at end of period...............c..c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiiinieeeeen $ 48 $ 658

M Amount reclassified to net income is included in other securities gains, net in our consolidated statement of income.

@ Amount reclassified to the carrying value of the debt securities is included in securities held-to-maturity in our consolidated balance sheet.
®  Amount reclassified to net income is included in interest income (expense) in our consolidated statement of income.

(€]

Amount reclassified to net income is included in salaries and employee benefits in our consolidated statement of income.
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12.  Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Defined Benefit Pension Plan The components of pension expense for the defined benefit pension plan recorded in our
consolidated statement of income and shown in the table below reflect the portion of pension expense of the combined HSBC
North America Pension Plan (either the “HSBC North America Pension Plan” or the “Plan”) which has been allocated to us.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Service cost — benefits earned during the period...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e $ 1 $ 1
Interest cost on projected benefit ObIIGALION .....c..ccueiiiiiiiiiiirir e 18 17
EXPECted IETUIT ON @SSELS ....coueiuiruiiuiiiietiiiestitetet ettt ettt st se et sttt et eae bbb st besae s nene (20) (20)
RECOZNIZEA LOSSES......cneeneiiiieieeiieteeie ettt ettt b et b ettt ettt bt bt ebe bbbttt nae e e e ene 9 13
PEINSION EXPEIISE. .....euvuveveieiaieretisesesetesetsesesesessesesesessesesesesssesesasessesesasessesesessss s esesssessesesesessesesesessesesessssssesns $ 8 § 11

Pension expense was lower during the three months ended March 31, 2014 mainly due to lower recognized losses. During the first
quarter of 2014, an additional contribution of $74 million was made to the Plan.

Postretirement Plans Other Than Pensions The components of net periodic benefit cost for our postretirement plans other than
pension are as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

IIEETESE COSE . eutititeteteiee ettt ettt ettt et sttt e b et et et eae e st es e es e e st ese et e ebees et e s e s amsenseneeneeneeseeneeseebesseesetessesensanes $ 1 S 1

Net periodic postretirement BeNETit COST........ccueuiririririririneienerer ettt $ 1 3 1
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13. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, we conduct transactions with HSBC and its subsidiaries. These transactions occur at prevailing
market rates and terms and include funding arrangements, derivative, servicing arrangements, information technology, centralized
support services, banking and other miscellaneous services. All extensions of credit by (and certain credit exposures of) HSBC
Bank USA to other HSBC affiliates (other than Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insured banks) are legally required
to be secured by eligible collateral. The following tables and discussions below present the more significant related party balances
and the income (expense) generated by related party transactions:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Assets:
Cash and due frOm DANKS .........cociieiiiiiie ittt ae e e e baessbeeseesnsaensaesnseas S 106 $ 102
Interest bearing deposits With banks 1) ..o 921 631
Trading assets 15,995 17,082
Loans.....cccoevveviieicnnnnnn.. 5,277 5,328
ORET @)oottt 1,050 1,219
TOEAL @SSELS ...ttt ettt ettt et e e ee e et e ae e et et e et e s e esse st ease st enseessenaesaseaesatenaesatessesrtesneennans $ 23349 § 24362

Liabilities:
DIEPOSIES 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt et st ettt et e st ettt et et e s et et et e s st et et et e se et e st e aeat et et eenes et et et ene et s seaens $ 13518 § 16,936
Trading HADIlIIEs 2 ..........o.vveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 17,833 19,463
Short-term borrowings .... 1,712 1,514
o) Y 157 0 0 6 <1 o TSRS URSRR 3,988 3,987
OHhET ) oo 617 573
TOtAl HHADIIIEIES. .. eeuvivieieetieieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt e b et e e tb et e esseeseesseereesseereessesseessesssesensnens $ 37,668 $§ 42473

M Includes interest bearing deposits with HSBC Mexico S.A. of $800 million and $500 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Trading assets and trading liabilities do not reflect the impact of netting which allows the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts if certain
conditions are met. Trading assets and liabilities primarily consist of derivatives contracts.

® " Other assets and other liabilities primarily consist of derivative contracts.
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Income/(Expense):
INEEIESE IMCOIMIE ....vveutieieiieiieeteete ettt ett et e st e st e setesteesae st esse et aenseeseenseeseeseensesseensesseensenseensenssenseassanseanseseensessns $ 37 §$ 22
INEEIEST EXPEIISE ...t et st st s bt (18) (20)
Nt INEETEST INCOIMIC ....e.vreuveeientesiteteetieteeeteteestenteeaseseessesseessesseessesseensesssensessaensesssensenssenseensenseensenseensesseensesses $ 19 § 2

Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliate:

Fees and commissions:

HSBC FInance COorporation ........cc.coecueieieieirineniietesestestetestestetesenteneeeese st esessesae st ssesaesaessesenaennes $ 15 3 21
HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. ("HMUS") ..o 4 5
Other HSBC affilIates ......c.coueiiiiiiiiiieieieieieene sttt st 19 16
Other HSBC affiliates INCOIMIE ........c.evveuirieiirieiirieiirieierteitetee ettt ettt sttt enesnene 9 12
TOtal ffTHHIATE INCOIME. ... .eeiiiieeiiiiee ettt et e e e e s e et e e e e eeaaaeeeeeesataeeeessensaeeeessennaaseeeesanes $ 47 $ 54
Support services from HSBC affiliates: -
HSBC FINance Corporation.........ccccoueeuerieriereieieieiieieeiesteetesie s stestesteseessessenteneeueeseesessessesaessessessensensennens $ 3 % 4
HMUS ..o (53) (52)
HSBC Technology & Services (USA) ("HTSU™) ...ooiiiiiiiiiieiececreeeteeee et (253) (233)
Other HSBC affIlIAteS.......coueiuiriirtiierieeteet ettt ettt s be bbbt na e neens 45) (35)
Total support services from HSBC affiliates........cccceoieviriiiiiininininiiccccceeceee e $ (354) § (329
Stock based compensation expense With HSBC V) ...........o.coooiiiiriiiiiececiese e s DS 9

M Employees may participate in one or more stock compensation plans sponsored by HSBC. These expenses are included in Salaries and employee benefits

in our consolidated statement of income. Employees also may participate in a defined benefit pension plan and other postretirement plans sponsored by
HSBC North America which are discussed in Note 12, "Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits."

Funding Arrangements with HSBC Affiliates:

We use HSBC affiliates to fund a portion of our borrowing and liquidity needs. Long-term debt with affiliates reflects $4.0 billion
in senior debt with HSBC North America. Of this amount, $1.0 billion is a 5 year floating rate note which matures in August 2014
and $3.0 billion that matures in three equal installments of $1.0 billion in April 2015, 2016 and 2017. The debt bears interest at
90 day USD Libor plus a spread, with each maturity at a different spread.

We have the following funding arrangements available with HSBC affiliates, although there were no outstanding balances at either
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

e $900 million committed line of credit with HSBC Investment (Bahamas) Limited, which was increased to $1,000 million in
April, 2014,

e $500 million committed line of credit with HSBC; and
¢ $150 million uncommitted line of credit with HSBC North America Inc. ("HNAI").

We have also incurred short-term borrowings with certain affiliates, largely related to metals activity. In addition, certain affiliates
have also placed deposits with us.

Lending and Derivative Related Arrangements Extended to HSBC Affiliates:
At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we have the following loan balances outstanding with HSBC affiliates:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
HSBC Finance COrPOTatiOn ...........cccievieviivietiteteteeeseeseereereeteeteeseeseesessessessessessessessessessessessesseseaseesens $ 3015 § 3,015
HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. ("HMUS") and SubSidiaries ..........cccueeeueervueeirieiiieneesieeseeeveesieeeveevee e 931 199
HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. ......coooiioieieieseeesee ettt sttt eesaenseeseensesseensesneensennnes 1,000 1,000
Other short-term affiliate IeNding..........cccccviiieriiiieiiciciecee ettt esbe e beesnens 331 1,114
TOTAL ASSELS ...ttt ettt e et e e et e e et e e st e e eateeeeaeeeseaeeeeaaeeeseaaeeesaeeesanteeseaaeesateesaneeesenneeesnes S 5277 $ 5,328
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HSBC Finance Corporation - We have extended a $5.0 billion, 364 day uncommitted unsecured revolving credit agreement to
HSBC Finance which allows for borrowings with maturities of up to 15 years. At both March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
$3.0 billion was outstanding under this credit agreement with $512 million maturing in September 2017, $1.5 billion maturing in
January 2018 and $1.0 billion maturing in September 2018. We have also extended a committed revolving credit facility to HSBC
Finance of $1.0 billion which did not have any outstanding balance at either March 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013. This credit
facility expires in May 2017.

HMUS and subsidiaries - We have extended loans and lines, some of them uncommitted, to HMUS and its subsidiaries in the
amount of $6.7 billion and $3.8 billion at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, of which $931 million and $199
million, respectively, was outstanding. The outstanding balances mature at various stages between 2014 and 2015.

HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. - We have extended uncommitted lines of credit to HSBC Bank Brasil in the amount of $1.5 billion at
both March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, of which $1.0 billion was outstanding at both March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013. The outstanding balances mature at various stages between 2014 and 2015.

We have extended lines of credit to various other HSBC affiliates totaling $2.3 billion which did not have any outstanding balances
at either March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Other short-term affiliate lending - In addition to loans and lines extended to affiliates discussed above, from time to time we
may extend loans to affiliates which are generally short term in nature. At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, there were
$331 million and $1,114 million of these loans outstanding.

HUSTI is also committed to provide liquidity facilities to backstop the liquidity risk in Regency, an asset-backed commercial paper
conduit consolidated by our affiliate, in relation to assets originated in the U.S. region. The notional amount of the liquidity facilities
provided by HUSI to Regency was approximately $2.3 billion as of March 31, 2014, which is less than half of Regency's total
liquidity facilities.

As part of a global HSBC strategy to offset interest rate or other market risks associated with debt issues and derivative contracts
with unaffiliated third parties, we routinely enter into derivative transactions with HSBC Finance and other HSBC affiliates. The
notional value of derivative contracts related to these contracts was approximately $1,134.4 billion and $1,210.6 billion at March
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The net credit exposure (defined as the net fair value of derivative assets and
liabilities) related to the contracts was approximately $319 million and $845 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. Our Global Banking and Markets business accounts for these transactions on a mark to market basis, with the change
invalue of contracts with HSBC affiliates substantially offset by the change in value of related contracts entered into with unaffiliated
third parties.

Services Provided Between HSBC Affiliates:

Under multiple service level agreements, we provide services to and receive services from various HSBC affiliates. The following
summarizes these activities:

» Servicing activities for residential mortgage loans across North America are performed both by us and HSBC Finance. As a
result, we receive servicing fees from HSBC Finance for services performed on their behalf and pay servicing fees to HSBC
Finance for services performed on our behalf. The fees we receive from HSBC Finance are reported in Servicing and other
fees from HSBC affiliates. Fees we pay to HSBC Finance are reported in Support services from HSBC affiliates. This includes
fees paid for the servicing of residential mortgage loans (with a carrying amount of $944 million and $983 million at March
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013) that we purchased from HSBC Finance in 2003 and 2004.

» HSBC North America's technology and certain centralized support services including human resources, corporate affairs, risk
management, legal, compliance, tax, finance and other shared services that are centralized within HTSU. HTSU also provides
certain item processing and statement processing activities to us. The fees we pay HTSU for the centralized support services
and processing activities are included in Support services from HSBC affiliates. We also receive fees from HTSU for providing
certain administrative services to them. The fees we receive from HTSU are included in Servicing and other fees from HSBC
affiliates.

*  Weuse HSBC Global Resourcing (UK) Ltd., an HSBC affiliate located outside of the United States, to provide various support
services to our operations including among other areas, customer service, systems, collection and accounting functions. The
expenses related to these services are included in Support services from HSBC affiliates.

*  We utilize HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. ("HSI") for broker dealer, debt underwriting, customer referrals, loan syndication and
all other treasury and traded markets related services, pursuant to service level agreements. Fees charged by HSI for broker
dealer, loan syndication services, treasury and traded markets related services are included in Support services from HSBC
affiliates. Debt underwriting fees charged by HSI are deferred as a reduction of long-term debt and amortized to interest expense
over the life of the related debt. Customer referral fees paid to HSI are netted against customer fee income, which is included
in other fees and commissions.
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Other Transactions with HSBC Affiliates

We also received revenue from our affiliates for rent on certain office space, which has been recorded as a component of support
services from HSBC affiliates. Rental revenue from our affiliates was $14 million and $12 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

14.  Business Segments

We have four distinct business segments that we utilize for management reporting and analysis purposes, which are aligned with
HSBC's global businesses and business strategy. There have been no changes in the basis of our segmentation or measurement of
segment profit as compared with the presentation in our 2013 Form 10-K.

Our segment results are presented in accordance with IFRSs (a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure) on a legal entity basis ("IFRSs
Basis") as operating results are monitored and reviewed, trends are evaluated and decisions about allocating resources, such as
employees are made almost exclusively on an IFRSs basis since we report financial information to our parent, HSBC, in accordance
with IFRSs. We continue to monitor capital adequacy, establish dividend policy and report to regulatory agencies on a U.S. GAAP
legal entity basis.

A summary of the significant differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs as they impact our results are presented in Note 25,
"Business Segments," in our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no significant changes since December 31, 2013 in the differences
between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs impacting our results.
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The following table summarizes the results for each segment on an IFRSs basis, as well as provides a reconciliation of total results
under IFRSs to U.S. GAAP consolidated totals.

IFRSs Consolidated Amounts

Adjustments/ IFFSS' U.S. GAAP
Reconciling IFRSs R - C lidated
RBWM CMB GB&M PB Other Items Total Adjustments®  fications® Totals

(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Net interest income"........ $ 198 § 187 § 97 $ 49 $ (13) $ G $ 513§ asy $ 21§ 519
Other operating income..... 113 68 294 25 25 5 530 @ (26) 500
Total operating income..... 311 255 391 74 12 — 1,043 19) 5) 1,019
Loan impairment
charges™ ..o, 2 7 15 5) — — 19 4 ) 16
309 248 376 79 12 — 1,024 23) 2 1,003
Operating expenses®........ 279 158 239 55 25 — 756 ®) 2 750
Profit before income tax
EXPENSE ..ovvvvererrisirrisrreeas $ 30 8 90 $ 137 $§ 24 $§ (13) § — $ 268 § as) s — 8 253
Balances at end of -
period:
Total assets............cooouenen. $19,143 $25,594 §$ 181,545 $8231 $ 723 $ — $235236 $ (47,888) $ (174) $ 187,174
Total loans, net................. 16,177 24,509 17,485 6,022 — — 64,193 1,411 2,719 68,323
GoodWill ..o, 581 358 — 325 — — 1,264 348 — 1,612
Total deposits.................... 30,206 21,254 30,126 12,529 — — 94,115 (3,247) 14,663 105,531
Three Months Ended March 31, 2013
Net interest income"........ $ 215 $ 170 $ 109 $§ 45§ (14) $ @ $ 521§ a7 s 1 s 505
Other operating income..... 107 65 382 28 17) 4 569 26 3) 592
Total operating income..... 322 235 491 73 31) — 1,090 9 ) 1,097
Loan impairment
charges™ ..o, 32 14 3 1 — — 50 (23) (6) 21
290 221 488 72 31) — 1,040 32 4 1,076
Operating expenses........ 291 162 230 60 21 — 764 — 4 768
Profit before income tax
EXPENSE .ovverrrererrnererenennns $ 1 s 59 $ 258§ 12§ (52) $ — 3 276 $ R — 3 308
Balances at end of -
period:
Total assets.........coovvvvnrvena. $19,634 $20,919 $ 204,160 $7.831 $ 164 $ — $252,708 $  (63,415) $ 92 $ 189,385
Total loans, net................. 16,747 19,449 17,063 5,722 — — 58,981 1,194 2,189 62,364
GoodWill ..o, 581 358 480 325 — — 1,744 484 — 2,228
Total deposits................... 34253 21,464 32,476 12,941 — — 101,134 (5,319) 21,234 117,049

(" Net interest income of each segment represents the difference between actual interest earned on assets and interest paid on liabilities of the segment adjusted

for a funding charge or credit. Segments are charged a cost to fund assets (e.g. customer loans) and receive a funding credit for funds provided (e.g. customer
deposits) based on equivalent market rates. The objective of these charges/credits is to transfer interest rate risk from the segments to one centralized unit
in Treasury and more appropriately reflect the profitability of segments.

@ Expenses for the segments include fully apportioned corporate overhead expenses.
3)

@

The provision assigned to the segments is based on the segments' net charge offs and the change in allowance for credit losses.
Represents adjustments associated with differences between IFRSs and U.S. GAAP bases of accounting.

) Represents differences in financial statement presentation between IFRSs and U.S. GAAP.
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15. Retained Earnings and Regulatory Capital Requirements

Bank dividends are a major source of funds for payment by us of sharecholder dividends, and along with interest earned on
investments, cover our operating expenses which consist primarily of interest on outstanding debt. Any significant dividend from
HSBC Bank USA would require the approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the "OCC"). Approval is also
required if the total of all dividends HSBC Bank USA declares in any year exceeds the cumulative net profits for that year, combined
with the profits for the two preceding years reduced by dividends attributable to those years. Under a separate restriction, payment
of dividends is prohibited in amounts greater than undivided profits then on hand, after deducting actual losses and bad debts. Bad
debts are debts due and unpaid for a period of six months unless well secured, as defined, and in the process of collection.

The following table summarizes the capital amounts and ratios of HSBC USA and HSBC Bank USA, calculated in accordance
with banking regulations in effect as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Capital Well-Capitalized Actual Capital Well-Capitalized Actual
Amount Minimum Ratio( ) Ratio Amount Minimum Ratio Ratio®

(dollars are in millions)

Total capital ratio:

HSBC USA InC. ..oooevvveveiineen $ 20,639 16.05% § 20,242 10.00% 16.36%

HSBC Bank USA........ccccoovenenee. 22,267 10.00% 18.18 21,324 10.00 18.03
Tier 1 capital ratio:

HSBC USA Inc. ..coceevvvriienne. 14,964 11.63 14,409 6.00 11.65

HSBC Bank USA.......cccoeenvnenee. 16,732 8.00 13.66 15,763 6.00 13.33
Common equity Tier 1 ratio™:

HSBC USA INC. oo, 13,486 10.48 12,301 500 @ 994

HSBC Bank USA.......ccccveienene 16,732 6.50 13.66 15,763 5.00 13.33
Tier 1 leverage ratio:

HSBC USA INC. ..o 14,964 8.16 14,409 3.00 © 7.90

HSBC Bank USA......ccccoeevnnee. 16,732 5.00 9.49 15,763 5.00 9.06
Risk weighted assets:

HSBC USA InC. ..oooovvvenrveniinene 128,633 123,737

HSBC Bank USA.......ccccveienene 122,505 118,285

" HSBC Bank USA is categorized as "well-capitalized," as defined by its principal regulators. To be categorized as well-capitalized under regulatory guidelines,
a banking institution must have the minimum ratios reflected in the above table, and must not be subject to a directive, order, or written agreement to meet
and maintain specific capital levels. As previously discussed, the minimum regulatory ratios for a depository institution to be well-capitalized will increase
in 2015 under Basel 111, and the new ratios are shown above. There is no definition of a well-capitalized bank holding company under Basel II1.

@ At December 31,2013, capital ratios were reported according to Basel I rules and reflect the impact of the U.S. market risk final rule (known in the industry
as Basel 2.5).

®  Basel III introduces the common equity Tier 1 ratio. For December 31, 2013, the ratios presented are the Tier 1 common ratio calculated under Basel 1.

@ There was no Tier 1 common ratio component in the definition of a well-capitalized bank holding company under Basel 1. The ratio shown is the required
minimum Tier 1 common ratio, calculated under Basel I, as included in the Federal Reserve Board's final rule regarding capital plans for U.S. bank holding
companies with total consolidated assets of $50 billion or more.

©®  There was no Tier 1 leverage ratio component in the definition of a well-capitalized bank holding company under Basel I. The ratio shown is the minimum
required ratio.

In2013, U.S. regulators issued a final rule implementing the Basel I11 capital framework in the U.S. which, for banking organizations

such as HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA, took effect January 1, 2014 with certain provisions being phased in over

time through the beginning of 2019. As a result, beginning in 2014, capital ratios are reported in accordance with the Basel 111

transition rules within the final rule.

We did not receive any cash capital contributions from our immediate parent, HNAI during the first three months of 2014. We did
not make any capital contributions to our subsidiary, HSBC Bank USA, during the three months ended March 31, 2014.
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16. Variable Interest Entities

In the ordinary course of business, we have organized special purpose entities ("SPEs") primarily to structure financial products
to meet our clients' investment needs, to facilitate clients to access and raise financing from capital markets and to securitize
financial assets held to meet our own funding needs. For disclosure purposes, we aggregate SPEs based on the purpose, risk
characteristics and business activities of the SPEs. A SPE is a VIE if it lacks sufficient equity investment at risk to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support or, as a group, the holders of the equity investment at risk lack either
a) the power through voting or similar rights to direct the activities of the entity that most significantly impacts the entity's economic
performance; or b) the obligation to absorb the entity's expected losses, the right to receive the expected residual returns, or both.

Variable Interest Entities We consolidate VIEs in which we hold a controlling financial interest as evidenced by the power to
direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact its economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of, or the
right to receive benefits from, the VIE that could be potentially significant to the VIE and therefore are deemed to be the primary
beneficiary. We take into account our entire involvement in a VIE (explicit or implicit) in identifying variable interests that
individually or in the aggregate could be significant enough to warrant our designation as the primary beneficiary and hence require
us to consolidate the VIE or otherwise require us to make appropriate disclosures. We consider our involvement to be significant
where we, among other things, (i) provide liquidity put options or other liquidity facilities to support the VIE's debt obligations;
(i) enter into derivative contracts to absorb the risks and benefits from the VIE or from the assets held by the VIE; (iii) provide a
financial guarantee that covers assets held or liabilities issued; (iv) design, organize and structure the transaction; and (v) retain a
financial or servicing interest in the VIE.

We are required to evaluate whether to consolidate a VIE when we first become involved and on an ongoing basis. In almost all
cases, a qualitative analysis of our involvement in the entity provides sufficient evidence to determine whether we are the primary
beneficiary. In rare cases, a more detailed analysis to quantify the extent of variability to be absorbed by each variable interest
holder is required to determine the primary beneficiary.

Consolidated VIEs The following table summarizes assets and liabilities related to our consolidated VIEs as of March 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013 which are consolidated on our balance sheets. Assets and liabilities exclude intercompany balances that
eliminate in consolidation:

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

(in millions)

Asset-backed commercial paper conduit:

Interest bearing deposits with banks ...........cccoooeeriiiiieniieiinee 3 — 5 —
Held-to-maturity SECUTIIHIES ...oovverveeerereeeienieeiesieeiesieeeeseeseseeeneens 180 — 200 —
Oher @SSELS ..euvevieiieieieietete ettt sttt st 41 — 45 —
Other Habilities.......vevuieiirieieiee e — — —
SUDLOAL.....cveieeiirieriertcet et 224 — 250
Low income housing limited liability partnership:
OthET @SSELS ..eeeeiieiietieieet ettt ettt sttt sttt ene e 438 — 457 —
Long-term debt.......c.ccveiieiieiicieiccee e — 92 — 92
Other Habilities.......cueiieiirieieiee e — 80 — 90
N1V 1 01701 721 E RS $ 438 $ 172 §$ 457  $ 182
TTORAL e e s see e esaeas $ 662 $ 172§ 707 $ 185

Asset-backed conduit During 2013, HSBC decided to restructure certain of its asset-backed commercial paper conduit programs
to have only one asset-backed commercial paper conduit providing securitized financing to HSBC clients globally. As part of this
initiative, our commercial paper conduit otherwise known as Bryant Park is no longer transacting new business and certain existing
Bryant Park customer transactions have been refinanced by an existing commercial paper conduit currently consolidated by HSBC
Bank plc. Bryant Park continues to exist but only to fund select legacy assets it currently holds. Upon completion of the restructure
in 2013, HSBC Bank USA became the primary beneficiary of Bryant Park at which time Bryant Park became included in our
consolidated results.

Low income housing limited liability partnership In 2009, all low income housing investments held by us were transferred to a
Limited Liability Partnership ("LLP") in exchange for debt and equity while a third party invested cash for an equity interest that
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is mandatorily redeemable at a future date. The LLP was created in order to ensure the utilization of future tax benefits from these
low income housing tax projects. The LLP was deemed to be a VIE as it does not have sufficient equity investment at risk to
finance its activities. Upon entering into this transaction, we concluded that we are the primary beneficiary of the LLP due to the
nature of our continuing involvement and, as a result, consolidate the LLP and report the equity interest issued to the third party
investor in other liabilities and the assets of the LLP in other assets on our consolidated balance sheet. The investments held by
the LLP represent equity investments in the underlying low income housing partnerships for which the LLP applies equity-method
accounting. The LLP does not consolidate the underlying partnerships because it does not have the power to direct the activities
of the partnerships that most significantly impact the economic performance of the partnerships.

Unconsolidated VIEs We also have variable interests in other VIEs that are not consolidated because we are not the primary
beneficiary. The following table provides additional information on these unconsolidated VIEs, including the variable interests
held by us and our maximum exposure to loss arising from our involvements in these VIEs, as of March 31,2014 and December 31,
2013:

Variable Interests Variable Interests Total Assets in Maximum
Held Classified Held Classified Unconsolidated Exposure
as Assets as Liabilities VIEs to Loss
(in millions)

At March 31, 2014
Asset-backed commercial paper conduits...........c..c....... $ 46 $ — 3 13423 $ 2,303
Structured note VEhicles ..........oceverineninenenenieneieens 2,819 9 6,090 5,930
TOtAl i $ 2,865 $ 9 §$ 19,513 $ 8,233
At December 31, 2013
Asset-backed commercial paper conduits....................... $ 417 $ — $ 17,044 $ 2,560
Structured note VEhicCles ..........ocevererininineneneneiens 2,272 55 6,190 5,888
0] 721 USRS $ 2,689 $ 55 % 23,234 $ 8,448

Information on the types of variable interest entities with which we are involved, the nature of our involvement and the variable
interests held in those entities is presented below.

Asset-backed commercial paper ("ABCP") conduits Separately from the Bryant Park facility discussed above, we provide liquidity
facilities to Regency, a multi-seller ABCP conduit consolidated by our affiliate. Customers sell financial assets, such as trade
receivables, to Regency, which funds the purchases by issuing short-term highly-rated commercial paper collateralized by the
assets acquired. We, along with other financial institutions, provide liquidity facilities to Regency in the form of lines of credit or
asset purchase commitments. These liquidity facilities support transactions associated with a specific seller of assets to the conduit
and we would only be required to provide support in the event of certain triggers associated with those transactions and assets.
Our obligations are generally pari passu with those of other institutions that also provide liquidity support to the same conduit or
for the same transactions. We do not provide any program-wide credit enhancements to ABCP conduits.

Each seller of assets to an ABCP conduit typically provides credit enhancements in the form of asset overcollateralization and,
therefore, bears the risk of first loss related to the specific assets transferred. We do not transfer our own assets to Regency. We
also do not provide the majority of the liquidity facilities to Regency. We have no ownership interests in, perform no administrative
duties for, and do not service any of the assets held by Regency. We are not the primary beneficiary and do not consolidate Regency.
Credit risk related to the liquidity facilities provided is managed by subjecting these facilities to our normal underwriting and risk
management processes. The $2,303 million maximum exposure to loss presented in the table above represents the maximum
amount of loans and asset purchases we could be required to fund under the liquidity facilities. The maximum loss exposure is
estimated assuming the facilities are fully drawn and the underlying collateralized assets are in default with zero recovery value.

Structured note vehicles Our involvement in structured note vehicles includes derivatives such as interest rate and currency swaps
and investments in the vehicles' debt instruments. With respect to several of these VIEs, we hold variable interests in the form of
total return swaps under which we receive the total return on certain assets held by the VIE and pay a market rate of return.

We also hold credit default swaps with these structured note VIEs under which we receive credit protection on specified reference
assets in exchange for the payment of a premium. Through these derivatives, the VIEs assume the credit risk associated with the
reference assets which are then passed on to the holders of the debt instruments they issue. Because they create rather than absorb
variability, the credit default swaps we hold are not considered variable interests. In limited circumstances, we entered into total
return swaps taking on the risks and benefits of certain structured notes issued by unconsolidated VIEs. The same risks and benefits
are passed on to third party entities through back-end total return swaps. We earn a spread for facilitating the transaction. Our
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maximum exposure to loss is the notional amount of the structured notes covered by the swap. The maximum exposure to loss
will occur in the unlikely scenario where the value of the structured notes is reduced to zero and, at the same time, the counterparty
of the back-end swap defaults with zero recovery.

We record all investments in, and derivative contracts with, unconsolidated structured note vehicles at fair value on our consolidated
balance sheet. Our maximum exposure to loss is limited to the recorded amounts of these instruments or, where applicable, the
notional amount of the derivatives wrapping the structured notes.

Beneficial interests issued by third-party sponsored securitization entities We hold certain beneficial interests such as mortgage-
backed securities issued by third party sponsored securitization entities which may be considered VIEs. The investments are
transacted at arm's-length and decisions to invest are based on a credit analysis of the underlying collateral assets or the issuer. We
are a passive investor in these issuers and do not have the power to direct the activities of these issuers. As such, we do not
consolidate these securitization entities. Additionally, we do not have other involvements in servicing or managing the collateral
assets or provide financial or liquidity support to these issuers which potentially give rise to risk of loss exposure. These investments
are an integral part of the disclosure in Note 3, "Securities,”" and Note 18, "Fair Value Measurements," and, therefore, are not
disclosed in this note to avoid redundancy.

17.  Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Collateral

Guarantee Arrangements As part of our normal operations, we enter into credit derivatives and various off-balance sheet guarantee
arrangements with affiliates and third parties. These arrangements arise principally in connection with our lending and client
intermediation activities and include standby letters of credit and certain credit derivative transactions. The contractual amounts
of these arrangements represent our maximum possible credit exposure in the event that we are required to fulfill the maximum
obligation under the contractual terms of the guarantee.

The following table presents total carrying value and contractual amounts of our sell protection credit derivatives and major off-
balance sheet guarantee arrangements as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Following the table is a description of the
various arrangements.

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Notional/ Notional/
Maximum Maximum
Carrying Exposure to Carrying Exposure to
Value Loss Value Loss

(in millions)

Credit derivatives ™ ..............coviriiiirri e $ 114 $ 164,325 $ 545 S 180,380
Financial standby letters of credit, net of participations®® ....................... — 5,289 — 5,237
Performance (non-financial) guarantees™ ..............ccooooovvovoreoeeceeeerieenenn, — 3,021 — 3,172
Liquidity asset purchase agreements®™ ..............ccocoveireueeeoeeeeeeeeeerreess — 2,303 — 2,560
0] 71 TR $ 114 $ 174938 $ 545 $ 191,349

M Includes $36,188 million and $34,856 million of notional issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively.

@ Includes $890 million and $865 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

®  For standby letters of credit and liquidity asset purchase agreements, maximum loss represents losses to be recognized assuming the letter of credit and

liquidity facilities have been fully drawn and the obligors have defaulted with zero recovery.

@ For credit derivatives, the maximum loss is represented by the notional amounts without consideration of mitigating effects from collateral or recourse

arrangements.

Credit-Risk Related Guarantees

Credit derivatives Credit derivatives are financial instruments that transfer the credit risk of a reference obligation from the credit
protection buyer to the credit protection seller who is exposed to the credit risk without buying the reference obligation. We sell
credit protection on underlying reference obligations (such as loans or securities) by entering into credit derivatives, primarily in
the form of credit default swaps, with various institutions. We account for all credit derivatives at fair value. Where we sell credit
protection to a counterparty that holds the reference obligation, the arrangement is effectively a financial guarantee on the reference
obligation. Under a credit derivative contract, the credit protection seller will reimburse the credit protection buyer upon occurrence
of a credit event (such as bankruptcy, insolvency, restructuring or failure to meet payment obligations when due) as defined in the
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derivative contract, in return for a periodic premium. Upon occurrence of a credit event, we will pay the counterparty the stated
notional amount of the derivative contract and receive the underlying reference obligation. The recovery value of the reference
obligation received could be significantly lower than its notional principal amount when a credit event occurs.

Certain derivative contracts are subject to master netting arrangements and related collateral agreements. A party to a derivative
contract may demand that the counterparty post additional collateral in the event its net exposure exceeds certain predetermined
limits and when the credit rating falls below a certain grade. We set the collateral requirements by counterparty such that the
collateral covers various transactions and products, and is not allocated to specific individual contracts.

We manage our exposure to credit derivatives using a variety of risk mitigation strategies where we enter into offsetting hedge
positions or transfer the economic risks, in part or in entirety, to investors through the issuance of structured credit products. We
actively manage the credit and market risk exposure in the credit derivative portfolios on a net basis and, as such, retain no or a
limited net sell protection position at any time. The following table summarizes our net credit derivative positions as of March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013:

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying (Fair) Carrying (Fair)
Value Notional Value Notional

(in millions)

Sell-protection credit derivative pOSItIONS ........ccccevererveeererervenennennes $ 114 $ 164325 § 545 $ 180,380
Buy-protection credit derivative poSItions.........c.cocevverveveruercruecnnencnn (186) 171,400 (505) 174,906
NEt POSTHON ... $ 72) $ (7,075 $ 40 $ 5474

M Positions are presented net in the table above to provide a complete analysis of our risk exposure and depict the way we manage our credit derivative portfolio.

The offset of the sell-protection credit derivatives against the buy-protection credit derivatives may not be legally binding in the absence of master netting
agreements with the same counterparty. Furthermore, the credit loss triggering events for individual sell protection credit derivatives may not be the same
or occur in the same period as those of the buy protection credit derivatives thereby not providing an exact offset.

Standby letters of credit A standby letter of credit is issued to a third party for the benefit of a customer and is a guarantee that
the customer will perform or satisfy certain obligations under a contract. It irrevocably obligates us to pay a specified amount to
the third party beneficiary if the customer fails to perform the contractual obligation. We issue two types of standby letters of
credit: performance and financial. A performance standby letter of credit is issued where the customer is required to perform some
nonfinancial contractual obligation, such as the performance of a specific act, whereas a financial standby letter of credit is issued
where the customer's contractual obligation is of a financial nature, such as the repayment of a loan or debt instrument. As of
March 31, 2014, the total amount of outstanding financial standby letters of credit (net of participations) and performance guarantees
were $5,289 million and $3,021 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the total amount of outstanding financial standby
letters of credit (net of participations) and performance guarantees were $5,237 million and $3,172 million, respectively.

The issuance of a standby letter of credit is subject to our credit approval process and collateral requirements. We charge fees for
issuing letters of credit commensurate with the customer's credit evaluation and the nature of any collateral. Included in other
liabilities are deferred fees on standby letters of credit, which represent the value of the stand-ready obligation to perform under
these guarantees, amounting to $45 million and $46 million at March 31,2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Also included
in other liabilities is an allowance for credit losses on unfunded standby letters of credit of $20 million and $18 million at March
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the credit ratings of credit risk related guarantees including the credit ratings of counterparties
against which we sold credit protection and financial standby letters of credit as of March 31, 2014 as an indicative proxy of
payment risk:

Credit Ratings of the Obligors or the Transactions

Average
Life Investment Non-Investment
Notional/Contractual Amounts (in years) Grade Grade Total
(dollars are in millions)

Sell-protection Credit Derivatives'"

Single name credit default swaps ("CDS").....ccceevvevveienirnnnnne. 24 % 102,297 $ 20,021 $ 122,318

Structured CDS.....c.oooviiiiceeeceee e 1.7 16,548 2,170 18,718

Index credit derivatives .......ccueeceeeiierieeeie et 3.0 19,465 203 19,668

Total TELUIN SWAPS.....eeeveeiieriieieeeieeiee e eteesveereeseeesaeeseneens 3.9 3,189 432 3,621
Subtotal 141,499 22,826 164,325
Standby Letters of Credit® ...........oooouoieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen. 1.1 6,450 1,860 8,310

$ 147,949 § 24,686 $ 172,635

(" The credit ratings in the table represent external credit ratings for classification as investment grade and non-investment grade.

@ External ratings for most of the obligors are not available. Presented above are the internal credit ratings which are developed using similar methodologies
and rating scale equivalent to external credit ratings for purposes of classification as investment grade and non-investment grade.

Our internal groupings are determined based on HSBC's risk rating systems and processes which assign a credit grade based on
a scale which ranks the risk of default of a customer. The groupings are determined and used for managing risk and determining
level of credit exposure appetite based on the customer's operating performance, liquidity, capital structure and debt service ability.
In addition, we also incorporate subjective judgments into the risk rating process concerning such things as industry trends,
comparison of performance to industry peers and perceived quality of management. We compare our internal risk ratings to outside
external rating agency benchmarks, where possible, at the time of formal review and regularly monitor whether our risk ratings
are comparable to the external ratings benchmark data.

A non-investment grade rating of a referenced obligor has a negative impact to the fair value of the credit derivative and increases
the likelihood that we will be required to perform under the credit derivative contract. We employ market-based parameters and,
where possible, use the observable credit spreads of the referenced obligors as measurement inputs in determining the fair value
of the credit derivatives. We believe that such market parameters are more indicative of the current status of payment/performance
risk than external ratings by the rating agencies which may not be forward-looking in nature and, as a result, lag behind those
market-based indicators.

Mortgage Loan Repurchase Obligations

Sale of mortgage loans Inthe ordinary course of business, we originate and sell mortgage loans and provide various representations
and warranties related to, among other things, the ownership of the loans, the validity of the liens, the loan selection and origination
process, and the compliance to the origination criteria established by the agencies. In the event of a breach of our representations
and warranties, we may be obligated to repurchase the loans with identified defects or to indemnify the buyers. Our contractual
obligation arises only when the breach of representations and warranties are discovered and repurchase is demanded. Historically,
these sales had been primarily to government sponsored entities ("GSEs") and, as a result of the settlements discussed in further
detail below, the repurchase exposure associated with these sales has been substantially resolved. In addition, with the conversion
of our mortgage processing and servicing operations to PHH Mortgage in the second quarter of 2013, new agency eligible
originations beginning with May 2013 applications are sold directly to PHH Mortgage and PHH Mortgage is responsible for
origination representations and warranties for all loans purchased.

During the fourth quarter of2013, we entered into a settlement with FNMA for $83 million which settled our liability for substantially
all loans sold to FNMA between January 1,2000 and June 26, 2012. The settlement resulted in a release of $15 million in repurchase
reserves previously provided for this exposure. During the first quarter of 2014, we entered into a similar settlement with the
FHLMC for $25 million, reflected in realized losses in the liability rollforward below, which settled our liability for substantially
all loans sold to FHLMC from January 1, 2000 through 2013. As a result of the settlement and a re-assessment of the residual
exposure, we released $34 million in repurchase reserves. We continue to maintain repurchase reserves for FNMA and FHLMC
exposure associated with residual risk not covered by the settlement agreements.
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The following table provides information about outstanding repurchase demands received from GSEs and other third parties at
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
GSES ittt e e e e et e e ea——— e e e e e e ——teeeean———eeeeear—aeeeeeanrrreeeeeaaas $ 6 3 41
(011113 ¢ DO 1 3
TOtALY) ..o $ 73 44

M Includes repurchase demands on loans sourced from our legacy broker channel of $4 million and $26 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,

respectively.

In estimating our repurchase liability arising from breaches of representations and warranties, we consider historical losses on
residual risks not covered by settlement agreements adjusted for any risk factors not captured in the historical losses.

The following table summarizes the change in our estimated repurchase liability for loans sold to the GSEs and other third parties
during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 for obligations arising from the breach of representations and warranties
associated with the sale of these loans:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Balance at beginning of PEriod ..........coeviriiriiiiiiiiiiiietcer et e $ 99 219
Increase (decrease) in liability recorded through €arnings ...........cocevevererenienienienieieiececeeneseceeee (34) 13
REAIIZEA LOSSES ...ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt r e (29) 21
Balance at end 0f PEriod.........co.eiiiiiiriiiiieee ettt $ 36 $ 211

Our remaining mortgage repurchase liability of $36 million at March 31, 2014 represents our best estimate of the loss that has
been incurred including interest, resulting from various representations and warranties in the contractual provisions of our mortgage
loan sales adjusted for settlements reached with counterparties. Because the level of mortgage loan repurchase losses is dependent
upon economic factors, investor demand strategies and other external risk factors such as housing market trends that may change,
the level of the liability for mortgage loan repurchase losses requires significant judgment. We have seen recent changes in investor
demand trends and continue to evaluate our methods of determining the best estimate of loss based on these recent trends. As these
estimates are influenced by factors outside our control, there is uncertainty inherent in these estimates making it reasonably possible
that they could change. The range of reasonably possible losses in excess of our recorded repurchase liability is between zero and
$40 million at March 31, 2014. This estimated range of reasonably possible losses was determined based upon modifying the
assumptions utilized in our best estimate of probable losses to reflect what we believe to be reasonably possible adverse assumptions.

Written Put Options, Non Credit-Risk Related and Indemnity Arrangements

Liquidity asset purchase agreements We provide liquidity facilities to Regency, a multi-seller ABCP conduit consolidated by our
affiliate. Regency finances the purchase of individual assets by issuing commercial paper to third party investors. Each liquidity
facility is transaction specific and has a maximum limit. Pursuant to the liquidity agreements, we are obligated, subject to certain
limitations, to advance funds in an amount not to exceed the face value of the commercial paper in the event Regency is unable
or unwilling to refinance its commercial paper. A liquidity asset purchase agreement is economically a conditional written put
option issued to the conduit where the exercise price is the face value of the commercial paper. As of March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, we had issued $2,303 million and $2,560 million, respectively, of liquidity facilities to provide liquidity
support to ABCP conduits. See Note 16, "Variable Interest Entities," for further information.

Clearinghouses and exchanges We are a member of various exchanges and clearinghouses that trade and clear securities and/or
futures contracts. Under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 ("Dodd-Frank"), members of
a clearinghouse may be required to contribute to a guaranty fund to backstop members' obligations to the clearinghouse. As a
member, we may be required to pay a proportionate share of the financial obligations of another member who defaults on its
obligations to the exchange or the clearinghouse. Our guarantee obligations would arise only if the exchange or clearinghouse had
exhausted its resources. Any potential contingent liability under these membership agreements cannot be estimated.
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Pledged Assets Pledged assets included in the consolidated balance sheet consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest bearing deposits With DANKS ..........ocveiiviiiiiiiiiciiceeeee e $ 330 $ 355
Trading BSSEES ettt e e e et e e 3,667 1,296
Securities available-for-Sale™...............coovvurveereesreiesese e 28,887 21,346
Securities Neld-t0-MAtUTIEY.......c.cccveriiiieiieieeet ettt sttt e et eesa et e ensesseeneesseensesneenees 347 362
LOANS™) ...ttt 3,886 3,969
OhET ASSES™ .....oveoeeoeeo st 2,718 2,904
] 1 USSP $ 39835 $ 30,232

M Trading assets are primarily pledged against liabilities associated with repurchase agreements.

@ Securities available-for-sale are primarily pledged against derivatives, public fund deposits and various short-term and long term borrowings, as well as
providing capacity for potential secured borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Reserve Bank.

®  Loans are primarily residential mortgage loans pledged against long-term borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank.

@ Other assets represent cash on deposit with non-banks related to derivative collateral support agreements.

Debt securities pledged as collateral that can be sold or repledged by the secured party continue to be reported on the consolidated
balance sheet. The fair value of securities available-for-sale that can be sold or repledged was $18,518 million and $10,950 million
at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The fair value of trading assets that can be sold or repledged was $3,667
million and $1,296 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

The fair value of collateral we accepted but not reported on the consolidated balance sheet that can be sold or repledged was $5,235
million and $4,187 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. This collateral was obtained under security
resale agreements. Of this collateral, $1,351 million and $2,771 million has been sold or repledged as collateral under repurchase
agreements or to cover short sales at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Securitization Activity In addition to the repurchase risk described above, we have also been involved as a sponsor/seller of loans
used to facilitate whole loan securitizations underwritten by our affiliate, HSI. In this regard, we began acquiring residential
mortgage loans in 2005 which were warehoused on our balance sheet with the intent of selling them to HSI to facilitate HSI’s
whole loan securitization program which was discontinued in 2007. During 2005-2007, we purchased and sold $24 billion of such
loans to HSI which were subsequently securitized and sold by HSI to third parties. The outstanding principal balance on these
loans was approximately $6.2 billion and $6.5 billion at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. See "Mortgage
Securitization Activity and Litigation" in Note 28, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in our 2013 Form 10-K for additional
discussion of related exposure. There have been no significant changes with regards to this exposure since December 31, 2013.
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Offsetting of Resale and Repurchase Agreements and Securities Borrowing and Lending Agreements

We enter into purchases and borrowings of securities under agreements to resell (resale agreements) and sales of securities under
agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements) identical or substantially the same securities. Resale and repurchase agreements
are generally accounted for as secured lending and secured borrowing transactions, respectively.

The amounts advanced under resale agreements and the amounts borrowed under repurchase agreements are carried on the
consolidated balance sheets at the amount advanced or borrowed, plus accrued interest to date. Interest earned on resale agreements
isreported as interest income. Interest paid on repurchase agreements is reported as interest expense. We offset resale and repurchase
agreements executed with the same counterparty under legally enforceable netting agreements that meet the applicable netting
criteria as permitted by generally accepted accounting principles.

Repurchase agreements may require us to deposit cash or other collateral with the lender. In connection with resale agreements,
it is our policy to obtain possession of collateral, which may include the securities purchased, with market value in excess of the
principal amount loaned. The market value of the collateral subject to the resale and repurchase agreements is regularly monitored,
and additional collateral is obtained or provided when appropriate, to ensure appropriate collateral coverage of these secured
financing transactions.

The following table provides information about repurchase agreements and resell agreements that are subject to offset as of March
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Gross Gross Amounts Net Amounts Cash Collateral
Amounts Offset in the Presented in the Financial Received /
Recognized Balance Sheet” Balance Sheet Instruments @ Pledged Net Amount ©

(in millions)
As of March 31, 2014:
Assets:

Securities purchased under
agreements to resell ............. $ 5,635 4,283 1,352 1,352 — 3 —

Liabilities:

Securities sold under
repurchase agreements......... $ 23,537 4,283 19,254 19,254 — 3 —

As of December 31, 2013:
Assets:

Securities purchased under
agreements to resell............. $ 4,187 2,068 2,119 2,118 — 3 1

Liabilities:

Securities sold under
repurchase agreements......... $ 14,989 2,068 12,921 12,913 — 3 8

M Represents recognized amount of resale and repurchase agreements with counterparties subject to legally enforceable netting agreements that meet the

applicable netting criteria as permitted by generally accepted accounting principles.

2 . . . .
@ Represents securities received or pledged to cover financing transaction exposures.

®  Represents the amount of our exposure that is not collateralized / covered by pledged collateral.
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18.  Fair Value Measurements

Accounting principles related to fair value measurements provide a framework for measuring fair value that focuses on the exit
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal market (or in the absence of the principal
market, the most advantageous market) accessible in an orderly transaction between willing market participants (the "Fair Value
Framework"). Where required by the applicable accounting standards, assets and liabilities are measured at fair value using the
"highest and best use" valuation premise. Fair value measurement guidance clarifies that financial instruments do not have
alternative use and, as such, the fair value of financial instruments should be determined using an “in-exchange” valuation premise.
However, the fair value measurement literature provides a valuation exception and permits an entity to measure the fair value of
a group of financial assets and financial liabilities with offsetting credit risks and/or market risks based on the exit price it would
receive or pay to transfer the net risk exposure of a group of assets or liabilities if certain conditions are met. We elected to apply
the measurement exception to a group of derivative instruments with offsetting credit risks and market risks, which primarily relate
to interest rate, foreign currency, debt and equity price risk, and commodity price risk as of the reporting date.

Fair Value Adjustments The best evidence of fair value is quoted market price in an actively traded market, where available. In
the event listed price or market quotes are not available, valuation techniques that incorporate relevant transaction data and market
parameters reflecting the attributes of the asset or liability under consideration are applied. Where applicable, fair value adjustments
are made to ensure the financial instruments are appropriately recorded at fair value. The fair value adjustments reflect the risks
associated with the products, contractual terms of the transactions, and the liquidity of the markets in which the transactions occur.
The fair value adjustments are broadly categorized by the following major types:

Credit risk adjustment - The credit risk adjustment is an adjustment to a group of financial assets and financial liabilities,
predominantly derivative assets and derivative liabilities, to reflect the credit quality of the parties to the transaction in arriving at
fair value. A credit valuation adjustment to a financial asset is required to reflect the default risk of the counterparty. A debit
valuation adjustment to a financial liability is recorded to reflect the default risk of HUSI.

For derivative instruments, we calculate the credit risk adjustment by applying the probability of default of the counterparty to the
expected exposure, and multiplying the result by the expected loss given default. We estimate the implied probability of default
based on the credit spread of the specific counterparty observed in the credit default swap market. Where credit default spread of
the counterparty is not available, we use the credit default spread of a specific proxy (e.g. the credit default swap spread of the
counterparty's parent). Where specific proxy credit default swap is not available, we apply a blended approach based on a
combination of credit default swaps referencing to credit names of similar credit standing and the historical rating-based probability
of default.

Liquidity risk adjustment - The liquidity risk adjustment (primarily in the form of bid-offer adjustment) reflects the cost that would
be incurred to close out the market risks by hedging, disposing or unwinding the position. Valuation models generally produce
mid market values. The bid-offer adjustment is made in such a way that results in a measure that reflects the exit price that most
represents the fair value of the financial asset or financial liability under consideration or, where applicable, the fair value of the
net market risk exposure of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities. These adjustments relate primarily to Level 2 assets.

Model valuation adjustment - Where fair value measurements are determined using an internal valuation model based on observable
and unobservable inputs, certain valuation inputs may be less readily determinable. There may be a range of possible valuation
inputs that market participants may assume in determining the fair value measurement. The resultant fair value measurement has
inherent measurement risk if one or more parameters are unobservable and must be estimated. An input valuation adjustment is
necessary to reflect the likelihood that market participants may use different input parameters, and to mitigate the possibility of
measurement error. In addition, the values derived from valuation techniques are affected by the choice of valuation model and
model limitation. When different valuation techniques are available, the choice of valuation model can be subjective. Furthermore,
the valuation model applied may have measurement limitations. In those cases, an additional valuation adjustment is also applied
to mitigate the measurement risk. Model valuation adjustments are not material and relate primarily to Level 2 instruments.

We apply stress scenarios in determining appropriate liquidity risk and model risk adjustments for Level 3 fair values by reviewing
the historical data for unobservable inputs (e.g., correlation, volatility). Some stress scenarios involve a 95 percent confidence
interval (i.e., two standard deviations). Other stress scenarios may be performed using highly stressed historical inputs such as
credit spreads experienced during a credit crisis. We also utilize unobservable parameter adjustments when instruments are valued
using internally developed models which reflects the uncertainty in the value estimates provided by the model.

Fair Value Hierarchy The Fair Value Framework establishes a three-tiered fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 quoted market price - Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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Level 2 valuation technique using observable inputs - Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are inactive, and measurements determined using
valuation models where all significant inputs are observable, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly
quoted intervals.

Level 3 valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs - Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
and include situations where fair values are measured using valuation techniques based on one or more significant unobservable
input.

Classification within the fair value hierarchy is based on whether the lowest hierarchical level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable. As such, the classification within the fair value hierarchy is dynamic and can be transferred to
other hierarchy levels in each reporting period. Transfers between leveling categories are assessed, determined and recognized at
the end of each reporting period.

Valuation Control Framework We have established a control framework which is designed to ensure that fair values are either
determined or validated by a function independent of the risk-taker. To that end, the ultimate responsibility for the determination
of fair values rests with Finance. Finance has established an independent price validation process to ensure that the assets and
liabilities measured at fair value are properly stated.

A valuation committee, chaired by the Head of Business Finance of Global Banking and Markets, meets monthly to review, monitor
and discuss significant valuation matters arising from credit and market risks. The committee is responsible for establishing
valuation policies and procedures, approving the internal valuation techniques and models developed by the Quantitative Risk and
Valuation Group ("QRVG"), reviewing and approving valuation adjustments pertaining to, among other things, unobservable
inputs, market liquidity, selection of valuation model and counterparty credit risk. Significant valuation risks identified in business
activities are corroborated and addressed by the committee members and, where applicable, are escalated to the Chief Financial
Officer of HUSI and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Where fair value measurements are determined based on information obtained from independent pricing services or brokers,
Finance applies appropriate validation procedures to substantiate fair value. For price validation purposes, quotations from at least
two independent pricing sources are obtained for each financial instrument, where possible.

The following factors are considered in determining fair values:

= similarities between the asset or the liability under consideration and the asset or liability for which quotation is received,;

= collaboration of pricing by referencing to other independent market data such as market transactions and relevant benchmark
indices;

= consistency among different pricing sources;

= the valuation approach and the methodologies used by the independent pricing sources in determining fair value;

= the elapsed time between the date to which the market data relates and the measurement date;

= the source of the fair value information; and

= whether the security is traded in an active or inactive market.

Greater weight is given to quotations of instruments with recent market transactions, pricing quotes from dealers who stand ready
to transact, quotations provided by market-makers who structured such instrument and market consensus pricing based on inputs
from a large number of survey participants. Any significant discrepancies among the external quotations are reviewed and
adjustments to fair values are recorded where appropriate. Where the transaction volume of a specific instrument has been reduced
and the fair value measurement becomes less transparent, Finance will apply more detailed procedures to understand and challenge
the appropriateness of the unobservable inputs and the valuation techniques used by the independent pricing service. Where
applicable, Finance will develop a fair value estimate using its own pricing model inputs to test reasonableness. Where fair value
measurements are determined using internal valuation models, Finance will validate the fair value measurement by either developing
unobservable inputs based on the industry consensus pricing surveys in which we participate or back testing by observing the
actual settlements occurring soon after the measurement date. Any significant valuation adjustments are reported to and discussed
with the valuation committee.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The fair value estimates, methods and assumptions set forth below for our financial
instruments, including those financial instruments carried at cost, are made solely to comply with disclosures required by generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes
included in this quarterly report.
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The following table summarizes the carrying value and estimated fair value of our financial instruments at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.

Carrying Fair
March 31, 2014 Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
Financial assets:
Short-term financial assSets ..........cccveeeivvvieviieeiiiceieeeeeee e $ 24,664 $ 24,664 $ 1,155 §$ 23,466 $ 43
Securities purchased under resale agreements .............ccccecevvenenne. 1,352 1,352 — 1,352 —
Non-derivative trading aSsets .........cceververieeverieeierieeeeneeeeeneeenes 23,348 23,348 2,140 18,025 3,183
DIETIVALIVES.. .ttt t et eee et st 5,456 5,456 13 5,391 52
SECUTTLIES ...vvevieiieiieiieeieieeie ettt et et et e st et eseeseeseeseeseesessesseneas 54,974 55,021 39,153 15,868 —
Commercial loans, net of allowance for credit losses................... 49,585 51,156 — — 51,156
Commercial loans designated under fair value option and held
FOT SALE ...ttt 753 753 — 753 —
Commercial loans held for Sale ..o, 111 111 — 111 —
Consumer loans, net of allowance for credit 10Sses ...........c.co....... 18,738 16,389 — 68 16,321
Consumer loans held for sale:
Residential MOrt@ages......c.ccvevervieienierienieienieneeseereeseenie e 42 43 — 14 29
Other CONSUMET ........ceiiiiriiiiriieie st 63 63 — — 63
Financial liabilities:
Short-term financial Habilities ..........ccccoovevviiviiiiiiiiceie e $ 28,827 §$ 28,827 $ — $28,785 $ 42
Deposits:
Without fixed mMaturities ......ccuvvveeivvieieieiieieieeeeeeeeeeee e 95,950 95,950 — 95,950 —
FiXed Maturities ........coovveiveeeeeiiee e 1,944 1,949 — 1,949 —
Deposits designated under fair value option .........c.cccceveeerenennennne 7,637 7,637 — 5,393 2,244
Non-derivative trading liabilities...........cocervreiererienieiesieieeee 4,360 4,360 367 3,993 —
DIETIVALIVES ....veiieeieeceeeie ettt e e et e enaeeeenneeean 5,648 5,648 5 5,611 32
Long-term debt .........cooiiieiiiiieie e 15,262 15,805 — 15,805 —
Long-term debt designated under fair value option ...................... 7,691 7,691 — 6,959 732
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Carrying Fair
December 31, 2013 Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
Financial assets:
Short-term financial ASSELS ........coveveveiiiviiiiceiceeee e $ 20,626 $ 20,626 $ 961 $ 19,614 §$ 51
Securities purchased under resale agreements ..............ccecevveeenee. 2,119 2,119 — 2,119 —
Non-derivative trading assets .........coceevereererieeresiereeieneeeeneens 22,903 22,903 1,344 18,924 2,635
DIEIIVALIVES ....eeeievie ettt e e e e e e eaaeeeeaneeeas 7,569 7,569 26 7,467 76
SECUITLIES ....vevievietirieeeieiesie et ettt ettt ae et be e sbesteseeseeneas 56,368 56,405 39,553 16,852 —
Commercial loans, net of allowance for credit losses.................... 48,186 49,897 — — 49,897
Commercial loans designated under fair value option and held
FOT SALE ..o 58 58 — 58 —
Commercial loans held for sale.........cccecveviievieniiiiieie e, 18 18 — 18 —
Consumer loans, net of allowance for credit losses ...................... 18,903 16,051 — 492 15,559
Consumer loans held for sale:
Residential MOItgages. ......cevvveeeereerieriieieeieeieeeeee e 91 92 — 36 56
Other CONSUIMET .......ecvveiieeieiieeietietesre e sreeee e eaeseeeaeseeesseseeas 63 63 — — 63
Financial liabilities:
Short-term financial liabilities.............coovevveieieeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 19,205 $ 19,205 § — $ 19,154 $ 51
Deposits:
Without fixed Maturities .........ccceeveeieeierieiieieieceeeeee e 102,584 102,584 — 102,584 —
Fixed Maturities .....cc.oeevveeeiieeeeeiee e 2,284 2,289 — 2,289 —
Deposits designated under fair value option ........c..ccccecevereneennene. 7,740 7,740 — 5,406 2,334
Non-derivative trading liabilities...........ccocerireieneiiiencee 4,134 4,134 308 3,826 —
DIETIVALIVES .....veeeeeeieeeeeeee et 7,348 7,348 5 7,294 49
Long-term debt.......coccveviieiiiiciciiecceeeeeee s 15,261 15,729 — 15,729 —
Long-term debt designated under fair value option ...........c......... 7,586 7,586 — 6,686 900

Loan values presented in the table above were determined using the Fair Value Framework for measuring fair value, which is
based on our best estimate of the amount within a range of value we believe would be received in a sale as of the balance sheet
date (i.e. exit price). The secondary market demand and estimated value for our residential mortgage loans has been heavily
influenced by the challenging economic conditions during the past several years, including house price depreciation, elevated
unemployment, changes in consumer behavior, changes in discount rates and the lack of financing options available to support
the purchase of receivables. For certain consumer loans, investors incorporate numerous assumptions in predicting cash flows,
such as future interest rates, higher charge-off levels, slower voluntary prepayment speeds, different default and loss curves and
estimated collateral values than we, as the servicer of these loans, believe will ultimately be the case. The investor's valuation
process reflects this difference in overall cost of capital assumptions as well as the potential volatility in the underlying cash flow
assumptions, the combination of which may yield a significant pricing discount from our intrinsic value. The estimated fair values
at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 reflect these market conditions. The increase in the relative fair value of our residential
mortgage loans during 2014 is largely due to improved conditions in the housing industry driven by increased property values
and, to a lesser extent, lower required market yields and increased investor demand for these types of receivables.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis The following table presents information about our assets
and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31,2014 and December 31, 2013, and indicates the fair value
hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine such fair value.
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Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

Gross Net
March 31, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Netting® Balance

(in millions)
Assets:

Trading Securities, excluding derivatives:

U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... $ 2,140 $ 81 § — 8 2,221  § — 3 2,221
Obligations of U.S. States and political subdivisions ............ccccecereeenuenne — 25 — 25 — 25
Collateralized debt Obligations.........coeeveeererierieeniinieec e — — 258 258 — 258
Asset-backed securities:
Residential MOTt@ages .........cceevevveerienieinerieieieeeecee e — 158 — 158 — 158
StUdEnt LOANS ....cveeeiieiiieieirieie e — 68 — 68 — 68
Corporate and other domestic debt SECUrItIes. ........coevviriereeirererieeniens — — 2,808 2,808 — 2,808
Debt Securities issued by foreign entities:
COTPOTALE ...ttt sttt ettt enenee — 107 — 107 — 107
GOVETTIMENE ...ttt ettt be e s st aeseneeseaenes — 7,233 117 7,350 — 7,350
Equity securities . — 21 — 21 — 21
Precious metals trading .........cocooeveeereniiininenieeseee e — 10,332 — 10,332 — 10,332
Derivatives'®:
INterest rate CONTIACTS......c..eocuieiuieeeeeeteeeteeeeee ettt ettt e eveea 88 50,846 1 50,935 — 50,935
Foreign exchange CONTIACES .........eveiruerieiierierieeetenieeee st 26 13,523 126 13,675 — 13,675
EQUItY CONEIACES .....euveiitiiieeeieetesteie ettt — 1,983 154 2,137 — 2,137
Precious metals CONIACES .........evveeeiruirieiiiirierieeetetee e 52 784 — 836 — 836
Credit CONTIACTS.....oovviiviictie ettt ettt et et etee v e eaeeereeas — 3,873 413 4,286 — 4,286
Derivatives NETHNE ......c.evverieueririeieiriee ettt — — — — (66,413) (66,413)
TOtal dEIIVALIVES ...c.vvinieeteiiieeetete ettt 166 71,009 694 71,869 (66,413) 5,456
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... 39,153 8,478 — 47,631 — 47,631
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdiviSions ............ccecevereennenns — 737 — 737 — 737
Asset-backed securities:
Residential MOTt@ages .........ccoevevveerierieiiereieeeeeere e — 1 — 1 — 1
Commercial MOTZAZES. ....c.ceververeuiriiieiieierierteteeteee et erenee — 96 — 96 — 96
HOME EQUILY .ttt — 220 — 220 — 220
OBNET ...ttt aens — 94 — 94 — 94
Corporate and other domestic debt SECUrIties.........coervririereeirereriecniens — — — — — —
Debt Securities issued by foreign entities:
COTPOTALE ...ttt ettt ettt st ebenee — 874 — 874 — 874
Government-backed ...........cooeeviiiiiiiiiiiice e — 3,772 — 3,772 — 3,772
Equity securities . — 163 — 163 — 163
LO0ANST) ettt st — 753 — 753 — 753
Mortgage servicing rights™ ... — — 205 205 — 205
TOAL ASSELS...euveveuiieteiecreeteeeteeee ettt be et ae s eaees $ 41,459 §$ 104,222 $§ 4,082 $ 149,763 $ (66,413) $ 83,350
Liabilities: -
Deposits in domestic offices™ .............coooirviirireeoeeoeeeeeeeeeee s $ — $ 5393 $§ 2244 $ 7,637 $ — $ 7,637
Trading liabilities, excluding derivatives .........c.ccoeovereiereneneenenenees 367 3,993 — 4,360 — 4,360
Derivatives'®:
INterest rate CONTIACTS......c..iovvieeiieeteeeeee et eeee ettt et eeveea 33 51,348 — 51,381 — 51,381
Foreign exchange CONTIACES .........eveiruerieeiierienieeeteneeee et 11 12,541 30 12,582 — 12,582
EQUItY CONEIACES .....eveiitiiieieieetetee ettt — 1,312 130 1,442 — 1,442
Precious metals CONIACES .......c.evueeeireericiiienierieeetee e 24 817 — 841 — 841
Credit CONTIACTS.....ccvviiiiietie ettt ettt ettt e et etae v e eaaeereeas — 4,281 232 4,513 — 4,513
Derivatives NETHNE ......c.ovverveieienieieirieeeiietestese ettt — — — — (65,111) (65,111)
TOtal dEIIVALIVES ...c.vvinieeteiiieietete ettt st 68 70,299 392 70,759 (65,111) 5,648
Long-term debt@ ..o — 6,959 732 7,691 — 7,691
Total liabilities $ 435 § 86,644 § 3368 $§ 90,447 § (65111) $§ 25336
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Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

Gross Net
December 31, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Netting® Balance

(in millions)
Assets:

Trading Securities, excluding derivatives:

U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... $ 1,344  § 178 $ — 1,522 § — 8 1,522
Obligations of U. S. States and political subdivisions ...........c.ccececeruenene — 25 — 25 — 25
Collateralized debt Obligations.........c..eoveuererieiriiriiieirereeeee e — — 254 254 — 254
Asset-backed securities:
Residential MOrt@ages ..........cooveeverieieinenieieiee e — 159 — 159 — 159
Student 10aNS ........oooeiviiiiiiireee e — 68 — 68 — 68
Corporate and other domestic debt Securities...........cecevererieerenieerennenes — — 2,260 2,260 — 2,260
Debt Securities issued by foreign entities:
COTPOTALE ...ttt sttt ettt sttt eaenes — 495 — 495 — 495
GOVEITINIENE ...ttt ettt e eee st st be et ebe e e eseseeeaenan — 6,223 121 6,344 — 6,344
Equity securities — 25 — 25 — 25
Precious metals trading .........coeoeoevereniiinenieiece e — 11,751 — 11,751 — 11,751
Derivatives'®:
INterest rate CONTIACTS......c..eovviieuieeieeetee ettt 81 56,095 1 56,177 — 56,177
Foreign exchange CONracts ..........c.coeeveiririenieinieneieeseieeei e 7 15,291 131 15,429 — 15,429
EQUItY CONEIACES ..c..euetiitiieieiieteieierereee et — 2,042 160 2,202 — 2,202
Precious metals CONTIACES ........ceeevieiuiieieeeteeeie ettt 182 1,400 1 1,583 — 1,583
Credit CONTIACTS.....cveiieieictieeieeetee ettt ettt et eete et e e aeeeaeeeneen — 4,152 512 4,664 — 4,664
Derivatives NEHINE .....ccevveieirieieiriereeeet et — — — — (72,486) (72,486)
TOtal dEIIVALIVES ...c.vveiiieiiieteteceet ettt eaenan 270 78,980 805 80,055 (72,486) 7,569
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... 39,513 9,439 — 48,952 — 48,952
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions ..........cc.coceveeeruennene. — 742 — 742 — 742
Asset-backed securities:
Residential MOrt@ages ..........coveevuerieieineneinieee e — 1 — 1 — 1
Commercial MOTtAZES. ......ceveveueruirieieririerieeeeeteeee et — 126 — 126 — 126
HOME EQUILY -ttt — 227 — 227 — 227
OBNET ...ttt sttt eaenan — 94 — 94 — 94
Corporate and other domestic debt Securities...........ccoevererieerereenereennne — — — — — —
Debt Securities issued by foreign entities:
COTPOTALE ...ttt ettt ettt sttt aenes — 881 — 881 — 881
Government-backed ............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeceeeee e 40 3,681 — 3,721 — 3,721
Equity securities . — 162 — 162 — 162
LOANS™ ..o — 58 — 58 — 58
Mortgage servicing rights™.............o.cooiiiiooeeeee oo — — 227 227 — 227
TOTAl ASSELS...cuvveuiniieieiirieteeee ettt ettt ettt e s es $ 41,167 $ 113315 $§ 3,667 $ 158,149 § (72,486) $ 85,663
Liabilities: -
Deposits in domestic 0ffices™.............ccoovirrioreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo $ — $ 5406 $ 2334 $ 7740 $ — $ 7,740
Trading liabilities, excluding derivatives ...........ccceceverieenenenineneeenees 308 3,826 — 4,134 — 4,134
Derivatives'®:
INterest rate CONTIACTS......c..covviiereeiieeeiee ettt ettt ettt e e 34 56,282 — 56,316 — 56,316
Foreign exchange CONracts ..........c.coevveirerenieineneieceeeees e 16 14,576 36 14,628 — 14,628
EQUItY CONEIACES ....veuitietiieieiieteieiere et — 1,403 157 1,560 — 1,560
Precious metals CONracts .........eoveeririeiiinierieiei e 7 847 3 857 — 857
Credit CONTIACTS.....cveiieiiictiecieeeiee ettt ettt et e et e e e et e e aeeeaeeeneens — 4,398 321 4,719 — 4,719
Derivatives NEHINE .....coevveieiirieieiiriereeeei ettt — — — — (70,732) (70,732)
TOtal dETIVALIVES ...e.veveiiieiiirteteeeeet ettt eaenan 57 77,506 517 78,080 (70,732) 7,348
Long-term debt@ ..o — 6,686 900 7,586 — 7,586
Total liabilities $ 365 $ 93424 § 37751 $ 97,540 § (70,732) § 26,808
1)

Represents counterparty and cash collateral netting which allow the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts if certain conditions are met.
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@ Includes trading derivative assets of $3,988 million and $5,991 million and trading derivative liabilities of $4,989 million and $6,741 million as of March
31,2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, as well as derivatives held for hedging and commitments accounted for as derivatives.

@ Includes certain commercial loans held for sale which we have elected to apply the fair value option. See Note 6, "Loans Held for Sale," for further

information.
)

See Note 7, "Intangible Assets," for additional information.

®  Represents structured deposits risk-managed on a fair value basis for which we have elected to apply the fair value option.

(6)

Includes structured notes and own debt issuances which we have elected to measure on a fair value basis.

Transfers between leveling categories are recognized at the end of each reporting period.

Transfers between Levels 1 and 2 Measurements There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the three months ended

March 31, 2014 and 2013.

Information on Level 3 assets and liabilities The following table summarizes additional information about changes in the fair
value of Level 3 assets and liabilities during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013. As a risk management practice,
we may risk manage the Level 3 assets and liabilities, in whole or in part, using securities and derivative positions that are classified
as Level 1 or Level 2 measurements within the fair value hierarchy. Since those Level 1 and Level 2 risk management positions
are not included in the table below, the information provided does not reflect the effect of such risk management activities related
to the Level 3 assets and liabilities.

Total Gains and

() Current
(Losses) Included in Period
Trading Transfers  Transfers Unrealized
Jan. 1, Revenue Other Purch- Issu- Settle- Into Out of Mar. 31, Gains
2014 (Loss) Revenue ases ances ments Level 3 Level 3 2014 (Losses)
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding
derivatives:
Collateralized debt
obligations ...........ceeueee. $ 254 § 7 8 — 8 — — 3 3 3 — 8 — 8§ 258 § 7
Corporate and other
domestic debt securities... 2,260 5) — 553 — — — — 2,808 (6)
Corporate debt securities
issued by foreign entities. — — — — — — — — — —
Government debt
securities issued by
foreign entities................. 121 2 — — — 6) — — 117 “)
Equity securities .. — — — — — — — — — —
Derivatives, net®:
Interest rate contracts....... 1 —_ — — — — — — 1 —
Foreign exchange
contracts..........ceeueeveennenn. 95 1 — — — 6) — 96 1
Equity contracts............... 3 19 — — — (@) 4 24 12
Precious metals contracts ) 2 — — — — — — — —
Credit contracts................ 191 13) — — — 3 — — 181 (28)
Mortgage servicing rights® 227 — (12) — — (10) — — 205 (12)
Total assets........ovvrvereueunnne $ 3150 $ 13 8 (12) $ 553 — $ Q9 s 4 3 1 $ 3,690 $ 30)
Liabilities:
Deposits in domestic
OffiCeS .o $(2,334) $ (124) $ — 3 — 25 $ 167 $ 68) $ 140 (2,244) $ (23)
Long-term debt................... (900) 93 — — 43) 47 — 71 (732) 2)
Total liabilities.................... $(3,234) $ @31 $ — 3 — 68 $ 214 § 68) $ 211 $ (2,976) $ (25)
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Total Gains and

in® Current
(Losses) Included in Period
Trading Transfers  Transfers Unrealized
Jan. 1, Revenue Other Purch- Issu- Settle- Into Out of Mar. 31, Gains
2013 (Loss) Revenue ases ances ments Level 3 Level 3 2013 (Losses)
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding
derivatives:
Collateralized debt
obligations ...........cceveee. $ 466 $ 35 % — 3 21§ — $ @4 s —  § — $ 481 § 35
Corporate and other
domestic debt securities... 1,861 7 — 15 — (359) — — 1,524 4
Corporate debt securities
issued by foreign entities. 299 ) — — — — — — 294 %)
Government debt
securities issued by
foreign entities................. 311 22 — — — (190) — — 143 19
Equity securities .............. 9 2 — — — — — — 11 2
Derivatives, net'®:
Interest rate contracts....... 7 — ) — — — — — 6 (@)
Foreign exchange
CONLractS....c.ocveuveuerneenene 5 15 — — — 122 ®) — 134 137
Equity contracts............... (@) 61 — — — (20) 7 7 34 41
Credit contracts.. . 571 (49) — — — (112) (46) — 364 (197)
Mortgage servicing rights® 168 — 16 — 6 — — — 190 16
Total assets.......ccvverveueunene $ 3,690 88 $ 15 36 S 6 $ (600) $ 47) 8 (7 $ 3,181 § 51
Liabilities:
Deposits in domestic
OffiCces .ovviiicicice $(2,636) (40) $ — — $ (404 $ 108 $ 11 3 85 (2,876) $ (32)
Long-term debt................... (429) 31) — — (210) 51 — 1 (618) (25)
Total liabilities..........ccrvunee. $(3,065) (71) $ — — § (614 § 159 $ 11 3 8 $§ (3,494) § 57

(O]
)

3)

Includes realized and unrealized gains and losses.
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Level 3 net derivatives included derivative assets of $694 million and derivative liabilities of $392 million as of March 31, 2014 and derivative assets of
$1,320 million and derivative liabilities of $782 million as of March 31, 2013.

See Note 7, "Intangible Assets," for additional information.
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The following table presents quantitative information about the unobservable inputs used to determine the recurring fair value
measurement of assets and liabilities classified as Level 3 fair value measurements as of March 31, 2014 and 2013.

March 31, 2014

Fair Value
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Significant Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Collateralized debt obligations ................ 258 Broker quotes or consensus Prepayment rates 0% -5%
pricing and, where applicable,
discounted cash flows
Conditional default rates 6% - 15%
Loss severity rates 90% - 100%
Corporate and other domestic debt 2,808 Discounted cash flows Spread volatility on collateral assets 1% -3%
SECUTTLIES ...
Correlation between insurance claim  80%
shortfall and collateral value
Corporate and government debt 117 Discounted cash flows Credit spread 1%
securities issued by foreign entities .........
Interest rate derivative contracts.............. 1 Market comparable adjusted for Probability to fund for rate lock 11% - 98%
probability to fund commitments
Foreign exchange derivative contracts . 96 Option pricing model Implied volatility of currency pairs 10% - 15%
Equity derivative contracts'” .................. 24 Option pricing model Equity / Equity Index volatility 14% - 44%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 55%
correlation
Credit derivative contracts...............c........ 181  Option pricing model Correlation of defaults of a portfolio 50% - 59%
of reference credit names
Issuer by issuer correlation of 83% - 95%
defaults
Mortgage servicing rights ..........ccceeevveneee 205 Option adjusted discounted cash Constant prepayment rates 5% -22%
flows
Option adjusted spread 8% -19%
Estimated annualized costs to service ~ $91 - $333 per
account
Deposits in domestic offices (structured (2,244) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 10% - 15%
deposits) VD e, flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 14% - 44%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 55%
correlation
Long-term debt (structured notes) V@ ... (732) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 10% - 15%

flows
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December 31, 2013
Fair Value
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Significant Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Collateralized debt obligations ................ 254  Broker quotes or consensus pricing  Prepayment rates 0% - 5%
and, where applicable, discounted
cash flows
Conditional default rates 5% - 7%
Loss severity rates 90% - 100%
Corporate and other domestic debt 2,260 Discounted cash flows Spread volatility on collateral assets 1% - 3%
SCCUTTEICS w.vevvenererenienieie ettt eeeereene
Correlation between insurance claim  80%
shortfall and collateral value
Corporate and government debt 121 Discounted cash flows Correlations of default among a 36% - 63%
securities issued by foreign entities ......... portfolio of credit names of
embedded credit derivatives
Interest rate derivative contracts.............. 1 Market comparable adjusted for Probability to fund for rate lock 10% - 99%
probability to fund commitments
Foreign exchange derivative contracts" . 95  Option pricing model Implied volatility of currency pairs 11% - 16%
Equity derivative contracts™ .................. 3 Option pricing model Equity / Equity Index volatility 6% - 69%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 50% - 58%
correlation
Credit derivative contracts..............coceueee 191  Option pricing model Correlation of defaults of a portfolio 46% - 54%
of reference credit names
Industry by industry correlation of 83% - 95%
defaults
Mortgage servicing rights ..........c.ccceeeeee 227  Option adjusted discounted cash Constant prepayment rates 5% -22%
flows
Option adjusted spread 8% - 19%
Estimated annualized costs to service ~ $91 - $333 per
account
Deposits in domestic offices (structured (2,334) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 11% - 16%
deposits) V@ e, flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 6% - 69%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 50% - 58%
correlation
Long-term debt (structured notes) V@ ... (900) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 11% - 16%
flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 6% - 69%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 50% - 58%
correlation

M

(2)

We are the client-facing entity and we enter into identical but opposite derivatives to transfer the resultant risks to our affiliates. With the exception of
counterparty credit risks, we are market neutral. The corresponding intra-group derivatives are presented as equity derivatives and foreign currency derivatives
in the table.

Structured deposits and structured notes contain embedded derivative features whose fair value measurements contain significant Level 3 inputs.

Significant Unobservable Inputs for Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Collateralized Debt Obligations (CDOs)

Prepayment rate - The rate at which borrowers pay off the mortgage loans early. The prepayment rate is affected by a number
of factors including the location of the mortgage collateral, the interest rate type of the mortgage loans, borrowers' credit and
sensitivity to interest rate movement. The prepayment rate of our CDOs portfolio is tilted towards the low end of the range.

Default rate - Annualized percentage of default rate over a group of collateral such as residential or commercial mortgage
loans. The default rate and loss severity rate are positively correlated. The default rate of our portfolio is close to the mid point
of the range.

Loss Severity Rate - Included in our Level 3 CDOs portfolio are collateralized loan obligations (CLOs) and trust preferred
securities which are about equally distributed. The loss severity rate for trust preferred securities as of March 31,2014 is about
1.8 times that of CLOs.

Derivatives
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*  Correlation of Default - The default correlation of a group of credit exposures measures the likelihood that the credit references
within a group will default together. The default correlation is a significant input to structured credit products such as nth-to-
default swaps. In addition, the correlation between the currency and the default risk of the reference credits is a critical input
to a foreign currency denominated credit default swap where the correlation is not observable.

= Implied volatility - The implied volatility is a significant pricing input for freestanding or embedded options including equity,
foreign currency and interest rate options. The level of volatility is a function of the nature of the underlying risk, the level of
strike price and the years to maturity of the option. Depending on the underlying risk and tenure, we determine the implied
volatility based on observable input where information is available. However, substantially all of the implied volatilities are
derived based on historical information. The implied volatility for different foreign currency pairs is between 10 percent and
15 percent while the implied volatility for equity/equity or equity/equity index is between 14 percent and 44 percent, respectively
at March 31, 2014. Although implied foreign currency volatility and equity volatility appear to be widely distributed at the
portfolio level, the deviation of implied volatility on a trade-by-trade basis is narrower. The average deviation of implied
volatility for the foreign currency pair and at-the-money equity option are 3 percent and 5 percent, respectively at March 31,
2014.

»  Correlations of a group of foreign currency or equity - Correlation measures the relative change in values among two or more
variables (i.e., equity or foreign currency pair). Variables can be positively or negatively correlated. Correlation is a key input
in determining the fair value of a derivative referenced to a basket of variables such as equities or foreign currencies. A majority
of the correlations are not observable, but are derived based on historical data. The correlation between equity/equity and
equity/equity index was 55 percent at March 31, 2014.

Sensitivity of Level 3 Inputs to Fair Value Measurements

Collateralized Debt Obligations - Probability of default, prepayment speed and loss severity rate are significant unobservable
inputs. Significant increase (decrease) in these inputs will result in a lower (higher) fair value measurement of a collateralized debt
obligation. A change in assumption for default probability is often accompanied by a directionally similar change in loss severity,
and a directionally opposite change in prepayment speed.

Corporate and Domestic Debt Securities - The fair value measurements of certain corporate debt securities are affected by the fair
value of the underlying portfolios of investments used as collateral and the make-whole guarantee provided by third party guarantors.
The probability that the collateral fair value declines below the collateral call threshold concurrent with the guarantors failure to
perform its make whole obligation is unobservable. The increase (decrease) in the probability the collateral value falls below the
collateral call threshold is often accompanied by a directionally similar change in default probability of the guarantor.

Credit derivatives - Correlation of default among a basket of reference credit names is a significant unobservable input if the credit
attributes of the portfolio are not within the parameters of relevant standardized CDS indices. Significant increase (decrease) in
the unobservable input will result in a lower (higher) fair value measurement of the credit derivative. A change in assumption for
default correlation is often accompanied by a directionally similar change in default probability and loss rates of other credit names
in the basket.

Equity and foreign currency derivatives - The fair value measurement of a structured equity or foreign currency derivative is
primarily affected by the implied volatility of the underlying equity price or exchange rate of the paired foreign currencies. The
implied volatility is not observable. Significant increase (decrease) in the implied volatility will result in a higher (lower) fair value
of a long position in the derivative contract.

Significant Transfers Into and Out of Level 3 Measurements During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we transferred
$140 million of deposits in domestic offices and $71 million of long-term debt, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from
Level 3 to Level 2 as a result of the embedded derivative no longer being unobservable as the derivative option is closer to maturity
and there is more observability in short term volatility. Additionally, during the three months ended March 31, 2014, we transferred
$68 million of deposits in domestic offices, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from Level 2 to Level 3 as a result of a
change in the observability of underlying instruments that resulted in the embedded derivative being unobservable.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, we transferred $85 million of deposits in domestic offices, which we have elected
to carry at fair value, from Level 3 to Level 2 as a result of the embedded derivative no longer being unobservable as the derivative
option is closer in maturity and there is more observability in short term volatility.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis Certain financial and non-financial assets are measured
at fair value on a non-recurring basis and therefore, are not included in the tables above. These assets include (a) mortgage and
commercial loans classified as held for sale reported at the lower of amortized cost or fair value and (b) impaired loans or assets
that are written down to fair value based on the valuation of underlying collateral during the period. These instruments are not
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustment in certain circumstances (e.g., impairment).
The following table presents the fair value hierarchy level within which the fair value of the financial and non-financial assets has
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been recorded as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. The gains (losses) during the three months ended March 31, 2014
and 2013 are also included.

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements Total Gains (Losses)
as of March 31, 2014 For the Three
Months Ended
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total March 31, 2014
(in millions)
Residential mortgage loans held for sale'” .................. $ — 8 2 3 29 § 31 § 3
Impaired commercial 10ans®...........ccccooovvveeerereenann. — — 49 49 6)
Consumer 10anS®)..........c.ooveoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee — 68 — 68 (15)
Real estate owned™ .........oocooeveveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 23 — — 23 1
Commercial loan held for sale®® ...........cocooviveierereenenn. — 114 — 114 —
Total assets at fair value on a non-recurring basis....... $ 23 $ 184 $ 78 $ 285 $ a7
Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements Total Gains (Losses)
as of December 31, 2013 For the Three
Months Ended
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total March 31, 2013
(in millions)
Residential mortgage loans held for sale" .................. $ — S 9 % 56 $ 65 $ 3
Impaired commercial 10208 ..o — — 108 108 @)
Consumer 10an5® .........c.coouieeeereeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeereean. — 492 — 492 17
Real estate owned™ ...........o.ccooooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeen. 20 — — 20 2
Total assets at fair value on a non-recurring basis....... $ 20 S 501 $ 164 3 685 $ (13)

1)

)

3)

@

)

As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the fair value of the loans held for sale was below cost. Certain residential mortgage loans held for sale have
been classified as a Level 3 fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy as the underlying real estate properties which determine fair value are
illiquid assets as a result of market conditions and significant inputs in estimating fair value were unobservable. Additionally, the fair value of these properties
is affected by, among other things, the location, the payment history and the completeness of the loan documentation.

Certain commercial loans have undergone troubled debt restructurings and are considered impaired. As a matter of practical expedient, we measure the
credit impairment of a collateral-dependent loan based on the fair value of the collateral asset. The collateral often involves real estate properties that are
illiquid due to market conditions. As a result, these loans are classified as a Level 3 fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy.

Represents residential mortgage loans held for investment whose carrying amount was reduced during the periods presented based on the fair value of the
underlying collateral.

Real estate owned is required to be reported on the balance sheet net of transactions costs. The real estate owned amounts in the table above reflect the fair
value unadjusted for transaction costs.

Represents certain commercial loans that have been transferred to the held for sale portfolio.
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The following table presents quantitative information about non-recurring fair value measurements of assets and liabilities classified
with Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as of March 31, 2014 and 2013.

As of March 31, 2014

Significant
Fair Value Unobservable Range of
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Inputs Inputs
Valuation of third party appraisal on
Residential mortgage loans held for sale .............c.ccoovninninne $ 29 underlying collateral Loss severity rates 0% - 100%
Valuation of third party appraisal on
Impaired commercial 10ans..........c..cccovevriereinieieienieeieeenen 49  underlying collateral Loss severity rates 11% - 48%
As of December 31, 2013
Significant
Fair Value Unobservable Range of
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Inputs Inputs
Valuation of third party appraisal on
Residential mortgage loans held forsale .............cccocoeveviirneee. $ 56  underlying collateral Loss severity rates ~ -% - 100%
Valuation of third party appraisal on
Impaired commercial 10ans..........c..cccocvivieeenieieininieeeeeen 108  underlying collateral Loss severity rates 1% - 66%

Significant Unobservable Inputs for Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Residential mortgage loans held for sale primarily represent subprime residential mortgage loans which were previously acquired
with the intent of securitizing or selling them to third parties. The weighted average loss severity rate for these loans was
approximately 70 percent at March 31, 2014. These severity rates are primarily impacted by the value of the underlying collateral
securing the loans.

Impaired loans represent commercial loans. The weighted average severity rate for these loans was approximately 17 percent at
March 31, 2014. These severity rates are primarily impacted by the value of the underlying collateral securing the loans.

Valuation Techniques Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value
and for estimating fair value for those financial instruments not recorded at fair value for which fair value disclosure is required.

Short-term financial assets and liabilities - The carrying amount of certain financial assets and liabilities recorded at cost is
considered to approximate fair value because they are short-term in nature, bear interest rates that approximate market rates, and
generally have negligible credit risk. These items include cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks, accrued
interest receivable, customer acceptance assets and liabilities and short-term borrowings.

Securities purchased and sold under resale and repurchase agreements - Securities purchased and sold under resale and repurchase
agreements are recorded at cost. A significant majority of these transactions are short-term in nature and, as such, the recorded
amounts approximate fair value. For transactions with long-dated maturities, fair value is based on dealer quotes for instruments
with similar terms and collateral.

Loans - Except for certain commercial syndicated loans, we do not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. From time to
time, we record impairments to loans. The write-downs can be based on observable market price of the loan or the underlying
collateral value. In addition, fair value estimates are determined based on the product type, financial characteristics, pricing features
and maturity.

*  Mortgage Loans Held for Sale — Certain residential mortgage loans are classified as held for sale and are recorded at the lower
of amortized cost or fair value. The fair value of these mortgage loans is determined based on the valuation information observed
in alternative exit markets, such as the whole loan market, adjusted for portfolio specific factors. These factors include the
location of the collateral, the loan-to-value ratio, the estimated rate and timing of default, the probability of default or foreclosure
and loss severity if foreclosure does occur.

*  Syndicated Loans Held for Sale — We record certain commercial syndicated loans which are originated with the intent to sell
at fair value. Where available, market consensus pricing obtained from independent sources is used to estimate the fair value
of the syndicated loans. In validating the fair value, we take into consideration the number of participants submitting pricing
information, the range of pricing information and distribution, the methodology applied by the pricing services to cleanse the
data and market liquidity. Where consensus pricing information is not available, fair value is estimated using observable market
prices of similar instruments or inputs, including bonds, credit derivatives, and loans with similar characteristics. Where
observable market parameters are not available, fair value is determined based on contractual cash flows, adjusted for the
probability of default and estimated recoveries where applicable, discounted at the rate demanded by market participants under
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current market conditions. In those cases, we also consider the loan specific attributes and inherent credit risk and risk mitigating
factors such as collateral arrangements.

Commercial Loans — Commercial loans and commercial real estate loans are valued by discounting the contractual cash flows,
adjusted for prepayments and the borrower’s credit risk, using a discount rate that reflects the current rates offered to borrowers
of similar credit standing for the remaining term to maturity and, when applicable, our own estimate of liquidity premium.

Commercial Impaired Loans — Generally represents collateral dependent commercial loans with fair value determined based
on pricing quotes obtained from an independent third party appraisal.

Consumer Loans — The estimated fair value of our consumer loans were determined by developing an approximate range of
value from a mix of various sources as appropriate for the respective pool of assets. These sources included estimates from an
HSBC affiliate which reflect over-the-counter trading activity, forward looking discounted cash flow models using assumptions
consistent with those which would be used by market participants in valuing such receivables; trading input from other market
participants which includes observed primary and secondary trades; where appropriate, the impact of current estimated rating
agency credit tranching levels with the associated benchmark credit spreads; and general discussions held directly with potential
investors. For revolving products, the estimated fair value excludes future draws on the available credit line as well as other
items and, therefore, does not include the fair value of the entire relationship.

Valuation inputs include estimates of future interest rates, prepayment speeds, default and loss curves, estimated collateral
value and market discount rates reflecting management’s estimate of the rate that would be required by investors in the current
market given the specific characteristics and inherent credit risk of the receivables. Some of these inputs are influenced by
collateral value changes and unemployment rates. Where available, such inputs are derived principally from or corroborated
by observable market data. We perform analytical reviews of fair value changes on a quarterly basis and periodically validate
our valuation methodologies and assumptions based on the results of actual sales of such receivables. In addition, from time
to time, we may engage a third party valuation specialist to measure the fair value of a pool of receivables. Portfolio risk
management personnel provide further validation through discussions with third party brokers and other market participants.
Since an active market for these receivables does not exist, the fair value measurement process uses unobservable significant
inputs specific to the performance characteristics of the various receivable portfolios.

Lending-related commitments - The fair value of commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and financial guarantees
are not included in the table. The majority of the lending related commitments are not carried at fair value on a recurring basis nor
are they actively traded. These instruments generate fees, which approximate those currently charged to originate similar
commitments, which are recognized over the term of the commitment period. Deferred fees on commitments and standby letters
of credit totaled $45 million and $46 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Precious metals trading - Precious metals trading primarily includes physical inventory which is valued using spot prices.

Securities - Where available, debt and equity securities are valued based on quoted market prices. If a quoted market price for the
identical security is not available, the security is valued based on quotes from similar securities, where possible. For certain
securities, internally developed valuation models are used to determine fair values or validate quotes obtained from pricing services.
The following summarizes the valuation methodology used for our major security classes:

U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed and Obligations of U.S. state and political subdivisions — As
these securities transact in an active market, fair value measurements are based on quoted prices for the identical security or
quoted prices for similar securities with adjustments as necessary made using observable inputs which are market corroborated.

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises — For government sponsored mortgage-backed securities which transact in an active
market, fair value measurements are based on quoted prices for the identical security or quoted prices for similar securities
with adjustments as necessary made using observable inputs which are market corroborated. For government sponsored
mortgage-backed securities which do not transact in an active market, fair value is determined primarily based on pricing
information obtained from pricing services and is verified by internal review processes.

Asset-backed securities, including collateralized debt obligations — Fair value is primarily determined based on pricing
information obtained from independent pricing services adjusted for the characteristics and the performance of the underlying
collateral.
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The following tables provide additional information relating to asset-backed securities as well as certain collateralized debt
obligations held as of March 31, 2014:

Trading asset-backed securities:

Rating of Securities: " Collateral Type: Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)
AAA -A. Residential mortgages - Alt A...........ccoovvnnenes $ 91 § — 91
Residential mortgages - Subprime ................. 62 — 62
Student 10ans ......ccccoevivereneninenecieeeeens 68 — 68
Total AAA -A..oooeeeeeeeeee e 221 — 221
Collateralized debt obligations....................... — 258 258
Residential mortgages - Subprime ................. 5 — 5
$ 226 $ 258 § 484

Available-for-sale securities backed by collateral:

Rating of Securities:" Collateral Type: Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)

AAA -Al Commercial mortgages.............cocovevevererenenn. $ 9% $ — § 96
Home equity - Alt A....oocevevieiieeeeeeee, 95 — 95
Total AAA -A. o 191 — 191
BBB -B..oooiiieee e, Other- Alt A...coonieeeeeeee e, 94 — 94
Total BBB -Bi.....cccooveiieieieieeeeeeeee e, 94 — 94
CCC -Unrated.......ccceeueueueueeeeieieiennns Residential mortgages - Alt A........................ 1 — 1
Home equity - Alt A....ooovveeeveeieeeee, 125 — 125
Total CCC -Unrated.........c.ccoveeeveecrieeieennennee, 126 — 126
$ 411 $ — 3 411

M We utilize Standard & Poor's ("S&P") as the primary source of credit ratings in the tables above. If S&P ratings are not available, ratings by Moody's and
Fitch are used in that order. Ratings for collateralized debt obligations represent the ratings associated with the underlying collateral.

*  Other domestic debt and foreign debt securities (corporate and government) - For non-callable corporate securities, a credit
spread scale is created for each issuer. These spreads are then added to the equivalent maturity U.S. Treasury yield to determine
current pricing. Credit spreads are obtained from the new market, secondary trading levels and dealer quotes. For securities
with early redemption features, an option adjusted spread ("OAS") model is incorporated to adjust the spreads determined
above. Additionally, we survey the broker/dealer community to obtain relevant trade data including benchmark quotes and
updated spreads.

*  Equity securities — Except for those legacy investments in hedge funds, since most of our securities are transacted in active
markets, fair value measurements are determined based on quoted prices for the identical security. For hedge fund investments,
we receive monthly statements from the investment manager with the estimated fair value.

Derivatives — Derivatives are recorded at fair value. Asset and liability positions in individual derivatives that are covered by
legally enforceable master netting agreements, including receivables (payables) for cash collateral posted (received), are offset
and presented net in accordance with accounting principles which allow the offsetting of amounts.

Derivatives traded on an exchange are valued using quoted prices. OTC derivatives, which comprise a majority of derivative
contract positions, are valued using valuation techniques. The fair value for the majority of our derivative instruments are determined
based on internally developed models that utilize independently corroborated market parameters, including interest rate yield
curves, option volatilities, and currency rates. For complex or long-dated derivative products where market data is not available,
fair value may be affected by the underlying assumptions about, among other things, the timing of cash flows, expected exposure,
probability of default and recovery rates. The fair values of certain structured derivative products are sensitive to unobservable
inputs such as default correlations of the referenced credit and volatilities of embedded options. These estimates are susceptible
to significant change in future periods as market conditions change.

We use the Overnight Indexed Swap (OIS) curves as inputs to measure the fair value of collateralized interest rate derivatives.
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Significant inputs related to derivative classes are broken down as follows:

*  Credit Derivatives — Use credit default curves and recovery rates which are generally provided by broker quotes and various
pricing services. Certain credit derivatives may also use correlation inputs in their model valuation. Correlation is derived
using market quotes from brokers and various pricing services.

» Interest Rate Derivatives — Swaps use interest rate curves based on currency that are actively quoted by brokers and other
pricing services. Options will also use volatility inputs which are also quoted in the broker market.

*  Foreign Exchange ("FX") Derivatives — FX transactions, to the extent possible, use spot and forward FX rates which are
quoted in the broker market. Where applicable, we also use implied volatility of currency pairs as inputs.

*  Equity Derivatives — Use listed equity security pricing and implied volatilities from equity traded options position.

*  Precious Metal Derivatives — Use spot and forward metal rates which are quoted in the broker market.

As discussed earlier, we make fair value adjustments to model valuations in order to ensure that those values represent appropriate
estimates of fair value. These adjustments, which are applied consistently over time, are generally required to reflect factors such
as bid-ask spreads and counterparty credit risk that can affect prices in arms-length transactions with unrelated third parties. Such
adjustments are based on management judgment and may not be observable.

We estimate the counterparty credit risk for financial assets and own credit standing for financial liabilities (the "credit risk
adjustments") in determining the fair value measurement. For derivative instruments, we calculate the credit risk adjustment by
applying the probability of default of the counterparty to the expected exposure, and multiplying the result by the expected loss
given default. We also take into consideration the risk mitigating factors including collateral agreements and master netting
arrangements in determining credit risk adjustments. We estimate the implied probability of default based on the credit spread of
the specific counterparty observed in the credit default swap market. Where credit default spread of the counterparty is not available,
we use the credit default spread of a specific proxy (e.g. the credit default swap spread of the counterparty's parent). Where specific
proxy credit default swap is not available, we apply a blended approach based on a combination of credit default swaps referencing
to credit names of similar credit standing and the historical rating-based probability of default.

Real estate owned - Fair value is determined based on third party appraisals obtained at the time we take title to the property and,
if less than the carrying amount of the loan, the carrying amount of the loan is adjusted to the fair value. The carrying amount of
the property is further reduced, if necessary, at least every 45 days to reflect observable local market data, including local area
sales data.

Mortgage servicing rights - We elected to measure residential mortgage servicing rights, which are classified as intangible assets,
at fair value. The fair value for the residential mortgage servicing rights is determined based on an option adjusted approach which
involves discounting servicing cash flows under various interest rate projections at risk-adjusted rates. The valuation model also
incorporates our best estimate of the prepayment speed of the mortgage loans, current cost to service and discount rates which are
unobservable. As changes in interest rates is a key factor affecting the prepayment speed and hence the fair value of the mortgage
servicing rights, we use various interest rate derivatives and forward purchase contracts of mortgage-backed securities to risk-
manage the mortgage servicing rights.

Structured notes — Structured notes are hybrid instruments containing embedded derivatives. Structured notes are elected to be
measured at fair value in their entirety under fair value option accounting principles. The valuation of hybrid instruments is
predominantly driven by the derivative features embedded within the instruments. The valuation of embedded derivatives may
include significant unobservable inputs such as correlation of the referenced credit names or volatility of the embedded option.

Cash flows of the funded notes are discounted at the appropriate rate for the applicable duration of the instrument adjusted for our
own credit spreads. The credit spreads so applied are determined with reference to our own debt issuance rates observed in the
primary and secondary markets, internal funding rates, and the structured note rates in recent executions.

Long-term debt — We elected to apply fair value option to certain own debt issuances for which fair value hedge accounting
otherwise would have been applied. These own debt issuances elected under FVO are traded in secondary markets and, as such,
the fair value is determined based on observed prices for the specific instrument. The observed market price of these instruments
reflects the effect of our own credit spreads. The credit spreads applied to these instruments were derived from the spreads at the
measurement date.

For long-term debt recorded at cost, fair value is determined based on quoted market prices where available. If quoted market
prices are not available, fair value is based on dealer quotes, quoted prices of similar instruments, or internally developed valuation
models adjusted for own credit risks.

Deposits — For fair value disclosure purposes, the carrying amount of deposits with no stated maturity (e.g., demand, savings, and
certain money market deposits), which represents the amount payable upon demand, is considered to generally approximate fair
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value. For deposits with stated maturities, including structured deposits, fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using
market interest rates currently offered on deposits with similar characteristics and maturities.

19. Litigation and Regulatory Matters

The following supplements, and should be read together with, the disclosure in Note 28 - Litigation and Regulatory Matters to
our Consolidated Financial Statements included in our 2013 Form 10-K. Only those matters with significant updates and new
matters since our disclosure in our 2013 Form 10-K are reported herein.

In addition to the matters described below, and in our 2013 Form 10-K, in the ordinary course of business, we are routinely named
as defendants in, or as parties to, various legal actions and proceedings relating to activities of our current and/or former operations.
These legal actions and proceedings may include claims for substantial or indeterminate compensatory or punitive damages, or
for injunctive relief. In the ordinary course of business, we also are subject to governmental and regulatory examinations,
information-gathering requests, investigations and proceedings (both formal and informal), certain of which may result in adverse
judgments, settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions or other relief. In connection with formal and informal inquiries by these
regulators, we receive numerous requests, subpoenas and orders seeking documents, testimony and other information in connection
with various aspects of our regulated activities.

In view of the inherent unpredictability of litigation and regulatory matters, particularly where the damages sought are substantial
or indeterminate or when the proceedings or investigations are in the early stages, we cannot determine with any degree of certainty
the timing or ultimate resolution of litigation and regulatory matters or the eventual loss, fines, penalties or business impact, if
any, that may result. We establish reserves for litigation and regulatory matters when those matters present loss contingencies that
are both probable and can be reasonably estimated. Once established, reserves are adjusted from time to time, as appropriate, in
light of additional information. The actual costs of resolving litigation and regulatory matters, however, may be substantially higher
than the amounts reserved for those matters.

For the litigation and governmental and regulatory matters disclosed below and in Note 28 - Litigation and Regulatory Matters to
our Consolidated Financial Statements included in our 2013 Form 10-K as to which a loss in excess of accrued liability is reasonably
possible in future periods and for which there is sufficient currently available information on the basis of which management
believes it can make a reliable estimate, we believe a reasonable estimate could be as much as $1.4 billion. The litigation and
governmental and regulatory matters underlying this estimate of possible loss will change from time to time and actual results
may differ significantly from this current estimate.

Given the substantial or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters, and the inherent unpredictability of such matters,
an adverse outcome in certain of these matters could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements in
particular quarterly or annual periods.

Litigation

Credit Card Litigation To date, opt-out merchants have filed 35 opt-out suits in either state or federal court, including one, Speedy
Stop Food Stores LLCv. Visa Inc. (Tex. Dist. Ct., Victoria City, No. 13-10-75377-A), that names certain HSBC entities as defendants.
Most of these opt-out suits have been transferred to the consolidated multidistrict litigation, MDL 1720. Pursuant to the MDL 1720
Sharing Agreements, certain HSBC entities are responsible for a pro rata portion of any judgment or settlement amount awarded
in actions consolidated into MDL 1720.

Salveson v. JPMorgan Chase et al. (N.D.Cal. No. 13-CV-5816) On March 28, 2014, defendants, including the HSBC defendants
who had been served as of that date (HSBC Bank USA and HSBC Finance), filed a motion to dismiss.

Checking Account Overdraft Litigation On March 5, 2014, the Eastern District of New York granted in part and denied in part
HSBC Bank USA’s motion to dismiss in the HSBC Overdraft MDL, leaving only plaintiffs’ claims for violation of California’s
False Advertising Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. §§ 17500, et seq., violation of California’s unfair competition law, Cal. Bus. & Prof.
Code §§ 17200, and breach of California’s and New York’s implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing. Interim class counsel
and counsel for the Levin Plaintiffs separately filed motions for reconsideration, which HSBC has opposed.

County of Cook v HSBC North America Holdings Inc., et al. (N.D. Ill. Case No. 1:14-cv-2031). On March 21, 2014, Cook County,
Illinois (the county in which the city of Chicago is located) filed an action pursuant to the Fair Housing Act against HSBC North
America and certain subsidiaries that is substantially similar to the lawsuit filed by the counties of DeKalb, Fulton and Cobb in
Georgia. In this action, as in DeKalb County, et al. v. HSBC North America Holdings Inc., et al., the plaintiff asserts that the
defendants' allegedly discriminatory lending and servicing practices led to increased loan delinquencies, foreclosures and vacancies,
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which in turn caused the plaintiff to incur damages in the form of lost property tax revenues and increased municipal services
costs, among other damages. An amended complaint was filed on March 31, 2014. The action is at an early stage.

Lender-Placed Insurance Matters Lender-placed insurance involves a lender obtaining an insurance policy (hazard or flood
insurance) on a mortgaged property when the borrower fails to maintain their own policy. The cost of the lender-placed insurance
is then passed on to the borrower. Industry practices with respect to lender-placed insurance are receiving heightened regulatory
scrutiny from both federal and state agencies.

The various U.S. HSBC defendants entered into a Memorandum of Understanding in the Lopez v. HSBC Bank USA, N.A., et al.
(S.D. Fla 13-CV-21104) action to settle hazard lender-placed insurance claims on behalf of a nationwide class comprised of
borrowers “who, from January 1, 2005 to the present, were charged by HSBC defendants as assureds or additional assureds under
a hazard lender placed insurance policy for residential property.” The settlement pays claims of class members, on a claims made
basis, based on a formula, as well as class plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees and costs of administration, with an overall cap of $32 million
for all payments. This settlement does not include claims related to lender-placed flood insurance, such as those asserted in the
Montanez, et al. v. HSBC Mortgage Corporation (USA), et al. (E.D. Pa. No. 11-CV-4074) and Weller, et al. v. HSBC Mortgage
Services, Inc., et al. (D. Col. No. 13-CV-00185) actions. The Southern District of Florida granted preliminary approval of the
settlement on March 24, 2014. The settlement is subject to final approval by the court.

Private Mortgage Insurance Matters The Ba v. HSBC Bank USA, N.A., et al (E.D. Pa. No. 2:13-cv-00072PD) case is currently
stayed pending the Third Circuit Court of Appeals’ determination of similar issues in Riddle v. Bank of America Corp, et al.

Credit Default Swap Litigation On April 11,2014, in response to defendants’ motions to dismiss, plaintiffs filed a second amended,
consolidated complaint naming HSBC Bank plc and HSBC Bank USA as defendants, among others.

Foreign Exchange (“FX”) Litigation On March 31, 2014, plaintiffs filed an amended consolidated complaint naming HSBC,
HSBC Bank ple, HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA, among others, as defendants. The amended consolidated complaint
alleges, among other things, that defendants conspired to manipulate the WM/Reuters foreign currency rates by sharing customers'
confidential order flow information, thereby injuring plaintiffs and others by forcing them to pay artificial and non-competitive
prices for products based off these foreign currency rates.

Gold Fix Litigation Since March 2014, numerous putative class actions have been filed in the Southern District of New York and
the Northern District of California naming as defendants HSBC USA, HSI, HSBC and HSBC Bank plc, in addition to other
members of the London Gold Fix. The complaints allege that from around January 1, 2004 to the present, defendants conspired
to manipulate the price of gold and gold derivatives during the afternoon London Gold Fix in order to reap profits on proprietary
trades. These actions are at very early stages.

Madoff Litigation

In December 2008, Bernard L. Madoff ("Madoff") was arrested for running a Ponzi scheme and a trustee was appointed for the
liquidation of his firm, Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC ("Madoff Securities"), an SEC-registered broker-dealer and
investment adviser. Various non-U.S. HSBC companies provided custodial, administration and similar services to a number of
funds incorporated outside the United States whose assets were invested with Madoff Securities. Plaintiffs (including funds, funds
investors and the Madoff Securities trustee) have commenced Madoff-related proceedings against numerous defendants in a
multitude of jurisdictions. Various HSBC companies have been named as defendants in suits in the United States, Ireland,
Luxembourg and other jurisdictions. Certain suits (which include U.S. putative class actions) allege that the HSBC defendants
knew or should have known of Madoff's fraud and breached various duties to the funds and fund investors.

Wailea Partners, LP v. HSBC Bank USA, N.A. (N.D. Ca. No. 11-CV-3544) On April 21, 2014, after raising the issue of subject
matter jurisdiction based on diversity jurisdiction, the Court of Appeals ruled that neither it nor the district court had jurisdiction
over the case from the outset and vacated the case.

There are many factors that may affect the range of possible outcomes, and the resulting financial impact, of the various Madoft-
related proceedings including, but not limited to, the circumstances of the fraud, the multiple jurisdictions in which proceeding
have been brought and the number of different plaintiffs and defendants in such proceedings. For these reasons, among others, we
are unable to reasonably estimate the aggregate liability or ranges of liability that might arise as a result of these claims but they
could be significant. In any event, we consider that we have good defenses to these claims and will continue to defend them
vigorously.
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20. New Accounting Pronouncements

The following new accounting pronouncements were adopted in 2014:

Unrecognized Tax Benefits In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued an Accounting
Standards Update that provides guidance on financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net
operating loss (“NOL”) carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists in the same tax jurisdiction.
The standard requires an entity to present the unrecognized tax benefit as a reduction of the deferred tax asset for an NOL
or tax credit carryforward whenever the NOL or tax credit carryforward would be available to reduce the additional taxable
income or tax due if the tax position is disallowed. However, the standard requires an entity to present an unrecognized
tax benefit on the balance sheet as a liability if certain conditions are met. The new guidance is effective for all annual and
interim periods beginning January 1, 2014. The adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our unrecognized tax
benefit liability.

Accounting for Investments in Qualified Housing Projects In January 2014, the FASB issued an Accounting Standards
Update ("ASU") which permits, but does not require, an investor to amortize its Low Income Housing Tax Credit ("LIHTC")
investments in proportion to the allocated Low Income Housing Federal tax benefits and present such tax benefits net of
investment amortization in the income tax line. The ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2014
to be applied retrospectively with early adoption permitted. We elected to early adopt the ASU on January 1, 2014 due to
its improvement in the presentation of the economic benefits of this investment class. The early adoption of the ASU
required the previous period to also be restated and resulted in a reduction to operating expenses of $21 million in both of
the three month periods ended March 31,2014 and 2013, respectively, with a corresponding increase to income tax expense.
There was no overall impact to net income.

There were no accounting pronouncements issued during the first three months of 2014, other than those discussed above, that
are expected to have a significant impact on our financial position or results of operations.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain matters discussed throughout this Form 10-Q are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, we may make or approve certain statements in future filings with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), in press releases, or oral or written presentations by representatives of HSBC USA
Inc. ("HSBC USA" and together with its subsidiaries, "HUSI") that are not statements of historical fact and may also constitute

CEINT3 9

forward-looking statements. Words such as “may”, “will”, “should”, “would”, “could”, “appears”, “believe”, “intends”, “expects”,
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“estimates”, “targeted”, “plans”, “anticipates”, “goal”, and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements
but should not be considered as the only means through which these statements may be made. These matters or statements will
relate to our future financial condition, economic forecast, results of operations, plans, objectives, performance or business
developments and will not involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from that which was expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements.

All forward-looking statements are, by their nature, subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. Our
actual future results may differ materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements. While there is no assurance that
any list of risks and uncertainties or risk factors is complete, below are certain factors which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those in the forward-looking statements:

* uncertain market and economic conditions, uncertainty relating to the U.S. debt and budget matters, the potential for
future downgrading of U.S. debt ratings, a decline in housing prices, high unemployment, tighter credit conditions, changes
in interest rates, the availability of liquidity, unexpected geopolitical events, heightened market concerns over sovereign
creditworthiness in over-indebted countries, changes in consumer confidence and consumer spending, and consumer
perception as to the continuing availability of credit and price competition in the market segments we serve;

* changes in laws and regulatory requirements;
* extraordinary government actions as a result of market turmoil;

» capital and liquidity requirements under Basel 111, the Federal Reserve Board's ("FRB") Comprehensive Capital Analysis
and Review ("CCAR"), and the Dodd-Frank Act stress testing ("DFAST");

» changes in central banks' policies with respect to the provision of liquidity support to financial markets;

+ the ability of HSBC Holdings plc ("HSBC" and, together with its subsidiaries, "HSBC Group") and HSBC Bank USA
to fulfill the requirements imposed by the deferred prosecution agreements with the U.S. Department of Justice, the U.S.
Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of New York, and the U.S. Attorney's Office for the Northern District of West
Virginia, our agreement with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and our other consent agreements;

» damage to our reputation;
» the ability to attract and retain customers and to retain key employees;

» theeffects of competition in the markets where we operate including increased competition for non-bank financial services
companies, including securities firms;

» afailure in or a breach of our operation or security systems or infrastructure, or those of third party servicers or vendors;
» third party suppliers' and outsourcing vendors' ability to provide adequate services;

*  our ability to meet our funding requirements;

*  our ability to cross-sell our products to existing customers;

* increases in our allowance for credit losses and changes in our assessment of our loan portfolios;

» changes in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") and International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB")
accounting standards;

« continued heightened regulatory scrutiny with respect to residential mortgage servicing practices, with particular focus
on loss mitigation, foreclosure prevention and outsourcing;

» changes to our mortgage servicing and foreclosure practices;
» changes in the methodology for determining benchmark rates;

» heightened regulatory and government enforcement scrutiny of financial markets, with a particular focus on foreign
exchange;
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» the possibility of incorrect assumptions or estimates in our financial statements, including reserves related to litigation,
deferred tax assets and the fair value of certain assets and liabilities;

* changes in bankruptcy laws to allow for principal reductions or other modifications to mortgage loan terms;

» additional financial contribution requirements to the HSBC North America Holdings Inc. ("HSBC North America")
pension plan;

* unexpected and/or increased expenses relating to, among other things, litigation and regulatory matters; and

» the other risk factors and uncertainties described under Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2013 ("2013 Form 10-K").

Forward-looking statements are based on our current views and assumptions and speak only as of the date they are made.We
undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect subsequent circumstances or events. You should,
however, consider any additional disclosures of a forward-looking nature that arise after the date hereof as may be discussed in
any of our subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K.
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Executive Overview

HSBC USA is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC North America, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
HSBC. HUSI may also be referred to in MD&A as "we", "us" or "our".

Current Environment The U.S. economy continued its gradual recovery during the first quarter of 2014. Consumer confidence,
however, declined during the first quarter of 2014 as severe winter weather across many parts of the United States and continuing
high gasoline prices dampened consumer sentiment. In March 2014, the Federal Reserve Board announced a further reduction in
its bond buying stimulus program and updated its guidance on short-term interest rates, putting less weight on the unemployment
rate and indicating that it would look at ‘a broad range of economic indicators’ in deciding when to start raising short-term interest
rates. The prolonged period of low interest rates continues to put pressure on spreads earned on our deposit base.

While the economy continued to add jobs in the first quarter of 2014, the pace of new job creation continued to be well short of
the pace needed to significantly reduce the number of long-term unemployed. The unemployment rate in the U.S. remained flat
during the quarter at 6.7 percent as more people began to look for work, although a significant number of U.S. residents are no
longer looking for work and are not reflected in the U.S. unemployment rates. Unemployment has continued to have an impact
on the provision for credit losses in our loan portfolio and in loan portfolios across the industry. Concerns about the future of the
U.S. economy, including the pace and magnitude of recovery from the recent economic recession, consumer confidence, fiscal
policy, volatility in energy prices, credit market volatility including the ability to resolve various global financial issues and trends
in corporate earnings will continue to influence the U.S. economic recovery and the capital markets. In particular, continued
improvement in unemployment rates, a sustained recovery of the housing markets and stabilization in energy prices remain critical
components of a broader U.S. economic recovery. These conditions in combination with the impact of recent regulatory changes,
including the on-going implementation of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the "Dodd-
Frank Act" or "Dodd-Frank"), will continue to impact our results in 2014 and beyond.

While the housing market in the U.S. continues to recover, the strength of recovery varies by market. However, the impact of
servicers resuming foreclosure activities and the listing of the underlying properties for sale along with increases in mortgage
interest rates could slow down future price gains. In addition, certain courts and state legislatures have issued rules or statutes
relating to foreclosures and scrutiny of foreclosure documentation has increased in some courts. Also, in some areas, officials are
requiring additional verification of information filed prior to the foreclosure proceeding. The combination of these factors has led
to a significant backlog of foreclosures which will take time to resolve.

Performance, Developments and Trends The following table sets forth selected financial highlights of HSBC USA for the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 and as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)

INEE IIICOMIE ...ttt e e e e e e ettt eeeeeeeeeeeaa e e eeeeeeeesesasnsnneaaaeees $ 104 $ 183
Rate of return on average:

TOLAL ASSELS. ....eeueeieetietteteet ettt ettt ettt b et b bt b ettt b ettt et et n st et ebe et e ne b ebe b e 2% 4%

Total common shareholder’s EqUILY.........coueiiriiiieieeeee et 2.3 4.1
Net interest margin 1.30 1.30
EffICIENCY TALIO . ....iuieiieiietietiete ettt ettt ettt et sttt e e b e te e st e et e e b e esaesseeseeseeseesseessesseensesssensessaessanseans 73.6 70.0
Commercial net charge-0fF TAtI0!) ...........o.oiuieeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et e e 20 .55
Consumer net charge-0ff TAI!) ..o S1 .89

@ Excludes loans held for sale.
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March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Additional Select Ratios:

Allowance as a percent 0f 10815 .............oooiviooieeeeeeee oo 83% .90%
Commercial allowance as a percent of 10ans") ..............c.coouriuiueeeieeeeee oo .62 .64
Consumer allowance as a percent of 10an5") .............o.cooiiiiioieeeoeeee oo, 1.40 1.55
Consumer two-months-and-over contractual delinqUENCY .........cceevevrieiiriieienieie e 6.42 6.80
L0aNS 10 dEPOSIES TAHOP ..o e e e eeeeee e 83.23 79.16
Tier 1 capital to risSk WeIZhted @SSELS ....cuvivviiiieiiiieieiieieetet ettt ettt et esae e esae e esseesaens 11.63 11.65
Common equity Tier 1 1atio™ ............o.coovvuoooooeeeeeeeeeeeee e 10.48 9.94
Total capital to risk Weighted aSSELS........cccuiiiiriiiieiiiiiciieiet ettt st esbe e b esnens 16.05 16.36
Total sharcholders’ equity t0 tOtal ASSELS........eevueruieriiiieieeiieeeiiete ettt eneens 8.90 8.88

Select Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and interest bearing deposits With Danks...........cccoceviriiiiiiiiiiireee e $ 24621 $ 20,575
TTAAING ASSELS......ceeeieiiiieiee ettt 27,336 28,894
Securities available-fOr-Sale.........ccoivviiiieiiiiieiicieicceeeee et ere e 53,588 54,906
Loans:
COMMETCIAL JOANS .....vviviiiiieiieii ettt ettt e et esbeesaesreesaesreessesasesbesssesseessensenssenseenns 49,893 48,494
CONSUMET LOAIS ...ttt ettt ettt sttt sa et b et ettt ettt e st bt ebeebeebesbenbenee 19,004 19,201
TOTAL LOANS ..envteeiiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e s abeenbeesabeesbeessbeenseeasbeenbeessseenseesabeenseensseenseennseenses 68,897 67,695
DIEPOSIES ...ttt 105,531 112,608
(" Excludes loans held for sale.
@ Represents period end loans, net of allowance for loan losses, as a percentage of domestic deposits equal to or less than $100,000.
(3)

Basel III introduces the common equity Tier 1 ratio. For December 31, 2013, the ratio presented is the Tier 1 common ratio calculated under Basel 1.

Net income was $104 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with income of $183 million during the
three months ended March 31, 2013. Income before income taxes was $253 million in the three months ended March 31, 2014
compared with income of $308 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013. The decrease in income before income
tax was driven by lower other revenues, partially offset by lower operating expenses, higher net interest income and a lower
provision for credit losses. Our results in all periods were impacted by the change in the fair value of our own debt attributable to
credit spread for which we have elected fair value option which distorts comparability of the underlying performance trends of
our business. The following table summarizes the impact of this item on our income before income taxes for all periods presented:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Income before income tax, as TEPOTLEA .........cveruerierieriierieieeieieee ettt este e steeaesseeaesseessesseessesseensessaensenns $ 253 $ 308
Fair value movement on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread...............cccoccoiiniinn. 19) 42
Underlying income before income BAXES') ..o $ 234§ 350

M Represents a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure.

Excluding the impact of the change in the fair value of our own debt attributable to credit spread for which we have elected fair
value option accounting in the table above, our underlying income before tax for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased
$116 million compared with the prior year period as lower other revenues was partially offset by a lower provision for credit losses,
lower operating expenses and higher net interest income.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we continued to reduce legacy and other risk positions as opportunities arose.
The following table provides a summary of the significant valuation adjustments associated with these legacy positions that
impacted revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Insurance monoline structured credit products') ............co.coo.oovviveiierieeee e $ 16 $ 20
Other structured credit Products").............co..cooviioeeeereeeeee e 17 14
Leverage acquisition finance 10aNS') .................coouevvurverierecieecseesseesee e — 13
TOLAL ZAINS ...c..vvtvietereteteeete ettt ettt ettt ettt bbbt b bbbt et b bt es e s bbb b eb et ebe bbbt etebebebenesesesebenenenenen $ 33 § 47

M Reflected in Trading revenue in the consolidated statement of income.
@ Reflected in Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives in the consolidated statement of income.

See "Results of Operations" for a more detailed discussion of our operating trends. In addition, see "Balance Sheet Review" for
further discussion on our receivable trends, "Liquidity and Capital Resources" for further discussion on funding and capital and
"Credit Quality" for additional discussion on our credit trends.

We continue to focus on cost optimization efforts to ensure realization of cost efficiencies. To date, we have identified and
implemented various opportunities to reduce costs through organizational structure redesign, vendor spending, discretionary
spending and other general efficiency initiatives. Additional cost reduction opportunities have been identified and are in the process
of implementation. Workforce reductions, some of which relate to our retail branch divestitures, have resulted in total full-time
equivalent employees being reduced by 37 percent since December 31, 2010. Workforce reductions are also occurring in certain
shared services functions other than compliance, which we expect will result in additional reductions to future allocated costs for
these functions. These efforts continue and, as a result, we may incur restructuring charges in future periods, the amount of which
will depend upon the actions that ultimately are implemented.

In October 2013, our Board of Directors approved a sale of our London Branch precious metals custody and clearing business to
HSBC Bank plc. As the sale of this business is between affiliates under common control, we expect the consideration received in
excess of our carrying value will result in an increase to additional paid-in-capital, net of tax, of approximately $50 million upon
close. The cash sale is currently expected to be completed in the second half of 2014. At March 31, 2014, assets and liabilities
related to this business totaled approximately $10.0 billion each, while revenue associated with this business was approximately
$9 million and $16 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We will continue to operate our
metals trading business which is unaffected by this decision.

We continue to evaluate our overall operations as we seek to optimize our risk profile and cost efficiencies as well as our liquidity,
capital and funding requirements. This could result in further strategic actions that may include changes to our legal structure,
asset levels, cost structure or product offerings in support of HSBC'’s strategic priorities.
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Basis of Reporting

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States ("U.S. GAAP"). Unless noted, the discussion of our financial condition and results of operations included in MD&A are
presented on a continuing operations basis of reporting. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform

to the current year presentation.

In addition to the U.S. GAAP financial results reported in our consolidated financial statements, MD&A includes reference to the
following information which is presented on a non-U.S. GAAP basis:

International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"’) Because HSBC reports financial information in accordance with IFRSs

and IFRSs operating results are used in measuring and rewarding performance of employees, our management also separately
monitors net income under IFRSs (a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure). The following table reconciles our net income on a

U.S. GAAP basis to net income on an IFRSs basis.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Net iNCOmMe — U.S. GAAP DASIS....ccuiiieiieieieiieciieiest ettt ettt e steseesseetessessaesseensesseessesseensesseensenns $§ 104 § 183
Adjustments, net of tax:
IFRSs reclassification of fair value measured financial assets during 2008............cccoooeererieienieieneee (D (10)
SECUTITICS ...t euveneieeeettete et ete st e e st eate s st ente et tesseestenseessenseassenseeseesseansesseensesseensesssenseessenseensanseenseseensenseansesees 2) 3)
LOAN IMPAITINENL ..c..vitieeieiieitieteete ettt ettt este et e sbeeaesteesbesseesseeseessesseessesseessessaessesssesseessesssessasssensensaensenns 23 @)
(0] 7S] 1 USSP — 2)
POIISION COSES ...uiiuiiiiiiieiieiiete ettt ettt te sttt e et e bt e st e st et et e es b eeseenseeseansesseensessaesseensesseensesseensenseensenseansenns 8 4
ORI . ettt a et a e h e bt bttt h e b bbbt et e n e a e ae bt be bt bt bt be et et e tentenean (6) (13)
Net iNCOME — TFRSS DASIS. ....eeuiieieie ettt ettt e ettt et e s et e eesbe et e s beenteebeenteeneeneeene 126 152
TaxX eXPenSe — IFRSS DASIS ......cvieiieiiiieiecierieee ettt sttt e e s te et esseenseeseenseeseenseennesaeennenes 142 124
Profit before tax — IFRSS DASIS ......ciiieiiiiiiticticieiciet ettt ettt ettt ettt tsereereereeveeveeveebessesessens $§ 268 $§ 276

The significant differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs impacting our results presented in the table above are discussed in
more detail within "Basis of Reporting" in our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no significant changes since December 31, 2013
in the differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs impacting our results.
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Balance Sheet Review

We utilize deposits and borrowings from various sources to provide liquidity, fund balance sheet growth, meet cash and capital
needs, and fund investments in subsidiaries. The following table provides balance sheet totals at March 31, 2014 and increases

(decreases) since December 31, 2013:

March 31, 2014

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2013

Amount

Y%

(dollars are in millions)

Period end assets:

ShOrt-term INVESTMENTS .....c.veiiviiiiieiie ettt $ 25973 $ 3,279 14.4 %
QY 1o TN 1 1= SOOI 68,323 1,234 1.8
Loans held fOr SALe .......ccuivieiieiei et s 969 739 *
TTAAING ASSELS...eevieiiiirieiietietieeeteeee e etesteebe e esbeereesbeeseeseessesseessesseessessaensessees 27,336 (1,558) (5.4)
SECUITLIES ..ttt ettt ettt et e bt e et et et et et et e s et eneeseeneeneeseeseseeesensenes 54,873 (1,391) (2.5)
OhET @SSEES .vevietieiietieieetteteete et e st te st e aesteesbesteesteeseesseeseeseeneesseensesnnensesneas 9,700 (616) (6.0)

$ 187,174 § 1,687 9%

Funding sources:

TOtAl AEPOSILS ...vvivrrieietieieteteteet ettt ettt ettt ettt sa et et b tesbess b esseseenas $ 105531 $ (7,077) (6.3)%
Trading HabIIIEIES .....ecvveiieeieiieieie ettt see e seees 9,349 (1,526) (14.0)
ShOTt-term DOTTOWINGS ......eeveiuieieieiieieeiieeie ettt st see et be e saeens 28,767 9,632 50.3
Long-term debt.......c.ocvieiieiieiieiee et e 22,953 106 5
AL Other HADIIITIES .....eeiieviiiieeie ettt eee s eeareeeenveeeenes 3,907 349 9.8
Shareholders’ EqUILY.......coeereiierieieee ettt 16,667 203 1.2

$ 187,174 $ 1,687 9%

* Not meaningful.

Short-Term Investments Short-term investments include cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks and
securities purchased under resale agreements. Balances will fluctuate from period to period depending upon our liquidity position
at the time. Overall balances increased since December 31, 2013 as we managed our short-term investments to maximize earnings

while retaining liquidity.

80



HSBC USA Inc.

Loans, Net The following summarizes our loan balances at March 31, 2014 and increases (decreases) since December 31, 2013:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2013

March 31,2014 Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and other real €State ...........evviviieiviiiiiiieeieeeeeeeee e $ 9,165 §$ 131 1.5%
Business and corporate banking.............ccoeeeveeeierieeninieninineneneneneneeieene 15,698 1,252 8.7
Global DANKING'™ ... 21,979 354 1.6
Other commercial 10aNS .........ceoieiirieiere e 3,051 (338) (10.0)
Total comMmETCIal 10ANS ........cocvviiiiieiiiiiieeeeee e 49,893 1,399 2.9
Consumer loans:

Residential MOTtEages .......ccuveuieriieieriieiereee et 15,900 74 5

Home equity MOItGAZES ....cveevveiieeieiieieiiieie st eie sttt sre e sreesaeeeas 1,938 (73) (3.6)
Total residential MOTEZAZES .....eevveeuieriieierieie ettt 17,838 1 —
CrEIt CATAS .oovveveeieeiieieeiieie ettt ettt ettt esteeaesseesaesteessesseesseesaensenssensenns 683 (171) (20.0)
OthET CONSUITIET ....vvieevieieiieiieeiieeiee e eieeeere et e seteeteessaeeteessaessseesssasnseessseenseensees 483 27) (5.3)
Total CONSUMET JOANS. ......cccuiiiiiiiiieeie ettt ettt e eee e e eaeebeesebeeneesenas 19,004 (197) (1.0)

TOtAl LOANS. ......uvvieeieie ettt e et e et e e et e e e enreeeeaeeeeneeeens 68,897 1,202 1.8
Allowance for credit IoSSES..........oviiiiiiiiiiiiieiccc e 574 (32) (5.3)
LLOANS, TIEE....eviiieii ettt ettt ettt e eaa e et e e saaeeteeeateeaeeenteeteeeaaeeaeean $ 68,323 $ 1,234 1.8%

M Represents large multinational firms including globally focused U.S. corporate and financial institutions and U.S. Dollar lending to multinational banking
customers managed by HSBC on a global basis. Also includes loans to HSBC affiliates which totaled $5,277 million and $5,328 million at March 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Commercial loan balances increased compared with December 31, 2013 due primarily to new business activity in business and
corporate banking, and global banking, which reflects our continued focus on expanding our core proposition and proactively
targeting companies with international banking requirements in key growth markets. These increases were partially offset by pay
downs and managed reductions in certain exposures.

Total residential mortgage loans were flat compared with December 31, 2013 as a modest increase in residential mortgages was
offset by a decrease in home equity mortgages. We continue to sell newly originated conforming loans to PHH Mortgage and
target new residential mortgage loan originations towards our Premier customer relationships.

Prior to 2013, real estate markets in a large portion of the United States were affected by stagnation or declines in property values
for a number of years. As a result, while the loan-to-value ("LTV") ratios for our mortgage loan portfolio have deteriorated since
origination, we have recently seen a general improvement in the LTVs for our loan portfolio. The following table presents LTVs
for our mortgage loan portfolio, excluding subprime residential mortgage loans held for sale.

LTVs at LTVs at
March 31, 20140® December 31, 2013"®

First Lien Second Lien First Lien Second Lien
LTV < 8B0%0u i evieeieeiie ittt ettt ettt e s ebee e s 88.7% 69.2% 87.4% 65.0%
80% LTV < O0%0.uieieieeiieee ettt 5.5 13.3 6.0 14.1
90% < LTV < 100%0.u0ccuvieeeieeiieeiieeieesiieeieeseeeeiee e eveesveesvee e s 34 8.4 3.8 9.5
LTV > 1009 ..eoueeeiieieeieieeee ettt enens 2.4 9.0 2.9 11.3
Average LTV for portfolio..........cocoeererineneneneeecececncee, 60.1 64.7 61.4 67.3

M LTVs for first liens are calculated using the loan balance as of the reporting date. LTVs for second liens are calculated using the loan balance as of the
reporting date plus the senior lien amount at origination. Current estimated property values are derived from the property's appraised value at the time of
loan origination updated by the change in the Federal Housing Finance Agency's (formerly known as the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight)
house pricing index ("HPI") at either a Core Based Statistical Area ("CBSA") or state level. The estimated value of the homes could differ from actual fair
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values due to changes in condition of the underlying property, variations in housing price changes within metropolitan statistical areas and other factors. As
aresult, actual property values associated with loans that end in foreclosure may be significantly lower than the estimates used for purposes of this disclosure.

@ Current property values are calculated using the most current HPIs available and applied on an individual loan basis, which results in an approximate three
month delay in the production of reportable statistics. Therefore, the information in the table above reflects current estimated property values using HPIs as
of December 31, 2013 and September 30, 2013, respectively.

Credit card receivable balances decreased compared with December 31, 2013 reflecting seasonal paydowns.

Other consumer loans decreased since December 31, 2013, reflecting the discontinuation of student loan originations and the run-
off of our installment loan and auto finance portfolios.

Loans Held for Sale The following table summarizes loans held for sale at March 31, 2014 and increases (decreases) since
December 31, 2013:

Increase (Decrease) From

December 31, 2013
March 31, 2014 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Total coMMETCial LOANS.........ceevvieeiiiieiiiie ettt $ 864 §$ 788 *
Consumer loans:

Residential MOTtEages......ceevevvieeieriieieiieieste et sre et ese e s eeeenes 42 (49) (53.8)%

Other CONSUIMET ......ueivviitieiiectieteete ettt ste et steeaesteesaesreessesteessesseessesseenns 63 — —
Total CONSUMET J0ANS.....c.uiiiiiieiieiiicieeeie et eeee ettt e e e beeseaeeaae e 105 49) (31.8)%

Total 10ans held fOr SALE.........ccooviieriieriietiieeeeeeeete ettt $ 9269 $ 739 *

*  Not meaningful.

Commercial loans held for sale increased compared with December 31, 2013. Commercial syndicated loans that are originated
with the intent of selling them to unaffiliated third parties are classified as commercial loans held for sale and are recorded at fair
value as we have elected to designate these loans under fair value option. The fair value of commercial loans held for sale under
this program was $753 million and $58 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The increase from
December 31, 2013 is due primarily to the origination of a large global banking loan that is expected to be sold in the second
quarter of 2014.

Commercial loans held for sale also includes $54 million of global banking loans at March 31, 2014, which were transferred to
held for sale during the first quarter of 2014, as well as commercial real estate loans of $57 million and $18 million at March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Residential mortgage loans held for sale decreased compared with December 31, 2013. We sell all our agency eligible loan
originations servicing released directly to PHH Mortgage. Also included in residential mortgage loans held for sale are subprime
residential mortgage loans of $27 million and $46 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, which were
acquired from unaffiliated third parties and from HSBC Finance Corporation ("HSBC Finance") with the intent of securitizing or
selling the loans to third parties.

Other consumer loans held for sale includes certain student loans which we no longer originate.

Excluding the commercial loans designated under fair value option discussed above, loans held for sale are recorded at the lower
of amortized cost or fair value. The valuation adjustment on consumer loans held for sale was $59 million and $77 million at
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

82



HSBC USA Inc.

Trading Assets and Liabilities The following table summarizes trading assets and liabilities balances at March 31, 2014 and
increases (decreases) since December 31, 2013:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2013

March 31, 2014 Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

Trading assets:

SECUIIHES" ...ttt $ 13,016 $ 1,864 16.7 %
Precious mMetals..........cooveviviiiiiiiiiiiiicce 10,332 (1,419) (12.1)
DICTIVALIVES D) ... e e e e e enene 3,988 (2,003) (33.4)

$ 27,336 $ (1,558) (5.4)%

Trading liabilities:

Securities sold, not yet purchased...........cccvecveeiiecieriecienieie e 434 126 40.9 %
Payables for precious metals ..........ccooovieiiiieiiiiereeee e 3,926 100 2.6
DIETIVALIVES®) ... 4,989 (1,752) (26.0)

$ 9,349 $ (1,526) (14.0)%

M Includes U.S. Treasury securities, securities issued by U.S. Government agencies and U.S. Government sponsored enterprises, other asset-backed securities,
corporate and foreign bonds and debt securities.

@ AtMarch 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 the fair value of derivatives included in trading assets has been reduced by $3,247 million and $3,870 million,
respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the obligation to return cash collateral received under master netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

®  AtMarch 31,2014 and December 31, 2013 the fair value of derivatives included in trading liabilities has been reduced by $1,945 million and $2,116 million,
respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral paid under master netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

Securities balances increased since December 31,2013 largely due to increases in U.S. Treasury and corporate and foreign sovereign
positions held to mitigate the risks of interest rate products issued to customers of domestic and emerging markets. Balances of
securities sold, not yet purchased increased since December 31, 2013 due to an increase in short U.S. Treasury positions related
to hedges of derivatives in the interest rate trading portfolio.

Precious metals trading assets decreased since December 31, 2013 due primarily to a decrease in unallocated metal inventory that
resulted from client activity. This decrease was partially offset by an increase in spot rates during the quarter. The payable for
precious metals was relatively flat compared with December 31, 2013 as unallocated metal balances held on behalf of clients
remained steady.

Precious metal positions may not represent our net underlying exposure as we may use derivatives contracts to reduce our risk
associated with these positions, the fair value of which would appear in derivatives in the table above.

Derivative asset and liability balances decreased since December 31,2013 mainly from market movements as valuations of foreign
exchange, interest rate, credit and commodity derivatives all declined. As it relates to derivative liability balances, the overall
decrease since December 31, 2013 was partially offset by increases in commodity derivatives due to increases in prices during the
quarter, and, to a lesser extent, credit derivatives.

Securities Securities include securities available-for-sale and securities held-to-maturity. Balances will fluctuate between periods
depending upon our liquidity position at the time. The decline in balances since December 31, 2013 largely reflects the sale of
U.S. government agency mortgage-backed securities as part of a continuing strategy to re-balance the securities portfolio for risk
management purposes based on the current interest rate environment.

Other Assets Other assets includes intangibles and goodwill. The decrease from December 31, 2013 was the result of a decline
in net deferred tax assets, lower derivative balances associated with hedging activities and lower outstanding settlement balances.
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Deposits The following summarizes deposit balances by major depositor categories at March 31, 2014 and increases (decreases)
since December 31, 2013:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2013

March 31, 2014 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Individuals, partnerships and cOrporations ............cceeeevveerieineeneceneenneneennenes $ 89,512 3 (1,717) (1.9%
Domestic and foreign banks...........ccveereireninienieineieeree s $ 15,098 (5,327) (26.1)
U.S. government and states and political sSubdiviSions...........ccccecerevererenenennns 677 5 7
Foreign governments and official inStitutions.........cccccecveceevvircininencnenencneennes 244 (38) (13.5)
TOtAl AEPOSIES ..eevvieieiieiieiieieeie ettt ettt ettt et eb et e sb e beesbesreenseeaeenseees $ 105531 $ (7,077) (6.3)%
TOtal COTe dEPOSIES ...t eenen $ 83,941 (1,868) (2.2)%

M Core deposits, as calculated in accordance with Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council ("FFIEC") guidelines, generally include all domestic
demand, money market and other savings accounts, as well as time deposits with balances not exceeding $100,000.

Deposit balances at March 31, 2014 decreased since December 31, 2013 largely due to seasonality in our payments and cash
management business as customers managed their cash needs at year-end. The strategy for our core retail banking business includes
building relationship deposits and wealth management across multiple markets, channels and segments. This strategy involves
various initiatives, such as:

*  HSBC Premier, a premium service wealth and relationship banking proposition designed for the internationally-minded
client with a dedicated premier relationship manager. Total Premier deposits increased to $21,206 million at March 31,
2014 as compared with $20,877 million at December 31, 2013, due to seasonal increases in checking balances; and

»  Expanding our existing customer relationships by needs-based sales of wealth, banking and mortgage products.

We continue to actively manage our balance sheet to increase profitability while maintaining adequate liquidity. We have made
reductions to rates in 2013 on certain deposits and, while we have seen declines in the associated deposit balances, we still retain
substantial levels of liquidity.

Short-Term Borrowings Short-term borrowings increased since December 31, 2013 due to increased levels of securities sold
under agreements to repurchase and federal funds purchased as these continue to be a preferred source of funding given the current
interest rate environment.

Long-Term Debt Long-term debt increased compared with December 31, 2013 due primarily to the impact of debt issuances,
partially offset by long-term debt retirements. Debt issuances during the three months ended March 31,2014 and 2013, respectively,
included $767 million and $1,197 million of medium-term notes, of which $13 million and $196 million, respectively, was issued
by HSBC Bank USA, National Association ("HSBC Bank USA").

Incremental issuances from the $40 billion HSBC Bank USA Global Bank Note Program totaled $13 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and $196 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013. Total debt outstanding under this
program was $4,533 million and $4,535 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Given the adequate
liquidity of HSBC Bank USA, we do not anticipate the Global Bank Note Program being heavily used in the future as, among
diverse funding sources designed to minimize overall costs, deposits will continue to be a primary funding source for HSBC Bank
USA.

Incremental long-term debt issuances from our shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC")
totaled $754 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and $1,001 million during the three months ended March 31,
2013. Total long-term debt outstanding under this shelf was $11,817 million and $11,738 million at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively.

Borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLB") totaled $1,000 million at both March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013. At March 31, 2014, we had the ability to access further borrowings of up to $5,200 million based on the
amount pledged as collateral with the FHLB.

All Other Liabilities All other liabilities increased compared with December 31, 2013 due to an increase in tax liabilities, higher
outstanding settlement balances and higher derivative balances associated with hedging activities.
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Results of Operations

Net Interest Income Net interest income is the total interest income on earning assets less the total interest expense on deposits
and borrowed funds. In the discussion that follows, interest income and rates are presented and analyzed on a taxable equivalent
basis to permit comparisons of yields on tax-exempt and taxable assets. An analysis of consolidated average balances and interest
rates on a taxable equivalent basis is presented in this MD&A under the caption "Consolidated Average Balances and Interest
Rates."

The significant components of net interest margin are summarized in the following table:

2014 Compared to
2013
Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 Volume Rate 2013

(in millions)

Interest income:

Short-term INVESLMENLS .....cc.eevertirtirrirtertentetetetetet ettt ettt st sttt se et eeenees $ 16 $ 2 9 — $ 14
TTAAINE ASSELS..c.vttetetiteiete ettt sttt ettt et ettt ebe bt st b b et e teneenean 48 3 21 24
NTCTe 116 8 1= SRR 211 (24) 2 233
ComMMETCIAl IOANS ...ttt 287 37 23) 273
CONSUMET JOAIS.....c.uiiiiiieiiieiic et 177 “@ (10) 191
OERET .ttt ettt b et s b et be ettt enean 10 1 (6] 10
Total INTEIESt INCOIMIE. ...c.euventenieiieiieiieieeierte ettt ettt sttt s saenees 749 15 (11) 745
Interest expense:

DIEPOSIES. ..ottt ettt ettt st et s ettt et e et e st e ettt e ne e et eneeneeneenneeneenenn 35 3) ) 43
ShOTt-termM DOTTOWINES ..c..evitiititiieiesie ettt ettt ettt sttt st 9 4 (C)) 9
LONG-EITN dEDL.......eotiiiiiiiieiciieieeeeeer ettt ettt s 170 6 3) 167
TaX THADIIIEIES. ¢ttt ettt ettt ettt 12 — “) 16
TOtal INTEIEST EXPEIISE. ...c.veuvenreueeireireieeienierie sttt sttt ettt et ettt sbe sttt be et senaenees 226 7 (16) 235
Net interest income — taxable equivalent Dasis.........c.ccoeoeereeeeinenienenenereee e 523 $ 8 $ 5 510
Less: tax equivalent adjustment..........coceverirererinienienieieiereeeeeese et 4 5
Net interest income — non taxable equivalent basis W $ 505
Yield on total interest earning assets 1.86% 1.90%
Cost of total interest bearing liabilities ...........cccccoveiiiiiniiniiinccceceeeeeeee 73 .81
INtETESt Tate SPIEAM ....c..iviuieieieiieiieceteet ettt ettt st 1—13 1.09
Benefit from net non-interest paying funds'” ................cccoovirveeiiererieeceeeeeee s 17 21
Net interest margin on average €arning aSSELS.........ceoeuereereeeeerereeerereseessesseseensenes T1.30% T 130%

) Represents the benefit associated with interest earning assets in excess of interest bearing liabilities. The increased percentages reflect growth in this excess.

Net interest income increased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to increased interest income, which reflects
higher income from trading assets partially offset by lower income from securities, and a decrease in interest expense, which
reflects lower expense from deposits partially offset by higher expense from long-term debt.

Compared with the prior year period, the increase in interest income from trading assets reflects the result of rising market interest
rates during 2013 and a shift in asset mix to longer term, higher yielding securities. Securities in the trading portfolio are managed
as hedges against the derivative activity of our customers, which, in response to the current interest rate environment, has shifted
towards longer term, higher yielding returns. Interest income from securities decreased due primarily to the sale of U.S. government
agency mortgage-backed securities which resulted in lower outstanding balances compared with the prior year period. Interest
income from commercial loans was higher compared with the prior year period as loan growth was partially offset by lower yields
on newly originated loans and, to a lesser extent, loan repricing. Interest income from consumer loans decreased compared with
the prior year period primarily due to lower yields on newly originated loans as well as slightly lower outstanding balances. The
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lower yields for both commercial and consumer loans also reflects a continued focus on higher quality lending to reduce credit
risk exposure in our loan portfolios.

Compared with the prior year period, the decline in interest expense from deposits reflects the impact of lower rates paid on interest-
bearing deposits as well as lower average balances. Interest expense from long-term debt increased due to higher outstanding
borrowings partially offset by a shift in mix towards lower yielding non-subordinated debt. Interest expense from short-term
borrowings was relatively flat compared with the prior year period as higher outstanding borrowings were primarily in securities
purchased under agreements to resell and federal funds purchased which continue to be a preferred source of funding given the
current interest rate environment.

Provision for Credit Losses The following table summarizes the provision for credit losses associated with our various loan
portfolios:

Increase
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 (Decrease)
(dollars are in millions)
Commercial:
Construction and Other 1Al ESTALE ..........ccvvveriiiieriiiieieeterte et aesre e $ 2 $ 9 3 (7
Business and corporate Danking ...........ccccooeeriiiiiinieieeee e 19 2 17
(€3 e] 0T 1 0T 11 1 =S URS 7 (D 8
Other COMMETCIAL.........eivieeieiieeiecii ettt ettt et e tb e beesaesteessesseessessaesessaesessnensens “) — @)
TOtal COMMETCIAL......c.eiieieieieee ettt ettt ae bt besbeseeneeens $ 24 $ 10 $ 14
Consumer:
Residential MOTEZAZES .....ecvervieiiriieieeieeieeieete st te et e e et et e eseesbeeseesseessesseessessaesesssesessnensens (16) 3) (13)
HOME €qUItY MOTTZAZES. .....eetieeieiieieeie ettt ettt et e e seeeteeae et s seenaeseneaeas 2 17 (15)
Credit card reCeIVADIES ......c..coueiiiiiriiriiieieet ettt et 5 2) 7
OthET COMSUIMIET ..veviiiieeiieiietieeteeteete st etesteesbeseeebesssesseessesseesseseessesseessesseessesssessesssesensaesens 1 (1) 2
TOAl CONSUIMET ....eeeuvieieieeiieciieeiee e et eete et eeteebeesebe e beessae e seessaeesseesssaenseesssaenseessseanseenssennn 3 11 (19)
Total provision for Credit 10SSES.......ivviiriiirieiiteiiteeiiteitet ettt ettt b s sessens $ 16 $ 21 8§ (35)
Provision as a percentage of average 10ans..........cccocvevvivieriiiieniieieieeiereee e T 01% 01%

*  Not meaningful.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, our provision for credit losses decreased $5 million driven by lower provisions
for credit losses in our consumer loan portfolio partially offset by a higher provision for credit losses in our commercial loan
portfolio. During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we decreased our credit loss reserves as the provision for credit losses
was lower than net charge-offs by $32 million.

In our commercial portfolio, the provision for credit losses increased in the three months ended March 31, 2014 reflecting an
increase in judgmental reserves for risk factors not fully reflected in the statistical reserve calculations as well as loan growth in
expansion markets, primarily in business and corporate banking, and, to a lesser extent, global banking. Partially offsetting these
increases were continued improvements in economic and credit conditions including lower nonperforming loans and criticized
asset levels, managed reductions in certain exposures, and improvements in the financial circumstances of certain customer
relationships.

The provision for credit losses on residential mortgages including home equity mortgages decreased $28 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2014. The decrease was driven by an improvement in home prices as well as continued improvements
in economic and credit conditions including lower dollars of delinquency on accounts less than 180 days contractually delinquent
and improvements in loan delinquency roll rates.

The provision for credit losses associated with credit card receivables increased $7 million during the three months ended March
31, 2014 reflecting a moderate increase in delinquency rates.

Our methodology and accounting policies related to the allowance for credit losses are presented in our 2013 Form 10-K under
the caption "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" and in Note 2, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and New
Accounting Pronouncements." See "Credit Quality" in this MD&A for additional discussion on the allowance for credit losses
associated with our various loan portfolios.
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Other Revenues The following table summarizes the components of other revenues.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Credit Card FEES ....veveieieieieieteeee ettt ettt eee s $ 14 3 13 $ 1 7.7 %
Other fees and COMMUISSIONS .......c.ecuveriirieriirieierieseeee e ere e eee e esesseessesneeeeees 173 170 3 1.8
TTUSE INCOMIC. ....eevvieieiieeietieeieete ettt et et e b e steebe e e e sbeesa e beesbesseessesseessesseessenseensenes 31 32 (1 3.1
TTAdING TEVEIUE. ...c..eetieiietieiieeteeie ettt ettt ettt et ettt e st e tesaeeneeeaeeeeeaie 133 164 (31 (18.9)
Net other-than-temporary impairment 10SSES.........c.ecveeverierieeiereeieneeie e ?2) — 2) *
Other SECUTTtES ZAINS, NEL......ccvieriierieiieieteeeeie e steeee e b e sreese e esesreesseeaeesseees 22 131 (109) (83.2)
HSBC affiliate income:
Fees and COMMISSIONS .......ccueeiiriieierieie ettt ettt eeeees 38 42 @) 9.5
Other affiliate INCOME........ccieiirrieiieieie ettt ees 9 12 3) (25.0)
Total HSBC affiliate iNCOME........ceciiiiierieeiiecieeieeee et seve e 47 54 (7 (13.0)
Residential mortgage banking reVenue ...........ecvvverieeeerieeienieieeeeie e 48 46 2 43
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives......... 28 27 55 *
Other income:
Valuation of loans held for sale............ocveieriecieniecieciee e 1 3 2) (66.7)
INSUTANCE ...ttt ettt st 3 1 2 *
MiSCellan@Oous INCOIME .....ccveervrieiieeeieeiiesteeteeseeeteesteeeteesseesreesseessseesssassseenns 2 5 (3) (60.0)
Total Other INCOME......c..eeveiieiieieieeteie ettt e s ees 6 9 3) (33.3)
TOtal OThET TEVEIUES .......cveevevieeietieieeticteete ettt ettt ettt et eve v ebe s $ 500 $ 592§ 92) (15.5)%

*  Not meaningful.
Credit card fees Credit card fees were relatively flat in the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Other fees and commissions Other fees and commissions increased in the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to higher fee
based income resulting from increased levels of commercial lending activity, partially offset by lower custodial fees due to a
decrease in precious metals average inventory held under custody as well as lower average metals prices. The following table
summarizes the components of other fees and commissions:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
ACCOUNL SEIVICES ..vvivveeireevieiteeteeeteeeteeteeteeteeereeteeeteeseeeteessesseessesseessesssesseessaseens $ 70§ 69 $ 1 1.4%
Credit FACIIITIES ..veuveeeieiieeietieierte et se et ee e eae e ete b e esaeteese e seesaesseenseseas 52 52 — —
CUSTOAIAL RS ...vievreeeiieiiecieetie ettt ettt e et eseae e e e saeebeesnaeenes 11 18 @) (38.9)
OthET FEES .ouvieiiieiiecte ettt ettt s b e et e b e e aeeseaeevaesaaeenns 40 31 9 29.0
Total other fees and COMMISSIONS ..........ocvevieviieriieiiietieeteeeeee e $ 173 $ 170 $ 3 1.8%

Trust income Trust income was relatively flat in the three months ended March 31, 2014.
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Trading revenue Trading revenue is generated by participation in the foreign exchange, rates, credit, equities and precious metals
markets. The following table presents trading related revenue by business activity and includes net interest income earned on
trading instruments, as well as an allocation of the funding benefit or cost associated with the trading positions. The trading related
net interest income component is included in net interest income on the consolidated statement of income. Trading revenues related
to the mortgage banking business are included in residential mortgage banking revenue.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
TTAQING TEVENUE. ....veveevieieeiietiieteeteiteteseetetete ettt s et sesesbeseeseseeseneeseneesensesensesan $ 133 § 164 $ (31) (18.9%
Net INTETESt INCOME ...c.venvenrenienieiieiieteiieieee ettt ettt ettt be e e ne 3 (10) 13 *
Trading related TEVENUE. ........cevveuirieirieieieieieieteeteete ettt eeees $ 136 $ 154 $ (18 (A1L.7)%
Business Activities: -
DETIVATIVES ") ... $ 62 $ 69 $ (7 (10.1)%
Balance sheet management ............coooeoverienienieieieieineneneeese e 4 3) 7 *
FOreign eXChange .........c..coiiiiiiiiiiereeeeee e 57 65 ® (12.3)
Precious METALS.......coeiiririririninereretceteetetet ettt 18 26 (8) (30.8)
Oher trading .....c.coeeeiieieiieeeee ettt e 5) 3) (2) (66.7)
Trading related rEVENUE. .........oouieiiieiieieeeet ettt $ 136 $ 154  $ (18) (11.7)%

* Not meaningful.

M Includes derivative contracts related to credit default and cross-currency swaps, equities, interest rates and structured credit products.

Trading related revenue decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to lower revenue from derivatives, foreign
exchange and precious metals was partially offset by an improvement in balance sheet management.

Trading revenue from derivative products decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 primarily due to reduced debit
valuation adjustments on derivative liabilities as our own credit spreads were stable compared with the widening that occurred in
the year ago period. Partially offsetting this decline was an increase in emerging markets related deal activity and lower funding
costs related to structured equities notes issuance.

Trading revenue related to balance sheet management activities increased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 primarily
due to the performance of economic hedge positions used to manage interest rate risk.

Foreign exchange trading revenue decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due primarily to a reduction in trade
volumes as both volatility and market liquidity remained suppressed.

Precious metals revenue decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 from reduced client demand.
Other trading revenue remained relatively flat during the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Net other-than-temporary impairment losses During the three months ended March 31, 2014, one debt security of a consolidated
variable interest entity ("VIE") was determined to have a change to its previous other-than-temporary impairment estimate with
only the credit component of such other-than-temporary impairment recognized in earnings. During the three months ended March
31, 2013, there were no other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized.

Other securities gains, net We maintain various securities portfolios as part of our balance sheet diversification and risk
management strategies. During the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, we sold $6,855 million and $12,457 million,
respectively, of U.S. Treasury, mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities as part of a continuing strategy to re-balance
the securities portfolio for risk management purposes based on the current interest rate environment. The gross realized gains and
losses from sales of securities in both periods, which is included as a component of other securities gains, net above, are summarized
in Note 3, "Securities," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

HSBC affiliate income Affiliate income decreased in the three months ended March 31, 2014 due primarily to lower fees associated
with residential mortgage loan servicing activities performed on behalf of HSBC Finance and lower income associated with certain
performance based activity.
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Residential mortgage banking revenue The following table presents the components of residential mortgage banking revenue.
The net interest income component reflected in the table is included in net interest income in the consolidated statement of income
and reflects actual interest earned, net of interest expense and corporate transfer pricing.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Net interest income $ 46 $ 51 $ (5) (9.8)%
Servicing related income:
Servicing fee income 18 21 3) (14.3)
Changes in fair value of Mortgage Servicing Rights ("MSRs") due to:
Changes in valuation model inputs or assumptions a2) 26 (38) *
Customer payments (10) (10) — —
Trading — Derivative instruments used to offset changes in value of MSRs 15 (7) 22 *
Total servicing related income 11 30 (19)  (63.3)
Originations and sales related income:
Gains on sales of residential mortgages — 24 (24) (100.0)
Provision for repurchase obligations 34 (13) 47 *
Total originations and sales related income 34 11 23 *
Other mortgage income 3 5 (2) (40.0)
Total residential mortgage banking revenue included in other revenues 48 46 2 43
Total residential mortgage banking related revenue $ 94 3 97 $ 3) (3.D)%

*  Not meaningful.

Net interest income was lower in the first quarter of 2014 reflecting slightly lower residential mortgage average outstanding
balances resulting from higher portfolio prepayments as a result of the low mortgage rate environment. Also contributing to the
lower interest income in the first quarter of 2014 are lower spreads on newly originated loans. Consistent with our Premier strategy,
additions to our residential mortgage portfolio are primarily mortgages to our Premier customers, while sales of newly originated
conforming loans are sold to PHH Mortgage as discussed further below.

Total servicing related income decreased in the first quarter of 2014 driven largely by lower net hedged MSR results combined
with lower servicing fees due to a lower average serviced loan portfolio. As aresult of our strategic relationship with PHH Mortgage,
beginning with May 2013 applications, we no longer add new volume to our serviced portfolio as all agency eligible loans are
now sold on a servicing released basis. Changes in MSR valuations are driven by updated market based assumptions such as
interest rates, expected prepayments, primary-secondary spreads and cost of servicing. Consequently, as a result of lower mortgage
rates, the MSR asset fair value decreased in the first quarter of 2014 partially offset by gains on instruments used to hedge changes
in the fair value of the MSRs.

Originations and sales related income improved in the first quarter of 2014 largely due to lower loss provisions for loan repurchase
obligations associated with loans previously sold partially offset by lower gains on sales of residential mortgage loans. During the
three months ended March 31, 2014, we recorded a gain of $34 million compared with charges of $13 million in the year ago
quarter due to a reduction in our estimated exposure associated with repurchase obligations on loans previously sold. During the
first quarter of 2014, we entered into a settlement with the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC") for $25 million
which settled our liability for substantially all loans sold to FHLMC from January 1, 2000 through 2013. The settlement and a re-
assessment of the residual exposure resulted in a release of reserves. A similar settlement was entered into with the Federal National
Mortgage Association ("FNMA") in the fourth quarter of 2013. We continue to maintain repurchase reserves for FNMA and
FHLMC exposure associated with residual risks not covered under these settlement agreements. The lower gains on sales of
residential mortgage loans reflects the impact of our agreement with PHH Mortgage as well as lower levels of saleable loans due
in part to higher interest rates compared with the prior year period.

Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives We have elected to apply fair value option accounting
to commercial syndicated loans held for sale, certain own fixed-rate debt issuances and all of our hybrid instruments issued,
inclusive of structured notes and structured deposits. We also use derivatives to economically hedge the interest rate risk associated
with certain financial instruments for which fair value option has been eclected. See Note 10, "Fair Value Option," in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information including a breakout of these amounts by individual
component.
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Valuation of loans held for sale Valuation adjustments on loans held for sale decreased in the first quarter of 2014 due primarily
to lower average balances. Valuations on loans held for sale relate primarily to certain student loans which we no longer originate
and residential mortgage loans purchased from third parties and HSBC affiliates with the intent of securitization or sale. Included
in this portfolio were subprime residential mortgage loans with a fair value of $27 million and $51 million as of March 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively. Loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of their aggregate cost or fair value, with adjustments to fair
value being recorded as a valuation allowance. Valuations on residential mortgage loans held for sale that we originate are recorded
as a component of residential mortgage banking revenue in the consolidated statement of income.

Other income Other income, excluding the valuation of loans held for sale as discussed above, was relatively flat during the first
quarter of 2014 as lower income associated with credit default swap protection on certain commercial loans was offset by higher
income associated with real estate mortgage investment conduits and bank owned life insurance.

Operating Expenses Compliance costs, while remaining a significant component of our cost base, declined to $53 million in the
first quarter of 2014 compared with $76 million in the prior year period, as the prior year period reflects significant one-time AML
and other compliance remediation efforts which did not occur at the same level in 2014. While we continue to focus attention on
cost mitigation efforts in order to continue realization of optimal cost efficiencies, compliance related costs remain elevated due
to the remediation required by regulatory consent agreements.

The following table summarizes the components of operating expenses:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Salary and employee Denefits ........ccocvevieieeieieieieieeeeese e $ 215 $ 252 § 37 (14.7%
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE, NEL...evveiieererieeeerrieiesseeteseeseseessesseessesssessessaessenssensesseenes 57 59 2) (3.4)
Support services from HSBC affiliates:
Fees paid to HSBC FINance ...........cceceeieiienienieieee e 3 4 (D) (25.0)
Fees paid to HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. ("HMUS")...ccovvevevririerieeieieeenn, 53 52 1 1.9
Fees paid to HSBC Technology and Services (USA) ("HTSU").................. 253 233 20 8.6
Fees paid to other HSBC affiliates...........cccoevevierienieiieecieeeeeeeeen 45 35 10 28.6
Total support services from HSBC affiliates..........ccccvevirveniinieniieieieennnn, 354 324 30 9.3
Other expenses:
Equipment and SOftWAre............oecervieciirieieeeee e 14 15 (1 (6.7)
IMATKEHINE ...vvivieniiciieiecetet ettt ettt esteesaesaeesaestaessesseensessnesseessensenssenns 9 10 (1 (10.0)
OULSIAC SETVICES .veeuvvieurieiirieiiieeieeiteesieesteesteesseessreesseesssesseesssassseessseesseessseans 13 26 (13) (50.0)
Professional fEes .........cocueieiiiiiiiii e 22 25 3) (12.0)
Postage, printing and office SUPPIIES .......ccevvveviiiieriiiieieciee e 2 2 — —
Off-balance sheet Credit TESEIVES .......cuevieriirierierieie et 6 6 — —
FDIC asSeSSMENt fEC.......ccvieuieiieiieiieierie ettt 31 22 9 40.9
IMISCEILANEOUS. ...ttt ettt eaea 27 27 — —
Total Other EXPENSES....cc.eeiuieeieiieiieiieieete ettt 124 133 9 (6.8)
Total OPErating EXPENSES. ......vcvvrveriererieriiereierereereterestetessetssseseeseseesesesseseeseseesens $ 750 §$§ 768 $ (18) (2.3)%
Personnel - average NUMDET ..........eccvieieierieieeieie ettt ~ 6,18 69337
EICIENCY TaI0....cctietiiieitiieietcceeccetet ettt e 73.6% 70.0%

*  Not meaningful.

Salaries and employee benefits Total salaries and employee benefits expense decreased during the first quarter of 2014 primarily
due to a 9.6 percent decrease in average personnel in addition to lower incentive compensation expense in the current year.

Occupancy expense, net Occupancy expense was relatively flat in the first quarter of 2014.

Support services from HSBC affiliates Support services from HSBC affiliates increased in the first quarter of 2014 due, in part,
to changing the billing process for certain third-party loan servicing costs from a direct expense in the prior year quarter to support
services from HTSU in 2014. Also contributing to higher support services from HSBC affiliates was increased costs associated
with our investment in process enhancements and infrastructure to improve and modernize our legacy business systems. Compliance
costs reflected in support services from affiliates totaled $50 million during the first quarter of 2014 compared with $73 million

90



HSBC USA Inc.

in first quarter of 2013. A summary of the activities charged to us from various HSBC affiliates is included in Note 13, "Related
Party Transactions," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Other expenses Other expenses increased modestly in the first quarter of2014 due to an increase in our expectation of compensatory
fees payable to FHLMC and higher FDIC assessment fees, largely offset by a decline in outside services expense. The decline in
outside services expense reflects moving the billing of certain third-party loan servicing costs from a direct expense in the prior
year quarter to support services from HTSU in the first quarter of 2014.

Efficiency ratio Our efficiency ratio was 73.6 percent during the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with 70.0 percent
during the year-ago period. Our efficiency ratio was impacted in both periods by the change in the fair value of our own debt
attributable to credit spread for which we have elected fair value option accounting. Excluding the impact of this item, our efficiency
ratio for the three months ended March 31, 2014 increased to 75.0 percent compared with 67.4 percent in the year-ago period due
to a decrease in other revenues, partially offset by a decrease in operating expenses and an increase in net interest income. While
operating expenses declined in 2014, they continue to reflect elevated levels of compliance costs.

Income taxes The following table provides an analysis of the difference between effective rates based on the total income tax
provision attributable to pretax income and the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Tax expense (benefit) at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate.................... $ 89 35.0% $ 108 35.0 %
Increase (decrease) in rate resulting from:

State and local taxes, net of federal benefit............c.ooovveeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 9 3.6 17 5.5
Adjustment of tax rate used to value deferred taxes'” .............ccoooerrrrrerrnnne. 61 24.3 2 0.6
Other non-deductible / non-taxable items® ..............ccccoovrrreerrerrrreieerennnn. ) 0.4) 3) (1.0)
Items affecting prior Periods™ ...........c.coovvveeveeereeeeeeeeeseeeee e a7 6.7) (10) (3.2)
Uncertain tax positions™............co.covviveivoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ?2) (0.8) 14 4.5
Impact of foreign operations™ ..............cccooverueeereereeieeeseeeee e 3 1.2 3 1.1
Low income housing tax credits investments® .................ccoocoovverrrrrierrernnn. @) 2.8) (7 (2.2)
Change in valuation allowance reserves” ...........cco.oovverrerreerrerrrsrsssesennnns 14 5.5 — —
OFRET ...ttt ettt — — 1 0.3

Total INCOME taX EXPEISE...c.veuveureurenieiieiieierierteeierte sttt sttt eeeneeiesbe e e $ 149 58.9% $ 125 40.6 %

M For 2014, the amount relates to the effects of revaluing our deferred tax assets for New York State Tax Reform as discussed more fully below.

@ For 2014 and 2013, the amounts mainly relate to tax exempt interest income.

®  For 2014, the amount relates to changes in estimates in the amount of state income taxes deductible on the federal income tax return. For 2013, the amount

relates to corrections to current and deferred tax balance sheet accounts and changes in estimates as a result of filing the federal and state income tax returns.

@ For 2014 and 2013, the amounts reflect changes in state uncertain tax positions which no longer meet the more likely than not requirement for recognition.

©®  For 2014 and 2013, the amounts relate to foreign (United Kingdom) tax expense for which no foreign tax credits are allowed.

© " For 2014 and 2013, reflects early adoption of ASU 2014-01 which permits an investor to amortize its Low Income Housing Tax Credit investments in
proportion to the Low Income Housing tax benefits and present such benefits net of investment amortization in the tax line.

™ For 2014, the amount relates to the establishment of a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets due to New York State Tax Reform that was enacted

on March 31, 2014.

On March 31, 2014, New York Governor Cuomo signed legislation overhauling New York’s corporate tax regime as well as other
significant tax changes. Most of these changes take effect for tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2015 and will have a
significant and positive future economic impact on HSBC entities with activity taxed in New York State, including us. The changes
have had an impact on our deferred taxes at March 31, 2014 and resulted in a decrease to our net deferred tax asset of approximately
$75 million.
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Segment Results — [FRSs Basis

We have four distinct business segments that are utilized for management reporting and analysis purposes which are aligned with
HSBC's global businesses and business strategy. The segments, which are generally based upon customer groupings and global
businesses, are described under Item 1, "Business" in our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no changes in the basis of our
segmentation or measurement of segment profit as compared with the presentation in our 2013 Form 10-K.

We report financial information to our parent, HSBC, in accordance with IFRSs. As a result, our segment results are presented on
an IFRSs basis (a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure) as operating results are monitored and reviewed, trends are evaluated and
decisions about allocating resources such as employees are made almost exclusively on an IFRSs basis. However, we continue to
monitor capital adequacy, establish dividend policy and report to regulatory agencies on a U.S. GAAP basis. The significant
differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs as they impact our results are summarized in Note 23, "Business Segments," in our
2013 Form 10-K.

Retail Banking and Wealth Management ("RBWM'") Our RBWM segment provides a full range of banking and wealth products
and services through our branches and direct channels to individuals. These services include asset-driven services such as credit
and lending, liability-driven services such as deposit taking and account services and fee-driven services such as advisory and
wealth management. During the first quarter of 2014, we continued to direct resources towards the development and delivery of
premium service, client needs based wealth and banking services with particular focus on HSBC Premier, HSBC's global banking
service that offers customers a seamless international service as well as HSBC Advance, a proposition directed towards the emerging
affluent client in the initial stages of wealth accumulation.

Consistent with our strategy, additions to our residential mortgage portfolio are primarily to our Premier customers, while sales
of loans historically consisted primarily of conforming loans sold to GSEs and beginning in May 2013, PHH Mortgage. In addition
to normal sales activity, at times we have historically sold prime adjustable and fixed rate mortgage loan portfolios to third parties
and retained the servicing rights in relation to the mortgages upon sale. Upon conversion of our mortgage processing and servicing
operations to PHH Mortgage, we now sell our agency eligible originations beginning with May 2013 applications directly to PHH
Mortgage on a servicing released basis which has resulted in no new mortgage servicing rights being recognized going forward.

The following table summarizes the IFRSs results for our RBWM segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEt INEETEST INCOIMIE. c..c.etinteieieteietet ettt ettt sttt sttt ettt e eaea $ 198 §$ 215§ (17) (7.9%
Other Operating iNCOME ......c..eoverveieriereieieteiet ettt sttt sttt eae e eaeas 113 107 6 5.6
Total OPETating INCOME. ......ccuevviieieieieietetetet ettt 311 322 (11) (3.4)
Loan impairment Charges .........c.coeeverieieieieinirinieene sttt eneenens 2 32 30) (93.8)
Net OPETrating INCOIMIE «...c..eveiiiiieieienieiteitee ettt ettt sttt sttt eae et eneeaeas 309 290 19 6.6
OPEIALING EXPEIISES ...cvvevinrerienrirententententententeuteut et ereerestessesresseseessensensenseneenseneenens 279 291 (12) 4.1)
Profit (1088) BEfOre taX .....cc.evueriirieieieieieieee et $ 30 % 1 $ 31 *

*  Not meaningful.

Our RBWM segment reported a higher profit before tax during the first quarter of 2014. Profit before tax improved $31 million
during the first quarter of 2014 driven by higher other operating income, lower loan impairment charges and lower operating
expenses, partially offset by lower net interest income.

Net interest income was lower during the first quarter of 2014, driven by lower deposit levels partially offset by margin improvements
due to active repricing of the deposit base especially in the non-premier segments which reduced our funding costs. Residential
mortgage average balances were slightly lower resulting from higher portfolio prepayments in 2013. Also contributing to the lower
net interest income are lower spreads on newly originated loans which reflects competitive pressures and the lower risk profile of
our Premier customers.

Other operating income increased in the first quarter of 2014 driven by lower provisions for mortgage loan repurchase obligations
associated with previously sold loans due to a release of reserves in the first quarter of 2014 due primarily to a settlement with
FHLMC which settled our liability for substantially all loans sold to FHLMC compared with an increase to the repurchase liability
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in the prior year period. This was partially offset by lower net hedged mortgage servicing rights results, as well as lower gains on
sales of mortgage loans.

Loan impairment charges decreased during the first quarter of 2014 driven by continued improvements in economic and credit
conditions including lower delinquency levels on accounts less than 180 days contractually delinquent, improvements in
delinquency roll rates and lower charge-offs including improvements in market value adjustments on loan collateral due to
improvements in home prices.

Operating expenses were lower in the first quarter of 2014 primarily due to decreases in expenses driven by several cost reduction
initiatives relating to our retail branch network, primarily optimizing staffing and administrative areas. Partially offsetting these
improvements were higher risk and compliance costs, and an increase in our estimate of compensatory fees payable to FHLMC
due, in part, to the exclusion of these exposures from the FHLMC settlement discussed above.

Commercial Banking ("CMB') CMB's goal is to be the leading international trade and business bank in the U.S. CMB strives
to execute this vision and strategy in the U.S. by focusing on key markets with high concentration of internationally minded
customers. Our CMB segment serves the markets through three client groups, notably Corporate Banking, Business Banking and
Commercial Real Estate which allows us to align our resources in order to efficiently deliver suitable products and services based
on our client's needs. Whether it is through commercial centers, the retail branch network, or via HSBCret, CMB provides customers
with products and services needed to grow their businesses internationally and delivers those products and services through its
relationship managers who operate within a robust, customer focused compliance and risk culture and collaborate across HSBC
to capture a larger percentage of a relationship. An increase in the number of relationship managers and product partners is enabling
us to gain a larger presence in key growth markets, including the West Coast, Southeast and Midwest. This strategy has also led
to a reduction in certain Business Banking customers who do not have significant international needs.

New loan originations have resulted in a 23 percent increase in quarter-to-date average loans outstanding to Corporate Banking
customers since the first quarter of 2013. The Commercial Real Estate group is focusing on selective business opportunities in
markets where we have strong portfolio expertise, which reflects in a 8 percent increase in quarter-to-date average outstanding
loans for this portfolio since the first quarter of 2013. Total quarter-to-date average loans increased 15 percent across all CMB
business lines as compared with the first quarter of 2013.

The following table summarizes the IFRSs results for our CMB segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEt INTETESE INCOMIE.....vieveeiieiiteiieteeieteietet ettt be e beseebe e se s sessesesseseeseneesens $ 187 $§ 170 $ 17 10.0 %
Other OpPerating INCOMIE ......c..evvirterierteieieteteiiet ettt sttt sttt ettt eaeeaeas 68 65 3 4.6
Total OPErating IMNCOME. .....c..eeviriieiiriieieriiee ettt s 255 235 20 8.5
Loan impairment Charges .........cocoerieieieieieineneeieeesie sttt ettt eaeeaens 7 14 @) (50.0)
Net OPErating INCOMIE ......cc.eevuieiiriieieriieie ettt ettt sttt saeesaesaeesaeeenens 248 221 27 12.2
Operating expenses 158 162 @) (2.5)
Profit BEfOre taX......coueeiiiieieeieee e $ 90 $ 59 §$ 31 52.5 %

Our CMB segment reported a higher profit before tax during the first quarter of 2014, driven by higher net interest income, higher
other operating income, lower loan impairment charges and lower operating expenses.

Net interest income increased in the first quarter of 2014 due to the favorable impact of higher loan balances, primarily in expansion
markets, which was partially offset by lower yields on newly originated loans and, to a lesser extent, loan repricing.

Other operating income was higher during the first quarter of 2014 due to higher fees generated from an increase in credit
commitments and higher Global Banking and Markets ("GB&M") collaboration income due to an increase in debt and leverage
acquisition financing activity.

Loan impairment charges were lower during the first quarter of 2014 primarily due to net recoveries in commercial real estate and
lower provisions in corporate banking.

Operating expenses decreased during the first quarter of 2014 as the prior year period included certain one-time expenses related
to capitalized software and incentive accruals which did not reoccur in 2014.

Global Banking and Markets Our GB&M business segment supports HSBC’s emerging markets-led and financing-focused global
strategy by leveraging the HSBC Group's advantages and scale, strength in developed and emerging markets and product expertise
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in order to focus on delivering international products to U.S. clients and local products to international clients, with New York as
the hub for the Americas business, including Canada and Latin America. GB&M provides tailored financial solutions to major
government, corporate and institutional clients as well as private investors worldwide. GB&M clients are served by sector-focused
teams that bring together relationship managers and product specialists to develop financial solutions that meet individual client
needs. With a focus on providing client connectivity between the emerging markets and developed markets, GB&M aims to develop
a comprehensive understanding of each client’s financial requirements with a long-term relationship management approach. In
addition to GB&M clients, GB&M works with RBWM, CMB and Private Banking ("PB") to meet their domestic and international
banking needs.

Within client-focused business lines, GB&M offers a full range of capabilities, including:

e Banking and financing solutions for corporate and institutional clients, including loans, working capital, trade services,
payments and cash management, and leveraged and acquisition finance; and

* A markets business with 24-hour coverage and knowledge of world-wide local markets which provides services in credit
and rates, foreign exchange, precious metals trading, equities and securities services.

Also included in our GB&M segment is Balance Sheet Management, which is responsible for managing liquidity and funding
under the supervision of our Asset and Liability Management Committee. Balance Sheet Management also manages our structural
interest rate position within a limit structure.

We continue to target U.S. companies with international banking requirements and foreign companies with banking needs in the
Americas. Consistent with our global strategy, we are also focused on identifying opportunities to cross-sell our products to CMB
and RBWM customers. Furthermore, we have seen higher corporate loan balances compared with the prior year quarter. GB&M
segment results during the first quarter of 2014 benefited from more stable U.S. financial market conditions, which reflected
continued low interest rates and generally less volatile credit spreads and foreign exchange prices.

The following table summarizes IFRSs results for the GB&M segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEt INLETESE INCOIMIC. .....eevieviirieeeieteeie et ete et eete et e teetteeteeseeteereereeereeseeeteessesreennens $ 97 $ 109 § (12) (11.0)%
Other OPErating INCOMEC .....c..eeverrieierreeriereertestesseseesseeseseessesseessesseensesseessessaenses 294 382 (88) (23.0)
Total operating iNCOME™ ...........ov v 391 491 (100)  (20.4)
Loan impairment Charges ..........cvecueeiererieie et 15 3 12 *
Net OPErating INCOMIEC ......c.eervreieriieieeieeteetteteetresteestesseesaesseessesseessesseensesssensenseenes 376 488 (112) (23.0)
OPETALING EXPEIISES .vvvervreerrerrreereensreesseesseesseessseesseessseasseesssessseesssesssesssseessessssenns 239 230 9 3.9
PrOfit DEFOTE TAX . ...veveeveeeeeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeteeeete ettt ne e $ 137 $ 258 § (121) (46.9)%

*  Not meaningful.
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M The following table summarizes the impact of key activities on the total operating income of the GB&M segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
CTEAIP .ottt $ 36 S 25§ 11 44.0 %
RALES ...ttt 58 49 9 18.4
Foreign Exchange and MEtals..........c.ccooiriiiiiiiieiieeee e 77 93 (16) (17.2)
EQUITIES ©.ocvviicei it 1 4) 6 *
Total Global Markets .........c.cccvuiuiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicece e 172 162 10 6.2
Capital Financing.... 62 53 9 17.0
Payments and Cash Management ............c.cccceueuiuiueiiuiieiiiieiiiieceeieeeeieieieeie et 85 78 7 9.0
SECUITHIES SETVICES ...ttt sttt ettt ettt st b e st eb ettt sb et b et ne ettt eeae e 3 4 1) (25.0)
Global Trade and Receivables FINANnCe...........ccccovivieiririeininiieeeeeeeeee e 11 13 ?2) (15.4)
Balance Sheet Management® ..................cooovvvvrrvveoireeeoenssoseseesssesessssssessssessssssensssssneeos 64 162 (98) (60.5)
Debit Valuation Adjustment. — 21 (21) (100.0)
OHEI™ oo 6) @) ) *
Total OPETating INCOMIC ....c.c.vviuiieiiiiieieiiteteie ettt ettt ettt ettt bbbt sebe s $ 391 § 491 §$ (100) (20.4)%

*  Not meaningful.

@ Credit includes $35 million and $31 million in the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, of operating income related to

structured credit products and mortgage loans held for sale which we no longer offer.

®  Includes gains on the sale of securities of $23 million and $131 million in the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

@ Other includes corporate funding charges and earnings on capital.

Our GB&M segment reported a lower profit before tax during the first quarter of 2014, driven primarily by lower gains from sales
of securities within other operating income, as well as, lower net interest income, higher loan impairment charges and higher
operating expenses.

Credit revenue increased during the first quarter of 2014 from the improved performance of emerging markets related trading
activity and lower losses from other credit default swap trading. Gains on legacy structured credit products from changes in fair
value were $29 million during the first quarter of 2014 compared with $28 million during the first quarter of 2013. Included in
the gains from structured credit products were increases in fair value related to exposures to monoline insurance companies of
$16 million during the first quarter of 2014 compared with $20 million during the first quarter of 2013. Credit revenue also included
valuation gains of $3 million during the first quarter of 2014 related to the fair value of sub-prime residential mortgage loans held
for sale compared with valuation losses of $1 million during the first quarter of 2013. Revenue from Rates increased during the
first quarter of 2014 due primarily to higher deal activity in emerging markets related derivatives. Foreign Exchange and Metals
revenue declined during the first quarter of 2014 from reduced metals related activity including lower client trading and lower
fees from metals safekeeping. The increase in Equities was driven by higher fees received for services provided to an affiliate.

Corporate loan and asset backed financing growth resulted in higher Capital Financing revenue during the first quarter of 2014.
Payments and Cash Management revenue increased due to higher average deposit balances and higher income from transaction
related services.

Balance Sheet Management reflected lower gains from the sales of securities during the first quarter of 2014, partially offset by
higher net interest income resulting from higher average investment balances.

Debit valuation adjustments on derivative liabilities decreased during the first quarter of 2014, which reflected a tightening of our
spreads relative to the first quarter of 2013.

Loan impairment charges increased in the first quarter of 2014 primarily reflecting an increase in expected loss on a single name
exposure.

Operating expenses increased during the first quarter of 2014 due primarily to increased support function allocations resulting
from the deployment of a new metrics based cost allocation model. Partly offsetting this increase were lower performance based
compensation accruals which is correlated to the reduction in operating income.

Private Banking PB provides wealth management, business and family succession solutions to high net worth individuals and
families with local and international needs. Accessing the most suitable products from the marketplace, PB works with its clients
to offer tailored, coordinated and innovative ways to manage and preserve wealth while optimizing returns. Managed as a global
business, PB offers a wide range of products and services, including banking, liquidity management, investment services, custody,
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tailored lending, trust and fiduciary services, family wealth and philanthropy advisory services. PB also works to ensure that its
clients have access to other products and services available throughout the HSBC Group, such as credit cards and investment
banking, to deliver total solutions for their financial and banking needs.

We continue to dedicate resources in the wealth management market. Areas of focus are banking and cash management, investment
advice including discretionary portfolio management, investment and structured products, residential mortgages, as well as wealth
planning and trusts services. Client deposit levels decreased $395 million or 3 percent compared with March 31, 2013 mainly from
international market customers. Total loans increased $400 million or 7 percent compared with the prior year from commercial
and industrial, and residential mortgage portfolios. Overall period end client assets were lower than March 31, 2013 by $2,178
million primarily due to a reduction in highly active institutional custody customer balances partially offset by higher PB wealth
management and investment products.

The following table provides additional information regarding client assets during the first quarter of 2014 and 2013:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Client assets at beginning of the PEIiod..........c.c.icveuieveuiiiiiieiceeeee e $ 44661 $ 46,461
D[S 8T 34103 4 1<) 2 ST 129 947
VU@ CRANZE ..ottt ettt ta et et eete e s e eaeesbeeaeesseesa e beessesbeesseseessenseans 675 235

Client assets at €Nd Of PETIOW ........ccuieiiirieiieiieeeeeee ettt sttt et esse et e eseeseenes $ 45465 $ 47,643

The following table summarizes IFRSs results for the PB segment.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEt INEETESt IMCOIMIC. ....eeevenerenieteietiieterteeerteetetet ettt ettt st sesae st aese s eaeaes $ 49 3 45 3 4 8.9 %
Other OPerating INCOME ......cc.evvirveierieieietetetetee ettt sttt ettt eneenens 25 28 3) (10.7)
Total OPETating INCOME. ......ccuiriiieieieieietetetet ettt ettt 74 73 1 14
Loan impairment charges (IECOVETIES) ......cecururruerirrirererrinrenreneeeeteeeneeeeeeeenens 5) 1 (6) *
Net OPErating INCOIMIE ....c.veuviueeienienieiieeteteteete ettt ettt see et et et e et eneeneenes 79 72 7 9.7
OPEIALING EXPEIISES ...cvvinvinrererrirentententententerteueeiteseereetestessessessessensensenseneeneeneeneenens 55 60 %) (8.3)
Profit BETOTE TaX....cveuirieiirieiricirciece ettt $ 24 3 12 3 12 100.0 %

* Not meaningful.

Our PB segment reported higher profit before tax during the first quarter of 2014 driven by higher net interest income, lower loan
impairment changes and lower operating expenses, partially offset by lower other operating income.

Net interest income was higher in the first quarter of 2014 due to improved volumes in lending and liquidity premiums on deposits,
partially offset by lower net interest from the reduction in demand deposit and time deposit balances.

Other operating income was lower during the first quarter of 2014 mainly due to reductions in other income from affiliates and
custody product fees.

Loan impairment charges decreased during the first quarter of 2014 due to a recovery related to the payoff of a troubled debt
restructuring loan and releases of reserves due to loans pay downs.

Operating expenses decreased during the first quarter of 2014 primarily due to lower incentive compensation expense as well as
reduced indirect and intercompany costs.

Other The other segment primarily includes adjustments made at the corporate level for fair value option accounting related to
credit risk on certain debt issued, income and expense associated with certain affiliate transactions, the economic benefits from
investing in low income housing tax credit investments, adjustments to the fair value on HSBC shares held for stock plans and
interest expense associated with certain tax exposures.
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The following table summarizes IFRSs Basis results for the Other segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEt INEETESE EXPEISE ...evevnrrenrerenieuirietirteterteetrteatetee ettt ettt essestsaesesaesesaesesseneeneans $ a3) $ (14) $ 1 7.1%
Gain (loss) on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread................ 19 (42) 61 *
Other Operating INCOME ......c..evvirterierieieieietetiet ettt sttt ettt eaeas 6 25 (19) (76.0)
Total operating inCOmME (10SS)......ccuervereieieirinirinerene sttt 12 (31) 43 *
Loan impairment Charges .........cceoereieieieieieeeeeteeterte sttt — — — —
Net operating income (loss) 12 3D 43 *
OPETALING EXPEIISES ..euvinvirretenrenteniertentententesteseesteteeseebesbessessessesseseseneensenseneaneenens 25 21 4 19.0
L0SS DEIOTE TAX ...veveviiiiiieriertetetet ettt sttt ettt $ 13) 3 (52) $ 39 75.0%

* Not meaningful.

Loss before tax improved during 2014 primarily due to improvements in revenue associated with changes in fair value and related
derivatives of our own debt for which fair value option was elected, partially offset by lower revenue from low income housing
tax credit investments.

Reconciliation of Segment Results As previously discussed, segment results are reported on an IFRSs basis. For segment reporting
purposes, intersegment transactions have not been eliminated, and we generally account for transactions between segments as if
they were with third parties. Also see Note 14, "Business Segments," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for
a reconciliation of our IFRSs segment results to U.S. GAAP consolidated totals.
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Credit Quality

In the normal course of business, we enter into a variety of transactions that involve both on and off-balance sheet credit risk.
Principal among these activities is lending to various commercial, institutional, governmental and individual customers. We
participate in lending activity throughout the U.S. and, on a limited basis, internationally.

Allowance for Credit Losses Commercial loans are monitored on a continuous basis with a formal assessment completed, at a
minimum, annually. As part of this process, a credit grade and Loss Given Default are assigned and an allowance is established
for these loans based on a probability of default estimate associated with each credit grade under the allowance for credit losses
methodology. Credit Review, an independent second line of defense function, provides an ongoing assessment of lending activities
that includes independently assessing credit grades and Loss Given Default estimates. When it is deemed probable based upon
known facts and circumstances that full interest and principal on an individual loan will not be collected in accordance with its
contractual terms, the loan is considered impaired. An impairment reserve is established based on the present value of expected
future cash flows, discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate, or as a practical expedient, the loan's observable market
price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Updated appraisals for collateral dependent loans are
generally obtained only when such loans are considered troubled and the frequency of such updates are generally based on
management judgment under the specific circumstances on a case-by-case basis.

Our credit grades for commercial loans align with U.S. regulatory risk ratings and are mapped to our probability of default master
scale. These probability of default estimates are validated on an annual basis using back-testing of actual default rates and
benchmarking of the internal ratings with external rating agency data like Standard and Poor's ratings and default rates. Substantially
all appraisals in connection with commercial real estate loans are ordered by the independent real estate appraisal review unit at
HSBC. The appraisal must be reviewed and accepted by this unit. For loans greater than $250,000, an appraisal is generally ordered
when the loan is classified as Substandard as defined by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the "OCC"). On average,
it takes approximately four weeks from the time the appraisal is ordered until it is completed and the values accepted by HSBC's
independent appraisal review unit. Subsequent provisions or charge-offs are completed shortly thereafter, generally within the
quarter in which the appraisal is received.

In situations where an external appraisal is not used to determine the fair value of the underlying collateral of impaired loans,
current information such as rent rolls and operating statements of the subject property are reviewed and presented in a standardized
format. Operating results such as net operating income and cash flows before and after debt service are established and reported
with relevant ratios. Third-party market data is gathered and reviewed for relevance to the subject collateral. Data is also collected
from similar properties within the portfolio. Actual sales levels of properties, operating income and expense figures and rental
data on a square foot basis are derived from existing loans and, when appropriate, used as comparables for the subject property.
Property specific data, augmented by market data research, is used to project a stabilized year of income and expense to create a
10-year cash flow model to be discounted at appropriate rates to present value. These valuations are then used to determine if any
impairment on the underlying loans exists and an appropriate allowance is recorded when warranted.

For loans identified as troubled debt restructurings ("TDR Loans"), an allowance for credit losses is maintained based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans' original effective interest rate or in the case of certain loans
which are solely dependent on the collateral for repayment, the estimated fair value of the collateral less costs to sell. The
circumstances in which we perform a loan modification involving a TDR loan at a then current market interest rate for a borrower
with similar credit risk would include other changes to the terms of the original loan made as part of the restructure (e.g. principal
reductions, collateral changes, etc.) in order for the loan to be classified as a TDR Loan.

For pools of homogeneous consumer receivables and certain small business loans which do not qualify as troubled debt restructures,
probable losses are estimated using a roll rate migration analysis that estimates the likelihood that a loan will progress through
the various stages of delinquency, or buckets, and ultimately charge-off based upon recent historical performance experience of
other loans in our portfolio. This migration analysis incorporates estimates of the period of time between a loss occurring and the
confirming event of its charge-off. This analysis considers delinquency status, loss experience and severity and takes into account
whether loans are in bankruptcy or have been subject to account management actions, such as the re-age of accounts or modification
arrangements. The allowance for credit losses on consumer receivables also takes into consideration the loss severity expected
based on the underlying collateral, if any, for the loan in the event of default based on historical and recent trends which are updated
monthly based on a rolling average of several months' data using the most recently available information and is typically in the
range of 30-55 percent for first lien mortgage loans and 95-100 percent for second lien home equity loans. At March 31, 2014,
approximately 1 percent of our second lien mortgages where the first lien mortgage is held or serviced by us and has a delinquency
status of 90 days or more delinquent, were less than 90 days delinquent and not considered to be a troubled debt restructure or
already recorded at fair value less costs to sell.
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The roll rate methodology is a migration analysis based on contractual delinquency and rolling average historical loss experience
which captures the increased likelihood of an account migrating to charge-off as the past due status of such account increases.
The roll rate models used were developed by tracking the movement of delinquencies by age of delinquency by month (bucket)
over a specified time period. Each "bucket" represents a period of delinquency in 30-day increments. The roll from the last
delinquency bucket results in charge-off. Contractual delinquency is a method for determining aging of past due accounts based
on the status of payments under the loan. The roll percentages are converted to reserve requirements for each delinquency period
(i.e., 30 days, 60 days, etc.). Average roll rates are developed to avoid temporary aberrations caused by seasonal trends in
delinquency experienced by some product types. We have determined that a 12-month average roll rate balances the desire to
avoid temporary aberrations, while at the same time analyzing recent historical data. The calculations are performed monthly and
are done consistently from period to period. In addition, loss reserves on consumer receivables are maintained to reflect our
judgment of portfolio risk factors which may not be fully reflected in the statistical roll rate calculation. We regularly monitor our
portfolio to evaluate the period of time utilized in our roll rate migration analysis and perform a formal review on an annual basis.

Our allowance for credit losses methodology and our accounting policies related to the allowance for credit losses are presented
in further detail under the caption "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" and in Note 2, "Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and New Accounting Pronouncements," in our 2013 Form 10-K. Our approach toward credit risk management is
summarized under the caption "Risk Management" in our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no material revisions to our policies
or methodologies during the first quarter of 2014.

The following table sets forth the allowance for credit losses for the periods indicated:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Allowance for Credit LOSSES...............c.ooviiiiiiiiiiiieeceee ettt ettt ste e e ereesaeseeeseenees S 574 $ 606
Ratio of Allowance for credit losses to:
Loans:"
COMIMETCIAL ...vieeeieeiie ettt etee et et e et e et e e beestbeebe e seeessaesseessseesseessseensaaasseenseesssannseessseenseenssenn 6% .6%
Consumer:
Residential MOTEZAZES ....ccvevveveieiiieieiiiieteeete ettt ettt ettt ettt sae bbb e nes 1.0 1.2
HOME EQUILY TNOTEZAZES .. .euveneenteiieiieiieiieiteeeieet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt be et ebe bbb e nes 2.7 2.4
Credit Card rECEIVADIES .......ccieeiieiieeieeeie ettt see et e et e et e s beesteessbe e seessse e beessseenseesssaenseenes 6.6 5.9
Other CONSUMET J0ANS ....viiiiiriieiiieiieieeieie ettt ettt e e ete e b e eseesbesseessesssessesssessaessesseessensenns 2.7 2.5
TOtal CONSUMET LOANS ... .cctiiiuiieiieiieeieeeie et eete et e st e et eesteeeaeeteesbeeseessseesseessseeseessseenseesssanseees 14 1.6
1] TSP SRRSRUUR 8% 9%
Net charge-offs":
COMIMETCIAL ....vvieieiieeieii ettt ettt et e e st e st e et e st e esseseessesseenseeseenseessensesssesseensessesssensennsensenns 317.5% 513.3%
COMSUIMICT .....eeuveeiieeieeeeteeteeseteeteestseesseesseeseseesseeassaesssaasseesssaasseesseesssaensaessseenseessseenseessseanseesssannseees 274.2 301.0
1] OSSR 295.9% 381.1%
Nonperforming loans'":
COMIMETCIAL ....uviiieieeiieie ettt ettt et e st e st e et e st e esbesseessesseesseeseesseaseensesssessesssessenssessennsensenns 246.4% 118.5%
COMSUIMICT ....eeuteeeieeteeeeteeteeseteeteestaeesseesteesaseesseeessaesssaesseesssaasseesseessseensaessseenseansseenseensseenseesssannseees 26.5 28.3
1] OSSR 50.8% 46.1%

(M Ratios exclude loans held for sale as these loans are carried at the lower of cost or fair value.

See Note 5, "Allowance for Credit Losses," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for a rollforward of credit
losses by general loan categories for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

The allowance for credit losses at March 31, 2014 decreased $32 million, or 5 percent as compared with December 31, 2013 due
to lower loss estimates in our consumer loan portfolio. Our consumer allowance for credit losses decreased $32 million in the
three months ended March 31, 2014, driven primarily by lower loss estimates in our residential mortgage loan portfolio due to
continued improvements in credit quality including lower delinquency levels and improvements in loan delinquency roll rates.
Our residential mortgage loan allowance for credit losses in both periods reflects consideration of certain risk factors relating to
trends such as recent portfolio performance as compared with average roll rates and economic uncertainty, including housing

99



HSBC USA Inc.

market trends and foreclosure timeframes. Also contributing to the decrease was a lower allowance for credit losses for our credit
card portfolio due to a lower outstanding receivables balance reflecting seasonal paydowns. Reserve levels for all consumer loan
categories however continue to be impacted by the slow pace of the economic recovery in the U.S. economy, including elevated
unemployment rates and, as it relates to residential mortgage loans, a housing market which is in the early stages of recovery. Our
commercial allowance for credit losses was flat in the three months ended March 31, 2014 as an increase in judgmental reserves
for risk factors not fully reflected in the statistical reserve calculations as well as higher allowances associated with loan growth
in expansion markets, primarily in business and corporate banking, and, to a lesser extent, global banking were offset by reductions
in certain loan exposures including the charge-off of certain client relationships and continued improvements in economic and
credit conditions which led to lower nonperforming loans and criticized asset levels.

The allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total loans at March 31, 2014 decreased compared with December 31, 2013 for
the reasons discussed above.

The allowance for credit losses as a percentage of net charge-offs decreased in the first quarter of 2014 driven by increased charge-
offs in our commercial loan portfolio and a decrease in allowance for credit losses for consumer loans while consumer charge-
offs were flat.

The following table presents the allowance for credit losses by major loan categories, excluding loans held for sale:

% of % of
Loans to Loans to
Total Total
Amount Loans" Amount Loans®
March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
(dollars are in millions)
COMMETCIAL®) .. ..o $ 308 72.4% $ 308 71.6%
Consumer:
Residential MOTEZAZES .....eeuvieeieiiiieie ettt ettt st s 156 23.1 186 23.4
HOME €qUItY MOItGAZES. ......eevieiieeieteeiiesieetesteeteeteete et eteestesteesaesseesaesseessesseessessnensens 52 2.8 49 3.0
Credit Card TECEIVADIES ...oooeeiiiiee ettt e e e e e e e eeeeees 45 1.0 50 13
OMNET CONMSUIMET ...oovvviiiiieeeeetee ettt et e et e e e e e e et e e enaeeeeeaaeeeenaeeeenneeeeneeas 13 7 13 7
TOLAL COMSUIMET ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s eeeeeeeeeeeeaees 266 27.6 298 28.4

TOLAL .ttt sttt $ 574 100.0% § 606 100.0%

(]
2

Excluding loans held for sale.

See Note 5, "Allowance for Credit Losses," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for components of the commercial allowance for credit
losses.

While our allowance for credit loss is available to absorb losses in the entire portfolio, we specifically consider the credit quality
and other risk factors for each of our products in establishing the allowance for credit loss.

Reserves for Off-Balance Sheet Credit Risk We also maintain a separate reserve for credit risk associated with certain commercial
off-balance sheet exposures, including letters of credit, unused commitments to extend credit and financial guarantees. The
following table summarizes this reserve, which is included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The related
provision is recorded as a component of other expense within operating expenses.

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Off-balance sheet Credit TISK TESEIVE .......eovuviiiiieeeeiiee et eee e et eereeeeneeean $ 66 $ 60

The increase in off-balance sheet reserves at March 31, 2014 as compared with December 31, 2013 largely reflects new customer
activity and higher estimated exposures on certain facilities. Off-balance sheet exposures are summarized under the caption "Off-
Balance Sheet Arrangements, Credit Derivatives and Other Contractual Obligations" in this MD&A.
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Delinquency The following table summarizes dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency and two-months-and-over
contractual delinquency as a percent of total loans and loans held for sale ("delinquency ratio"):

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Delinquent loans:

COMIMETCIAL ...ttt ettt ettt e et eeteeeaeeeveeetbeeaeesaseebeeetseesbaeeaseenseesaseeseeeaseensaesnseenses $ 120 $ 135
Consumer:
Residential MOTEZAZES ...c.veveuieuiriiiiietiiterie ettt ettt ettt ettt ebe b e 1,132 1,208
HOME @qUItY MOTTZAZES . ..c..eetieeieiietiete ettt sttt ettt et eb et eseesee e saeeneeseeeneas 59 68
Total residential mortgages“)(z) ...................................................................................................... 1,191 1,276
Credit card TECEIVADIES . .......oocuiiiiiiii ettt ettt e et e et e et e e et e e eaeas 19 21
OthET COMSUIMIET .....eeutieiiestieteeteete et et et e et et e st e et e s et e e ss e enteestenseeseeneeeneaseeneesseeneesseensesneensesneensesneans 17 19
TOtAL COMSUIMET ...ttt ettt ettt b e ettt eb et e a et e it e st e eseesbeemtesbeenaesbeennesnnans 1,227 1,316
TOAL ...ttt ettt et ettt et e b e e ab e et e e e tb e e aeestb e e be e tae e baeeabeeteeeabeebeeeabeeraeenreenres $ 1,347 $ 1,451
Delinquency ratio:
(070) 101113 (o3 | SRR 24% .28%
Consumer:
Residential MOTEZAZES ....c..ooveueeuiriiirtirierie ittt ettt sttt ettt ettt eae bt sae e 7.10 7.59
HOME @QUILY MOTEZAZES.....ueevieiietietietieieste ettt et et etesteesbesteebeeteesseessesseessesseeseeseeseessesssesseeseas 3.04 3.38
Total residential MOItEAZES?) .............oovmiveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 6.66 7.11
Credit Card T€CEIVADIES. ........ccuiiiiiieeie ettt ettt ettt et e e e e teeete e teeeveeereeeare s 2.78 2.46
(01101 o0 T4 13011 1 1<) RS 3.11 3.32
TOTAl COMSUIMET ... .ccuviiitiietieetie ettt et etteeete et eete e et e eeteeeteeeeaeeeaseeeseesaseeeseesaseeseeeaseeeseesereenseeearenn 6.42 6.80
o] 721 TSRO 1.93% 2.14%
(1)

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, residential mortgage loan delinquency includes $1,041 million and $1,074 million, respectively, of loans that
are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less costs to sell, including $22 million and $27 million, respectively, relating to loans
held for sale.

@ The following table reflects dollars of contractual delinquency and delinquency ratios for interest-only loans and adjustable rate mortgage loans:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Dollars of delinquent loans:

INEETEST-ONLY LOBNS ...ttt s bbb s st es s s s s s s s s esaas $ 77 $ 58
ARM loans 323 304
Delinquency ratio:

INEETESE-ONLY LOANS ....euiteeiieieec ettt ettt ettt ettt e s ese e e s e se s e s e s e s et esesenessesenenseseseneesesanens 2.09% 1.59%
ARM L0IS ..ottt ettt h ettt h et n e 2.97 2.85

Compared with December 31, 2013, our two-months-and-over contractual delinquency ratio declined 21 basis points as we
experienced lower dollars of delinquency in both our commercial and consumer loan portfolios. Our consumer loan two-month-
and-over contractual delinquency ratio at March 31, 2014 decreased 38 basis points from December 31, 2013 due to lower levels
of late-stage residential mortgage loan delinquency. Residential mortgage loan delinquency levels continue to be impacted by an
elongated foreclosure process which has resulted in loans which would otherwise have been foreclosed and transferred to REO
remaining in loan account and, consequently, in delinquency. Compared with December 31, 2013, our commercial two-months-
and-over contractual delinquency ratio decreased 4 basis points due to higher outstanding loan balances as well as reductions in
certain loan exposures including the charge-off of certain client relationships.

Residential mortgage delinquency is significantly higher than home equity mortgage delinquency in both periods largely due to
the inventory of loans which are held at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell and are in the
foreclosure process. Given the extended foreclosure time lines, particularly in those states where HUSI has a large footprint, the
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residential mortgage portfolio has a substantial inventory of loans which are greater than 180 days past due and have been written
down to the fair value of the collateral less cost to sell. Therefore, there are no additional credit loss reserves required for these
loans. There is a substantially lower volume of home equity mortgage loans where we pursue foreclosure less frequently given
the subordinate position of the lien. In addition, our legacy business originated through broker channels and loan transfers from
HSBC Finance is of a lower credit quality and, therefore, contributes to an overall higher weighted average delinquency rate for
our residential mortgages. Both of these factors are expected to diminish in future periods as the foreclosure backlog resulting
from extended foreclosure time lines is managed down and the portfolio mix continues to shift to higher quality loans as the legacy
broker originated business and prior loan transfers run off.

Net Charge-offs of Loans The following table summarizes net charge-off (recovery) dollars as well as the net charge-off (recovery)
of loans for the quarter, annualized, as a percentage of average loans, excluding loans held for sale, ("net charge-off ratio"):

March 31, December 31, March 31,
2014 2013 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Net Charge-off Dollars:
Commercial:

Construction and other real estate ... - $ 17 $ 2 8 55

Business and corporate banking..... . 2 22 3
GLODAL DANKING ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b et et eae et b e b e enes 8 1) —
Other COMMETCIAL.........ouiuiiiiiiiicic et e 3) (@) —
TOtal COMMETCIAL. ..ottt ettt sttt ea e senen 24 15 58
Consumer:
Residential MOTTZAZES .........ccevvuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieie et 14 4 15
HOME EqUILY MOTEZAZES......evviiiiieiiieieee ettt ) 13 12
Total residential MOTTZAZES. ..c..eveueruireeuietirteiei ettt ettt ettt ettt b e bbbt et ese et ebeabesaeneenes 13 17 27
Credit card TECEIVADIES ........c.euiuiriiieiiiiciiiriect ettt ettt ettt ee 10 6 11
OFNET CONSUIMET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt b et sa bttt se b b et a bt a s bt saebesesesenenes 1 4
TOTAL COMSUITIET ...ttt ettt ettt bbbttt b et b et b et b et st bttt b et st e b st ebebeenen 24 25 42
TOLALL 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt seete b e sttt ea et e stk e b en s ese e s e b e st eaees et e s e be b e st eseebanteseeaeesenaeres $ 48 $ 40 $ 100
Net Charge-off RAtio:............coooiiiiiiiicee ettt sttt ae et e besteeseenaesaeenaens
Commercial:
Construction and Other T8AL ESTALE .........c.ccuvueueiririeirieieieireteeeretct ettt s e e 5% (.09)% 2.62%
Business and corporate banking ............ccoveueeririeirinieiiinieictei ettt s .05 61 13
GLODAL DANKING ...ttt ettt b ettt ea et et be e enes 15 (.02) —
Other COMMETCIAL.........ouiuiiiiiiiccic ettt e (.40) (.60) —
Total commercial .20 12 55
Consumer:
Residential MOTTZAZES .......c.ccevvueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiee e .36 .10 .40
HOME EqUItY MOTEZAZES......ecvviiiiieiieieiee ettt (.20) 2.55 2.15
Total residential MOTTZAZES. ..c..cveueruirieuieiirieiei ettt ettt ettt ettt b e bbbt et ese et ebeabesaeneenes 30 38 62
Credit Card TECEIVADIES ........c.cuiiriiieiiiicicireect ettt ettt ee 5.87 2.85 5.84
81 1.63 2.71
51 52 .89
TOTAL ettt etttk s e b st b bt b st b bt b et b bt b ettt ebe e nen 29% 24 % .65%

Our net charge-off ratio as a percentage of average loans increased 5 basis points for the quarter ended March 31, 2014 compared
with the quarter ended December 31, 2013, due primarily to the sale or payoff of certain commercial exposures, largely in
construction and other real estate and global banking, which resulted in higher commercial loan charge-offs in the current quarter.
The decrease in total residential mortgage loan charge-offs in the current year reflects the recovery of one large exposure in home
equity mortgages, partially offset by higher residential mortgage charge-offs.

Compared with the year-ago quarter, our net charge-off ratio as a percentage of average loans decreased 36 basis points, driven
by lower commercial loan charge-offs, largely relating to the charge-off of a single client relationship in the prior year quarter and
lower charge-offs in consumer loans primarily due to lower total residential mortgage charge-offs primarily due to the recovery
of one large exposure in home equity mortgages in the current year.
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Nonperforming Assets Nonperforming assets consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial:
Real Estate:
Construction and 1and LOANS .........ccveriieiieiiiiieeie et e sae et esaeesbeeesbeessaeenaeenees $ 32 $ 44
OthEr 181 ©SLALE ... .cuiiiiieeiiiitieeie ettt ettt e e te et e e saeebeestbeebeessseesbeesaseesseesssaeseessseesaenssennses 62 122
Business and corporate DanKing ..........cccoecueiieiieiieiieieee et 21 21
Global banking.... — 65
Other commercial 3 2
TOtal COMMIETCIAL.......viivieiiieiieiictett ettt ettt ettt ettt e e et et e eseesbeeseeeseesaesseessesssesbesssesseessenseessenseenns 118 254
Consumer:
Residential MOTEZAZES ......vevieeieiieeieie ettt et ettt et e sttt et e e saeentesaeenaesseeteeneans 907 949
HOME €QUILY MOTZAZES ....euveevieiieeieie ettt sttt e ettt e et e te et et e eneesseeneesseensesneensesseenseeneens 71 77
Total residential MOTtZAges ™ @™ .. .. oot 978 1,026
TOtal CONSUMET JOANS. ......uvviiiiiiieiiiiiee et e et e e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e eeaaaeeeeseeaaseeeseesseeeeeeesnnnes 978 1,026
Nonaccrual 10ans held fOr SAle..........oiiiiiiiiiieiee et beestee e beesree e 79 25
Total NONACCIUING LIOANS ..........ocviiiiiiiiiiece ettt e b e e be e s ebe e baeeaaeenes $ 1,175 § 1,305
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more:
Commercial:
Business and corporate Danking ............ccecuevieviiiieriiiieiieiee ettt ens 6 5
Other COMMETCIAL.......eiiiiieiieciiecie ettt et e saae et e e e aeebeessbeesseessseesaassseenseeenseenseenns 1 1
Total COMMETCIAL....c..eiiiieiiieiiecie ettt ettt e sta e et e e s aeebeessbeesseessseessaassseenseesnseeseeses 7 6
Consumer:
Credit Card TECEIVADIES ......ccueeiieieii ettt ettt e st essesseesbeesaenseessenseensesseenes 14 14
Other consumer ......... 13 14
Total consumer loans 27 28
Total accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more...............cccceevieriienienciieneeereene, 34 34
Total nonperforming LOAnS.................c.oooiiiiiiiiii it 1,209 1,339
Other real €5tate OWNEM ......c.eecuiiiiieiieeic ettt e e e s e e e beesabeereesabeesseessseesaessseenses 47 47
Total NONPerforming ASSELS...............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecie ettt be et b e eaeeeebeestaeeaneenrs $ 1,256 $ 1,386
Allowance for credit losses as a percent of nonperforming loans™:
COMIMETCIAL ....iviiiieiiestiet ettt ettt e et e ste et e s te et e e teesbeessesseessasseessesseessesssessesssessesssansenssenseessenseenns 246.4% 118.5%
Consumer 26.5 28.3

(O]

)

3)

“)

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, residential mortgage loan nonaccrual balances include $853 million and $866 million, respectively, of loans
that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

Nonaccrual residential mortgages includes all receivables which are 90 or more days contractually delinquent as well as loans discharged under Chapter 7
bankruptcy and not re-affirmed and second lien loans where the first lien loan that we own or service is 90 or more days contractually delinquent.

Residential mortgage nonaccrual loans for all periods does not include guaranteed loans purchased from the Government National Mortgage Association
("GNMA"). Repayment of these loans are predominantly insured by the Federal Housing Administration and as such, these loans have different risk
characteristics from the rest of our customer loan portfolio.

Represents our commercial and consumer allowance for credit losses, as appropriate, divided by the corresponding outstanding balance of total nonperforming

loans held for investment. Nonperforming loans include accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more. Ratio excludes nonperforming loans associated
with loan portfolios which are considered held for sale as these loans are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value.

Nonaccrual loans at March 31, 2014 decreased as compared with December 31,2013 due to lower levels of both commercial and
consumer nonaccrual loans. Commercial nonaccrual loans decreased due primarily to the sale or payoff of certain commercial
exposures as well as customer upgrades out of default outpacing new defaults. Our consumer nonaccrual loans also decreased
compared with December 31, 2013 driven by lower nonaccrual residential mortgage loans due to improved credit quality.
Residential mortgage loan nonaccrual levels however continue to be impacted by an elongated foreclosure process as previously
discussed. Accruing loans past due 90 days or more were flat compared with December 31, 2013.
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Our policies and practices for problem loan management and placing loans on nonaccrual status are summarized in Note 2,
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and New Accounting Pronouncements," in our 2013 Form 10-K.

Impaired Commercial Loans A commercial loan is considered to be impaired when it is deemed probable that all principal and
interest amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected. Probable losses from impaired
loans are quantified and recorded as a component of the overall allowance for credit losses. Generally, impaired commercial loans
include loans in nonaccrual status, loans that have been assigned a specific allowance for credit losses, loans that have been partially
charged off and loans designated as troubled debt restructurings. The following table summarizes impaired commercial loan
statistics:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Impaired commercial loans:

Balance at end Of Period ........oouieuiiiiiiei ettt st eaeen $ 309 $ 481
Amount With IMPAITMENTE TESEIVE .........evuieieriieiieiieteeierieeterteste st eaesseeaesseessesseesesseeseeseessesnsessesnss 76 165
TMPAITINENE TESEIVE ...vveuvieurietietieeieteeetesteetesteetesteessesteessasseesseessesseessessesssesseessesseessesssessesssessesseessenssans 14 40

Criticized Loans Criticized loan classifications are based on the risk rating standards of our primary regulator. Problem loans are
assigned various criticized facility grades under our allowance for credit losses methodology. The following facility grades are
deemed to be criticized.

*  Special Mention — generally includes loans that are protected by collateral and/or the credit worthiness of the customer, but
are potentially weak based upon economic or market circumstances which, if not checked or corrected, could weaken our
credit position at some future date.

*  Substandard — includes loans that are inadequately protected by the underlying collateral and/or general credit worthiness of
the customer. These loans present a distinct possibility that we will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
This category also includes certain non-investment grade securities, as required by our principal regulator.

*  Doubtful — includes loans that have all the weaknesses exhibited by substandard loans, with the added characteristic that the
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full of the recorded loan highly improbable. However, although the possibility
of loss is extremely high, certain factors exist which may strengthen the credit at some future date, and therefore the decision
to charge off the loan is deferred. Loans graded as doubtful are required to be placed in nonaccruing status.

The following table summarizes criticized loans.

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Special mention:

COMMETCIAL LOANS.........ceeevieeieeeceieteeie ettt ettt ettt et eteeteeteeveere et eesees e s ensens et enseneeneeneereeneens $ 1,406 $ 1,354
Substandard:

COMMETCIAL LOAMNS.....viiiiieeieeiieiie ettt ettt et e st e et eestaeebeessaeebeessaeesseesssaensaessseesaassseesseessseenseesns 602 647

CONSUIMET J0ANS .....teiteiieieeiteie ettt ettt e e st e e ett e e est e seesee st eneesseensesseensesseensesssensenssenseensenseenes 859 944

TOtal SUDSTANAATA. ........eviiiiiiiieiie ettt e e et e s et e e e eae e e eaaeessnseesenneeeennes 1,461 1,591
Doubtful:

COMMETCIAL JOANS ... eetieiiieiieii ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e ae s st eeesseeseensesesnseseensenseenes 10 37
TOtAL. .ttt ettt et ettt et s e et e e te e b et e et e eht e s b e st e s b e e st et e eRt e bt esteeseeneeeaeensesaeenbenraensensaans $ 2,877 $ 2,982

Criticized loans at March 31, 2014 decreased compared with December 31, 2013 as lower levels of substandard and doubtful
commercial loans due to improved credit quality, pay downs and managed reductions in certain exposures.
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Concentration of Credit Risk A concentration of credit risk is defined as a significant credit exposure with an individual or group
engaged in similar activities or affected similarly by economic conditions. We enter into a variety of transactions in the normal
course of business that involve both on and off-balance sheet credit risk. Principal among these activities is lending to various
commercial, institutional, governmental and individual customers. We participate in lending activity throughout the United States
and internationally. In general, we manage the varying degrees of credit risk involved in on and off-balance sheet transactions
through specific credit policies. These policies and procedures provide for a strict approval, monitoring and reporting process. It
is our policy to require collateral when it is deemed appropriate. Varying degrees and types of collateral are secured depending
upon management’s credit evaluation. As with any nonconforming and non-prime loan products, we utilize high underwriting
standards and price these loans in a manner that is appropriate to compensate for higher risk. We do not offer teaser rate mortgage
loans.

Our loan portfolio includes the following types of loans:

* Interest-only loans — A loan which allows a customer to pay the interest-only portion of the monthly payment for a period
of time which results in lower payments during the initial loan period.

*  Adjustable rate mortgage ("ARM") loans — A loan which allows us to adjust pricing on the loan in line with market
movements.

The following table summarizes the balances of interest-only and ARM loans in our loan portfolios, including certain loans held
for sale, at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Each category is not mutually exclusive and loans may appear
in more than one category below.

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest-only residential mortgage loans $ 3,679 $ 3,643
ARM loans"” 10,877 10,684

M ARM loan balances above exclude $5 million and $11 million of subprime residential mortgage loans held for sale at March 31, 2014 and December 31,

2013, respectively. In 2014 and 2015, approximately $205 million and $201 million, respectively, of the ARM loans will experience their first interest rate
reset.

The following table summarizes the concentrations of first and second liens within the outstanding residential mortgage loan
portfolio. Amounts in the table exclude residential mortgage loans held for sale of $42 million and $91 million at March 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively.

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Closed end:

FAESE LIOM .ttt ettt st e e st e e e e ta e b e essesseess et e esse s e essesseensesseensessaensensnans $ 15900 $ 15826

L1778 16 B 1S3 o USRS 131 137
Revolving:

L1778 16 B 1S3 o USRS 1,807 1,874
TOLALL ettt h bbbt b e bbbttt ettt et b e ebe bbbt st $ 17,838 § 17,837
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Geographic Concentrations The following table reflects regional exposure at March 31, 2014 for certain loan portfolios.

Commercial Residential
Construction and Mortgages and Credit
Other Real Home Equity Card
Estate Loans Mortgages Receivables
INEW YOIK StAte.....cooouviiiieieieiieeeeeeee et 38.3% 33.7% 56.4%
(@81 15 2] s 01 - H RSSOt 18.1 31.9 8.8
North Central United States........cccoovvuieiiiiieeiiiieeee e 3.0 5.8 3.6
North Eastern United States, excluding New York State...........ccoeceeeennene 10.8 9.4 12.2
Southern United StAtes .......c..oovvviiiiiiiieiiieeeeeee et eee e 23.7 14.8 13.9
Western United States, excluding California...........ccccooceeviniiinieninienenne 6.1 4.4 2.7
(01413 ¢ TR — — 2.4
TOTAL. ettt ettt e e eaa e e e eaeeeas 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Credit Risks Associated with Derivative Contracts Credit risk associated with derivatives is measured as the net replacement
cost in the event the counterparties with contracts in a gain position to us fail to perform under the terms of those contracts. In
managing derivative credit risk, both the current exposure, which is the replacement cost of contracts on the measurement date,
as well as an estimate of the potential change in value of contracts over their remaining lives are considered. Counterparties to
our derivative activities include financial institutions, central clearing parties, foreign and domestic government agencies,
corporations, funds (mutual funds, hedge funds, etc.), insurance companies and private clients as well as other HSBC entities.
These counterparties are subject to regular credit review by the credit risk management department. To minimize credit risk, we
enter into legally enforceable master netting agreements which reduce risk by permitting the closeout and netting of transactions
with the same counterparty upon occurrence of certain events. In addition, we reduce credit risk by obtaining collateral from
counterparties. The determination of the need for and the levels of collateral will differ based on an assessment of the credit risk
of the counterparty.

The total risk in a derivative contract is a function of a number of variables, such as:
»  volatility of interest rates, currencies, equity or corporate reference entity used as the basis for determining contract
payments;
«  current market events or trends;
*  country risk;
*  maturity and liquidity of contracts;
«  credit worthiness of the counterparties in the transaction;
+ the existence of a master netting agreement among the counterparties; and

»  existence and value of collateral received from counterparties to secure exposures.

The table below presents total credit risk exposure measured using rules contained in the risk-based capital guidelines published
by U.S. banking regulatory agencies. Risk-based capital guidelines recognize that bilateral netting agreements reduce credit risk
and, therefore, allow for reductions of risk-weighted assets when netting requirements have been met. As a result, risk-weighted
amounts for regulatory capital purposes are a portion of the original gross exposures.

The risk exposure calculated in accordance with the risk-based capital guidelines potentially overstates actual credit exposure
because the risk-based capital guidelines ignore collateral that may have been received from counterparties to secure exposures;
and the risk-based capital guidelines compute exposures over the life of derivative contracts. However, many contracts contain
provisions that allow us to close out the transaction if the counterparty fails to post required collateral. In addition, many contracts
give us the right to break the transactions earlier than the final maturity date. As a result, these contracts have potential future
exposures that are often much smaller than the future exposures derived from the risk-based capital guidelines.

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)
Risk associated with derivative contracts:

Total Credit TiSK EXPOSUTE. ...c..eivirtiitirtirietetetet ettt ettt ettt et ebe et besbe e $ 41,682 $§ 44209
Less: collateral held against EXPOSUIE ........c..cooieriiiiiriirieitieeeeeeet ettt ettt s seeens 5,192 6,064
Net CTEAit TISK EXPOSUIE .....uveueeuieiiriirtietenterteeteste ettt ettt ettt et sbe sttt sa ettt e st ebtebeebeebesbesaeseenen $ 36490 $ 38,145
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Effective liquidity management is defined as ensuring we can meet customer loan requests, customer deposit maturities/withdrawals
and other cash commitments efficiently under both normal operating conditions and under unpredictable circumstances of industry
or market stress. To achieve this objective, we have guidelines that require sufficient liquidity to cover potential funding requirements
and to avoid over-dependence on volatile, less reliable funding markets. Guidelines are set for the consolidated balance sheet of
HSBC USA to ensure that it is a source of strength for our regulated, deposit-taking banking subsidiary, as well as to address the
more limited sources of liquidity available to it as a holding company. Similar guidelines are set for the balance sheet of HSBC
Bank USA to ensure that it can meet its liquidity needs in various stress scenarios. Cash flow analysis, including stress testing
scenarios, forms the basis for liquidity management and contingency funding plans.

During the first quarter of 2014, marketplace liquidity continued to remain available for most sources of funding except mortgage
securitization. However, long-term interest rates have risen in 2014 due to the FRB starting to reduce its bond buying stimulus
program, which it plans to reduce further as the economy continues to improve. The prolonged period of low interest rates also
continues to put pressure on spreads earned on our deposit base.

On June 27, 2013, HSBC and HSBC Bank USA submitted an initial resolution plan jointly to the FRB and the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") as required under Dodd-Frank and a rule issued by those bank regulators relating to the resolution
of bank holding companies with assets of $50 billion or more and a FDIC rule relating to the resolution of insured depository

institutions with assets of $50 billion or more. An update to the initial resolution plan is due to be submitted jointly to the FRB
and FDIC on July 1, 2014.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks totaled $23,466 million and $19,614 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively, which includes $22,012 million and $18,520 million, respectively, held with the Federal Reserve Bank. Balances
will fluctuate from year to year depending upon our liquidity position at the time and our strategy for deploying such liquidity.

Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell totaled $1,352 million and $2,119 million at March 31,2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively. Balances will fluctuate from year to year depending upon our liquidity position at the time and our strategy
for deploying such liquidity.

Short-Term Borrowings totaled $28,767 million and $19,135 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
See "Balance Sheet Review" in this MD&A for further analysis and discussion on short-term borrowing trends.

Deposits totaled $105,531 million and $112,608 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. See "Balance
Sheet Review" in this MD&A for further analysis and discussion on deposit trends.

Long-Term Debt increased to $22,953 million at March 31, 2014 from $22,847 million at December 31, 2013. The following
table presents the maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2014, including secured financings and conduit facility renewals:

(in millions)

2004 ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et et et et et et et et enteteereereeteeteeteeteeteete et et et et et ententeneeneas $ 3,357
2005ttt ettt ettt et et e b erteateteeteeaeete et e eteete et et et et eatesteatettetsetteasetseteeteeteebe et et eas et et ensertersereas 4,481
2016, ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et et et et et et et et et et enteteereereereeteere et eeteete et et et et et ententeneeneas 1,582
20 T7 ettt ettt ettt ettt ateaeettetteteete et e et e ebe et et et et eatententetterserteasetseteeteeteebe et et eas et et enserteneereas 1,928
2018 ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et et e et et et et et et et et ent et e ereeteeteeteete et eeteete et et et et et enteneeneeneas 3,070
TRETCATIET ... ...ttt et e e e et e e eaa e e e eaae e e e teeeeenaeeeenaeeestaeeeaaateeanaaeeenteeesanaeeeenaeeeeaaeeenareeens 8,535
TOLAL ..ottt ettt et ettt et et e et et et et et et et ettt et eatereereereeteeteete et e eteete et et et ene et enteneeneeneas $ 22,953
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The following table summarizes issuances and retirements of long-term debt during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and
2013:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
LONG-EIMN AEDE ISSUC......eeuieeieeieiiitietieterie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et et e b et esaesseseeseeseeseeseeseeseesessesensensanean $ 767 $ 1,203
Long-term debt T€PAIA. .......eecvieiieiicieii ettt ettt et e sseesaessaesseesaesseesbesreenseeseenseenaenreans (690) (942)
Net 1ong-term debt ISSUEA ......c.ooviviieieiieiieieeeceeee ettt ettt ettt et ettt ettt te et te et as et aseteaeereae e $ 77 § 261

Under our shelf registration statement on file with the SEC, we may issue debt securities or preferred stock. The shelf has no dollar
limit, but the amount of debt outstanding is limited by the authority granted by the Board of Directors. At March 31, 2014, we
were authorized to issue up to $21,000 million, of which $7,618 million was available. HSBC Bank USA also has a $40 billion
Global Bank Note Program of which $15,820 million was available at March 31, 2014.

As a member of the New York Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB"), we have a secured borrowing facility which is collateralized
by real estate loans and investment securities. At March 31,2014 and December 31, 2013, long-term debt included $1,000 million
under this facility. The facility also allows access to further borrowings of up to $5,200 million based upon the amount pledged
as collateral with the FHLB.

Preferred Equity See Note 18, "Preferred Stock," in our 2013 Form 10-K for information regarding all outstanding preferred
share issues.

Common Equity During the first quarter of 2014, we did not receive any cash capital contributions from HSBC North America
Inc. ("HNAI") and we did not make any capital contributions to our subsidiary, HSBC Bank USA.

Selected Capital Ratios Capital amounts and ratios are calculated in accordance with banking regulations in effect as of March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013. In managing capital, we develop targets for common equity Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets,
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets, Total capital to risk weighted assets and Tier 1 capital to average assets (this latter ratio, also
known as the "leverage ratio"). Our targets may change from time to time to accommodate changes in the operating environment,
regulatory requirements or other considerations such as those listed above.

The following table summarizes selected capital ratios for HSBC USA with detailed explanation below:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Common equity Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets') ............coccocuevveeeeeeeeeereeeeseseessesesee e 11.63% 9.94%
Tier 1 capital to risk WeIZhted @SSES ......cvivviiieriiiieiiceeieee ettt be e ees 10.48 11.65
Total capital to risk Weighted aSSELS.......cceeiiiieiiiieiec e 16.05 16.36
Tier 1 capital to average assets (IEVErage ratio)........ceeverueeieriieieriieieneeeeseeeeeseessesseessesssesseessensenns 8.16 7.90
Total €QUILY t0 TOLAl ASSELS....cvierrieiieiieeitierieeeeste et eeteeteestteete e taeebeesteessbeesseeesseenssessseensaesnseenseens 8.90 8.88

M For December 31, 2013, the ratio presented is the Tier 1 common ratio calculated under Basel I.

HSBC USA manages capital in accordance with the HSBC Group policy. The HSBC North America Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process ("[CAAP") works in conjunction with the HSBC Group's ICAAP. HSBC North America's ICAAP evaluates
regulatory capital adequacy, economic capital adequacy and capital adequacy under various stress scenarios. Our initial approach
is to meet our capital needs for these stress scenarios locally through activities which reduce risk. To the extent that local alternatives
are insufficient or unavailable, we will rely on capital support from our parent in accordance with HSBC's capital management
policy. HSBC has indicated that they are fully committed and have the capacity to provide capital as needed to run operations,
maintain sufficient regulatory capital ratios and fund certain tax planning strategies.

Regulatory capital requirements are based on the amount of capital required to be held, as defined by regulations, and the amount
of risk weighted assets, also calculated based on regulatory definitions. Economic Capital is a proprietary measure to estimate
unexpected loss at the 99.95 percent confidence level over a 1-year time horizon. Economic Capital is compared to a calculation
of available capital resources to assess capital adequacy as part of the ICAAP. In addition, Risk Adjusted Return On Economic
Capital (RAROC) is computed for our businesses to allow for a comparison of return on risk.

As previously disclosed in our 2013 Form 10-K, U.S. regulators issued a final rule implementing the Basel III capital framework
in the U.S. which, for banking organizations such as HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA, took effect from January 1,
2014 with certain provisions being phased in over time through the beginning of 2019. As a result, beginning in 2014, capital ratios
are reported in accordance with the Basel III transition rules in the final rule. At December 31, 2013, capital ratios were reported
according to Basel I rules and reflect the impact of the U.S. market risk final rule (known in the industry as Basel 2.5).
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The Basel III final rule established an integrated regulatory capital framework to improve the quality and quantity of regulatory
capital and introduced the "Standardized Approach" for risk weighted assets, which will replace the Basel 1 risk-based guidance
for determining risk-weighted assets as of January 1, 2015. The Basel III final rule also builds on the "Advanced Approach"
introduced by Basel II, incorporates certain changes to Basel 2.5 and implements certain other requirements of the Dodd-Frank
Act.

The Advanced Approach was introduced by Basel II and includes an internal ratings based approach for credit risk and an advanced
measurement approach for operational risk, and is applicable for banking organizations with $250 billion or more in total
consolidated assets or $10 billion or more of foreign exposures (referred to as "Advanced Approach" banking organizations, which
includes banking organizations such as HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA). Adoption of the Advanced Approach requires
the approval of U.S. regulators. Advanced Approach banking organizations, including HSBC North America and HSBC Bank
USA, are required to operate initially in a "parallel run" wherein they must report their risk-based capital ratios using risk-weighted
assets under both Basel I (and in 2015, the Standardized Approach) as well as the Advanced Approach to their primary federal
regulator, but publicly disclose only their capital ratios calculated using Basel I (or in 2015, the Standardized Approach) risk-
weighted assets. Upon receiving approval to exit parallel run, Advanced Approach banking organizations would then publicly
disclose their capital ratios calculated using Basel I (or in 2015, their Standardized Approach) and Advanced Approach risk weighted
assets. Although we began a parallel run period in January 2010, it is unclear as to when approval from the appropriate regulators
will be received in order to exit parallel run.

With regard to the elements of capital, the application of the Basel III final rule requires HSBC USA to phase trust preferred
securities issued prior to May 19, 2010 out of Tier 1 capital by January 1, 2016, with 50 percent of these capital instruments
includable in Tier 1 capital in 2014 and 25 percent includable in 2015. The trust preferred securities excluded from Tier 1 capital
may be included fully in Tier 2 capital during those two years, but must be phased out of Tier 2 capital by January 1, 2022. We
continue to consider options for redeeming our outstanding trust preferred securities which total $550 million at March 31, 2013.
In addition, any nonconforming Tier 2 subordinated debt issued prior to May 19, 2010 is required to be phased out by January 1,
2016, and issuances after May19, 2010 are required to be excluded from capital as of January 1, 2014. As a result, approximately
$200 million of our currently outstanding Tier 2 qualifying subordinated debt will be phased out of capital under the final rule.
Also under the final rule, Tier 1 capital generally includes only noncumulative perpetual preferred stock, in addition to common
stock, and the final rule removes the limitation on the amount of Tier 2 capital that may be recognized relative to Tier 1 capital.

In February 2014, the FRB adopted a final rule requiring enhanced supervision of the U.S. operations of non-U.S. banks such as
HSBC. The rule requires certain large non-U.S. banks, such as HSBC, with significant operations in the United States to establish
asingle intermediate holding company to hold all of their U.S. bank and non-bank subsidiaries. The HSBC Group currently operates
in the United States through such an intermediate holding company structure (i.e., HSBC North America), and we do not expect
the FRB's final rule to have a significant impact on our U.S. operations. Under the final rule, intermediate holding companies,
including HSBC North America and HSBC USA, will be subject to the Standardized Approach unless they apply to be subject to
the Advanced Approach. The impact of the final rule is being reviewed. Intermediate holding companies will be subject to all other
risk-based capital requirements, stress testing requirements, enhanced risk management standards and enhanced governance and
stress testing requirements for liquidity management, as well as other prudential standards. Under the final rule, most of these
requirements would become effective on July 1, 2016.

As previously disclosed, U.S. bank holding companies with $50 billion or more in total consolidated assets, including HSBC North
America, are required to submit annual capital plans for review. Under capital plan rules, the FRB will annually evaluate bank
holding companies' capital adequacy, internal capital assessment process and plans for capital distributions and will approve capital
distributions only for companies that are able to demonstrate sufficient capital strength after making the capital distribution.

In addition, U.S. bank holding companies with $50 billion or more in total consolidated assets, including HSBC North America,
are required to comply with the FRB's CCAR program, which includes an annual supervisory stress test conducted by the FRB,
as well as semi-annual bank holding company-run stress tests. HSBC North America was required to submit its first CCAR capital
plan submission in January 2014. HSBC Bank USA is subject to the OCC's stress testing requirements, which require certain banks
to conduct annual bank-run stress tests, and was required to submit its first stress testing results in January 2014. The company-
run stress test is a forward looking exercise to assess the impact of hypothetical macroeconomic baseline, adverse and severely
adverse scenarios provided by the FRB and the OCC on the financial condition and capital adequacy of a bank-holding company
or bank over a nine quarter planning horizon, beginning in the fourth quarter of 2013. For HSBC North America, the DFAST was
conducted in conjunction with CCAR. HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA publicly disclosed the results of their stress
tests, as required, in March 2014. The FRB also publicly disclosed its own stress testing results and CCAR results in March 2014.

HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA are required to disclose the results of their Dodd-Frank stress tests under the FRB
and OCC’s severely adverse stress scenario (the ‘supervisory severely adverse scenario’). For the 2014 annual stress testing cycle,
the supervisory severely adverse scenario was characterized by a substantial weakening in economic activity across all of the
economies included in the scenario. In addition, the scenario featured a significant reversal of recent improvements to the U.S.
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housing market and the outlook for the Eurozone. In the U.S., the scenario featured a severe recession in which the unemployment
rate increases four percentage points from current levels and, from late 2014 to mid-2016, it is above any level experienced in the
past 70 years. Mortgage interest rates remain relatively unchanged at the current low levels. It is important to note that the scenarios
provided by the FRB and OCC are not forecasts, but rather hypothetical scenarios to be used to assess the strength and resilience
of institutions in baseline and stressed economic and financial market environments.

On March 26, 2014, the FRB informed HSBC North America, our indirect parent company, that it did not object to HSBC North
America's capital actions, including payment of dividends on outstanding preferred stock of HSBC North America and its
subsidiaries. The FRB informed HSBC North America that it did object to its capital plan submitted for the 2014 CCAR submission
due to weaknesses in its capital planning processes. HSBC North America will be required to resubmit its capital plan incorporating
enhancements to its processes. In the FRB's DFAST results issued on March 24, 2014, HSBC North America had the strongest
minimum total capital ratio, after the impact of the supervisory severely adverse scenario, compared to its peer CCAR firms, an
indication of the capital and financial strength of HSBC North America. The DFAST results are based solely on hypothetical
adverse scenarios and should not be viewed or interpreted as forecasts of expected outcomes or capital adequacy or of the actual
financial condition of HSBC North America. Capital planning and stress testing for HSBC North America may impact our future
capital and liquidity. The FRB does not permit bank holding companies to disclose confidential supervisory information including
the reason for an objection to a capital plan submitted for CCAR.

We and HSBC Bank USA are required to meet minimum capital requirements by our principal regulators. Risk-based capital
amounts and ratios are presented in Note 15 , "Retained Earnings and Regulatory Capital Requirements," in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

2014 Funding Strategy Our current estimate for funding needs and sources for 2014 are summarized in the following table.

Actual Estimated
January 1 April 1
through through Estimated
March 31,  December 31, Full Year
2014 2014 2014

(in billions)

Funding needs:

NEt 108N LOWEN .c..eutitiiiieieete ettt $ 38 58
Long-term debt Maturities ........co.eevuirieriiiienie et
Total funding NEEdS.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiier et $ 43 79 11

Funding sources:
Liquidation of short-term INVESMENLS .......c..ccevveuerieirieirieinietnieteeeeeneeeneenenaerenaenens $ 38 693 9

Long-term debt issuance

Total funding sources

$ 48 78 11

The above table reflects a long-term funding strategy. Daily balances fluctuate as we accommodate customer needs, while ensuring
that we have liquidity in place to support the balance sheet maturity funding profile. Should market conditions deteriorate, we
have contingency plans to generate additional liquidity through the sales of assets or financing transactions. Our prospects for
growth continue to be dependent upon our ability to attract and retain deposits and, to a lesser extent, access to the global capital
markets. We remain confident in our ability to access the market for long-term debt funding needs in the current market environment.
We continue to seek well-priced and stable customer deposits as customers move funds to larger, well-capitalized institutions.

We will continue to sell a portion of new mortgage loan originations, largely to PHH Mortgage.

HSBC Finance ceased issuing under its commercial paper program in 2012 and instead is relying on its affiliates, including HSBC
USA, to satisfy its funding needs.

HSBC Bank USA is subject to significant restrictions imposed by federal law on extensions of credit to, and certain other "covered
transactions" with HSBC USA and other affiliates. Covered transactions include loans and other extensions of credit, investments
and asset purchases, and certain other transactions involving the transfer of value from a subsidiary bank to an affiliate or for the
benefit of an affiliate. A bank's credit exposure to an affiliate as a result of a derivative, securities lending/borrowing or repurchase
transaction is also subject to these restrictions. A bank's transactions with its non-bank affiliates are also required to be on arm's
length terms.

For further discussion relating to our sources of liquidity and contingency funding plan, see the caption "Risk Management" in
this MD&A.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Credit Derivatives and Other Contractual Obligations

As part of our normal operations, we enter into credit derivatives and various off-balance sheet arrangements with affiliates and
third parties. These arrangements arise principally in connection with our lending and client intermediation activities and involve
primarily extensions of credit and, in certain cases, guarantees.

As a financial services provider, we routinely extend credit through loan commitments and lines and letters of credit and provide
financial guarantees, including derivative transactions having characteristics of a guarantee. The contractual amounts of these
financial instruments represent our maximum possible credit exposure in the event that a counterparty draws down the full
commitment amount or we are required to fulfill our maximum obligation under a guarantee.

The following table provides maturity information related to our credit derivatives and off-balance sheet arrangements. Many of
these commitments and guarantees expire unused or without default. As a result, we believe that the contractual amount is not
representative of the actual future credit exposure or funding requirements.

Balance at March 31, 2014

Over One Balance at
One Year through Over Five December 31,
or Less Five Years Years Total 2013
(in millions)

Standby letters of credit, net of participations'"). $ 2,490 $§ 11 $ 8310 § 8,409
Commercial letters of credit ........coecveviiiiienieiieeieecieeceeeieee 75 — 673 528
Credit derivatives™...........coooververeiereeeeessisesises s 111,996 7,266 164,325 180,380
Other commitments to extend credit:

Commercial® 15153 50,421 2,471 68,045 66,328

Consumer ................ 6,795 — — 6,795 6,714
TOtAL. .ottt ens $ 73,418 $164,982 $ 9,748 $248,148 $ 262,359

M Includes $890 million and $865 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
@ Includes $36,188 million and $34,856 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
©®  Includes $3,579 million and $3,763 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Other Commitments to Extend Credit Other commitments to extend credit include arrangements whereby we are contractually
obligated to extend credit in the form of loans, participations in loans, lease financing receivables, or similar transactions. Consumer
commitments are comprised of certain unused MasterCard/Visa credit card lines, where we have the right to change terms or
conditions upon notification to the customer, and commitments to extend credit secured by residential properties, where we have
the right to change terms or conditions, for cause, upon notification to the customer. Commercial commitments comprise primarily
those related to secured and unsecured loans and lines of credit and certain asset purchase commitments. In connection with our
commercial lending activities, we provide liquidity support to Regency, a multi-seller asset backed commercial paper ("ABCP")
conduit consolidated by our affiliate. See Note 16, "Variable Interest Entities," in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for additional information regarding ABCP conduits and our variable interests in them.

We provide liquidity support to Regency in the form of lines of credit or asset purchase agreements. Under the terms of these
liquidity agreements, Regency may call upon us to lend money or to purchase certain assets in the event the conduit is unable or
unwilling to issue or rollover maturing commercial paper. The maximum amount that we could be required to advance is generally
limited to the lesser of the amount of outstanding commercial paper related to the supported transaction and the balance of the
assets underlying that transaction adjusted by a funding formula that excludes defaulted and impaired assets. As a result, the
maximum amount that we would be required to fund may be significantly less than the maximum contractual amount specified
by the liquidity agreement.

The following tables present information on our liquidity facilities with Regency at March 31, 2014. The maximum exposure to
loss presented in the first table represents the maximum contractual amount of loans and asset purchases we could be required to
make under the liquidity agreements. This amount does not reflect the funding limits discussed above and also assumes that we
suffer a total loss on all amounts advanced and all assets purchased from Regency. As such, we believe that this measure significantly
overstates our expected loss exposure.
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Conduit Assets™ Conduit Funding®
Maximum ‘Weighted ‘Weighted
Exposure Total Average Life = Commercial Average Life
Conduit Type to Loss Assets (Months) Paper (Days)

(dollars are in millions)

HSBC affiliate sponsored (multi-seller)..........ccoccevvveririnnnnne $ 2303 $§ 1,442 11§ 1,442 13

™ The amounts presented represent only the specific assets and related funding supported by our liquidity facilities.

1)

Average Average Credit Quality
Asset Class Asset Mix AAA AA+HAA A A- BB/BB-
Multi-seller conduit
Debt securities backed by:
Auto loans and leases 46% 69% —% —% —% —%
Trade receivables........cccveveriieieniieieniieiere e 33 — 100 100 — —
Credit card receivables..........cccoeveeveeneeveneeienneennn. — — — — — —
Equipment 10ans..........ccocerieiiniinienieeeeeee, 21 31 — — — —
100% 100% 100% 100% —% —%

M Credit quality is based on Standard and Poor’s ratings at March 31, 2014.

We receive fees for providing these liquidity facilities. Credit risk on these obligations is managed by subjecting them to our normal
underwriting and risk management processes.

During the first quarter of 2014, U.S. asset-backed commercial paper volumes continued to be stable as most major bank conduit
sponsors continue to extend new financing to clients. Credit spreads in the multi-seller conduit market have also remained stable
during the three months ended March 31, 2014 following a pattern that was prevalent across the U.S. credit markets.

The preceding tables do not include information on liquidity facilities that we previously provided to certain Canadian multi-seller
ABCP conduits that have been subject to restructuring agreements as part of the Montreal Accord. As part of the enhanced collateral
pool established for the restructuring, we have provided a $307 million Margin Funding Facility to a Master Asset Vehicle, which
expires in July 2017 and is currently undrawn.

We have established and manage a number of constant net asset value ("CNAV") money market funds that invest in shorter-dated
highly-rated money market securities to provide investors with a highly liquid and secure investment. These funds price the assets
in their portfolio on an amortized cost basis, which enables them to create and liquidate shares at a constant price. The funds,
however, are not permitted to price their portfolios at amortized cost if that amount varies by more than 50 basis points from the
portfolio's market value. In that case, the fund would be required to price its portfolio at market value and consequently would no
longer be able to create or liquidate shares at a constant price. We do not consolidate the CNAV funds because we do not absorb
the majority of the expected future risk associated with the fund's assets, including interest rate, liquidity, credit and other relevant
risks that are expected to affect the value of the assets.

Fair Value

Fair value measurement accounting principles require a reporting entity to take into consideration its own credit risk in determining
the fair value of financial liabilities. The incorporation of our own credit risk accounted for an increase of $45 million in the fair
value of financial liabilities during the three months ended March 31, 2014, compared with a decrease of $9 million during the
three months ended March 31, 2013.

Net income volatility arising from changes in either interest rate or credit components of the mark-to-market on debt designated
at fair value and related derivatives affects the comparability of reported results between periods. Accordingly, the gain (loss) on
debt designated at fair value and related derivatives during the first quarter of 2014 should not be considered indicative of the
results for any future period.
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Control Over Valuation Process and Procedures We have established a control framework which is designed to ensure that fair
values are either determined or validated by a function independent of the risk-taker. See Note 18, "Fair Value Measurements" in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further details on our valuation control framework.

Fair Value Hierarchy Fair value measurement accounting principles establish a fair value hierarchy structure that prioritizes the
inputs to determine the fair value of an asset or liability (the "Fair Value Framework"). The Fair Value Framework distinguishes
between inputs that are based on observed market data and unobservable inputs that reflect market participants' assumptions. It
emphasizes the use of valuation methodologies that maximize observable market inputs. For financial instruments carried at fair
value, the best evidence of fair value is a quoted price in an actively traded market (Level 1). Where the market for a financial
instrument is not active, valuation techniques are used. The majority of our valuation techniques use market inputs that are either
observable or indirectly derived from and corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the financial
instrument (Level 2). Because Level 1 and Level 2 instruments are determined by observable inputs, less judgment is applied in
determining their fair values. In the absence of observable market inputs, the financial instrument is valued based on valuation
techniques that feature one or more significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). The determination of the level of fair value hierarchy
within which the fair value measurement of an asset or a liability is classified often requires judgment and may change over time
as market conditions evolve. We consider the following factors in developing the fair value hierarchy:

. whether the asset or liability is transacted in an active market with a quoted market price;

. the level of bid-ask spreads;

. a lack of pricing transparency due to, among other things, complexity of the product and market liquidity;

. whether only a few transactions are observed over a significant period of time;

. whether the pricing quotations differ substantially among independent pricing services;

. whether inputs to the valuation techniques can be derived from or corroborated with market data; and

. whether significant adjustments are made to the observed pricing information or model output to determine the fair
value.

Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the reporting entity has the ability to access for identical assets
or liabilities. A financial instrument is classified as a Level 1 measurement if it is listed on an exchange or is an instrument actively
traded in the over-the-counter ("OTC") market where transactions occur with sufficient frequency and volume. We regard financial
instruments such as equity securities and derivative contracts listed on the primary exchanges of a country to be actively traded.
Non-exchange-traded instruments classified as Level 1 assets include securities issued by the U.S. Treasury or by other foreign
governments, to-be-announced ("TBA") securities and non-callable securities issued by U.S. government sponsored entities.

Level 2 inputs are those that are observable either directly or indirectly but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. We classify mortgage
pass-through securities, agency and certain non-agency mortgage collateralized obligations, certain derivative contracts, asset-
backed securities, corporate debt, preferred securities and leveraged / syndicated loans as Level 2 measurements. Where possible,
at least two quotations from independent sources are obtained based on transactions involving comparable assets and liabilities to
validate the fair value of these instruments. We have established a process to understand the methodologies and inputs used by the
third party pricing services to ensure that pricing information met the fair value objective. Where significant differences arise
among the independent pricing quotes and the internally determined fair value, we investigate and reconcile the differences. If the
investigation results in a significant adjustment to the fair value, the instrument will be classified as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy. In general, we have observed that there is a correlation between the credit standing and the market liquidity of a non-
derivative instrument.

Level 2 derivative instruments are generally valued based on discounted future cash flows or an option pricing model adjusted for
counterparty credit risk and market liquidity. The fair value of certain structured derivative products is determined using valuation
techniques based on inputs derived from observable benchmark index tranches traded in the OTC market. Appropriate control
processes and procedures have been applied to ensure that the derived inputs are applied to value only those instruments that share
similar risks to the relevant benchmark indices and therefore demonstrate a similar response to market factors. In addition, a
validation process has been established, which includes participation in peer group consensus pricing surveys, to ensure that
valuation inputs incorporate market participants' risk expectations and risk premium.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable estimates that management expects market participants would use to determine the fair value of
the asset or liability. That is, Level 3 inputs incorporate market participants' assumptions about risk and the risk premium required
by market participants in order to bear that risk. We develop Level 3 inputs based on the best information available in the
circumstances. As of March 31, 2014 and December 31,2013, our Level 3 instruments included the following: collateralized debt
obligations ("CDOs") for which there is a lack of pricing transparency due to market illiquidity, certain structured deposits as well
as certain structured credit and structured equity derivatives where significant inputs (e.g., volatility or default correlations) are
not observable, credit default swaps with certain monoline insurers where the deterioration in the creditworthiness of the
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counterparty has resulted in significant adjustments to fair value, U.S. subprime mortgage loans and subprime related asset-backed
securities, impaired commercial loans, mortgage servicing rights, and derivatives referenced to illiquid assets of less desirable
credit quality. See Note 18, "Fair Value Measurements" in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional
information on Level 3 inputs.

Transfers between leveling categories are recognized at the end of each reporting period.

Transfers Between Level 1 and Level 2 Measurements During the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 measurements.

Level 3 Measurements The following table provides information about Level 3 assets/liabilities inrelation to total assets/liabilities
measured at fair value as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)
LVl 3 @SSES® ...t $ 4,160 $ 3,831
Total assets measured at fair VAIUE? ..........oo. oo 150,048 158,834
Level 3 HADILIHIES ......c.eeviieiiieiiecicc ettt es 3,368 3,751
Total liabilities measured at fair VAIUE! .........oo. oo 90,447 97,540
Level 3 assets as a percent of total assets measured at fair value ............cccceeueeee. 2.8% 2.4%
Level 3 liabilities as a percent of total liabilities measured at fair value 3.7% 3.8%

M Presented without netting which allows the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts if certain conditions are met.

@ Includes $4,082 million of recurring Level 3 assets and $78 million of non-recurring Level 3 assets at March 31, 2014. Includes $3,667 million of recurring

Level 3 assets and $164 million of non-recurring Level 3 assets at December 31, 2013.

@ Includes $149,763 million of assets measured on a recurring basis and $285 million of assets measured on a non-recurring basis at March 31, 2014. Includes

$158,149 million of assets measured on a recurring basis and $685 million of assets measured on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2013.

Significant Changes in Fair Value for Level 3 Assets and Liabilities

Derivative Assets and Counterparty Credit Risk We have entered into credit default swaps with monoline insurers to hedge our
credit exposure in certain asset-backed securities and synthetic CDOs. We made $16 million positive and $20 million positive
credit risk adjustments to the fair value of our credit default swap contracts during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, which is reflected in trading revenue. We have recorded a cumulative credit adjustment reserve of $48 million
and $64 million against our monoline exposure at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The fair value of our
monoline exposure net of cumulative credit adjustment reserves equaled $273 million at both March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively.

Loans As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we have classified $27 million and $46 million, respectively, of subprime
residential mortgage loans held for sale as a non-recurring Level 3 financial asset. These mortgage loans are accounted for on a
lower of amortized cost or fair value basis. Based on our assessment, we recorded gains of less than a million and $2 million during
the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The changes in fair value are recorded as other revenues in the
consolidated statement of income.

Significant Transfers Into and Out of Level 3 Measurements During the first quarter of 2014, we transferred $140 million of
deposits in domestic offices and $71 million of long-term debt, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from Level 3 to Level 2
as a result of the embedded derivative no longer being unobservable as the derivative option is closer to maturity and there is more
observability in short term volatility. Additionally, during the first quarter of 2014, we transferred $68 million of deposits in
domestic offices, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from Level 2 to Level 3 as a result of a change in the observability
of underlying instruments that resulted in the embedded derivative being unobservable.

During the first quarter of 2013, we transferred $85 million of deposits in domestic offices, which we have elected to carry at fair
value, from Level 3 to Level 2 as a result of the embedded derivative no longer being unobservable as the derivative option is
closer in maturity and there is more observability in short term volatility.

See Note 18, "Fair Value Measurements," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for information on additions to
and transfers into (out of) Level 3 measurements during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 as well as for further
details including the classification hierarchy associated with assets and liabilities measured at fair value.
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Assets Underlying Asset-backed Securities The following tables summarize the types of assets underlying our asset-backed
securities as well as certain collateralized debt obligations held as of March 31, 2014:

Total

(in millions)

Rating of securities:" Collateral type:
AAA Commercial MOTTZAZES . ......cveveuiririirtirieierieteieeeeeeet ettt seesbesaessesenes $ 96
Residential mortgages - Alt A......c.ooveeiieieiieieeiee e 91
Residential mortgages - SUDPIIME. ........oecuerueeriiiieniieieeeesieee e 1
TOUAl AAA....oooreooeeseoeeesesoeesssssees oo T Iss
A Residential mortgages - ALt A......ooueoiioiieiiiee e 1
Residential mortgages - SUDPIImMe.........ccevvevievieniieieiieieieeeesee e 61
Home equity = At A...ooeiiee et 95
StUAENE LOANS ...ttt e 68
TOAL A oooooovvveeeeeeeeeeeee e ssssssssssssssssssssssssssseeeeeeeese s T 235
BBB ... Residential mortgages - Alt A......c.ooveveieieiieieciee e s 8
Other - ALt At 94
Collateralized debt ODlIZAtIONS ........ccevvveeerieeiieriieieeieie e 258
TOAl BBB......oovvvvovoeereeeeessesssssssssssessssssssosssssssssssssssssnseeeeeeeses s T 360
CCC it Residential mortgages - SUDPIImMe.........ccevvevievieniieieieeieeeere e 5
Home equity - Alt A. 125
Total CCCorovvrrrerroeereoeee . 130
Unrated .......cccoeeeviveenenieeeeene Residential mortgages - Alt A. 1
$ 914

M We utilize Standard & Poor's ("S&P") as the primary source of credit ratings in the tables above. If S&P ratings are not available, ratings by Moody's and

Fitch are used, in that order. Ratings for collateralized debt obligations represent the ratings associated with the underlying collateral.

Effect of Changes in Significant Unobservable Inputs The fair value of certain financial instruments is measured using valuation
techniques that incorporate pricing assumptions not supported by, derived from or corroborated by observable market data. The
resultant fair value measurements are dependent on unobservable input parameters which can be selected from a range of estimates
and may be interdependent. Changes in one or more of the significant unobservable input parameters may change the fair value
measurements of these financial instruments. For the purpose of preparing the financial statements, the final valuation inputs
selected are based on management's best judgment that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing similar
assets or liabilities.

The unobservable input parameters selected are subject to the internal valuation control processes and procedures. When we
perform a test of all the significant input parameters to the extreme values within the range at the same time, it could result in an
increase of the overall fair value measurement of approximately $41 million or a decrease of the overall fair value measurement
of approximately $51 million as of March 31,2014. The effect of changes in significant unobservable input parameters are primarily
driven by mortgage servicing rights, certain asset-backed securities including CDOs, and the uncertainty in determining the fair
value of credit derivatives executed against monoline insurers.
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Risk Management

Overview Some degree of risk is inherent in virtually all of our activities. Accordingly, we have comprehensive risk management
policies and practices in place to address potential risks, which include the following:

. Credit risk is the potential that a borrower or counterparty will default on a credit obligation, as well as the impact
on the value of credit instruments due to changes in the probability of borrower default; Credit risk includes risk
associated with cross-border exposures.

. Liquidity risk is the potential that an institution will be unable to meet its obligations as they become due or fund its
customers because of inadequate cash flow or the inability to liquidate assets or obtain funding itself;

. Interest rate risk is the potential impairment of net interest income due to mismatched pricing between assets and
liabilities as well as losses in value due to rate movements;

. Market risk is the risk that movements in market risk factors, including foreign exchange rates and commodity prices,
interest rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce HSBC USA’s income or the value of its portfolios;

. Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, or systems, or from
external events (including legal risk);

. Compliance risk is the risk that we fail to observe the letter and spirit of all relevant laws, codes, rules, regulations
and standards of good market practice causing us to incur fines, penalties and damage to our business and reputation;

. Fiduciary risk is the risk of breaching fiduciary duties where we act in a fiduciary capacity as trustee, investment
manager or as mandated by law or regulation.

. Reputational risk is the risk arising from a failure to safeguard our reputation by maintaining the highest standards
of conduct at all times and by being aware of issues, activities and associations that might pose a threat to the reputation
of HSBC locally, regionally or internationally;

. Strategic risk is the risk that the business will fail to identify, execute, and react appropriately to opportunities and/
or threats arising from changes in the market, some of which may emerge over a number of years such as changing
economic and political circumstances, customer requirements, demographic trends, regulatory developments or
competitor action;

. Security and Fraud risk is the risk to the business from terrorism, crime, incidents/disasters, cyber attacks and groups
hostile to HSBC interests;
. Model risk is the risk of incorrect implementation or inappropriate application of models. Model risk occurs when

a model does not properly capture risk(s) or perform functions as designed; and

. Pension risk is the risk that the cash flows associated with pension assets will not be enough to cover the pension
benefit obligations required to be paid.

See "Risk Management" in MD&A in our 2013 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of the objectives of our risk management
system as well as our risk management policies and practices. Our risk management process involves the use of various simulation
models. We believe that the assumptions used in these models are reasonable, but actual events may unfold differently than what
is assumed in the models. Consequently, model results may be considered reasonable estimates, with the understanding that actual
results may differ significantly from model projections.

Credit Risk Management Credit risk is the potential that a borrower or counterparty will default on a credit obligation, as well as
the impact on the value of credit instruments due to changes in the probability of borrower default. Credit risk includes risk
associated with cross-border exposures. There have been no material changes to our approach towards credit risk management
since December 31, 2013. See "Risk Management" in MD&A in our 2013 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of our
approach to credit risk.

Credit risk is inherent in various on- and off-balance sheet instruments and arrangements, such as:

. loan portfolios;

. investment portfolios;

. unfunded commitments such as letters of credit and lines of credit that customers can draw upon; and

. derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps which, if more valuable today than when originally

contracted, may represent an exposure to the counterparty to the contract.

While credit risk exists widely in our operations, diversification among various commercial and consumer portfolios helps to
lessen risk exposure. Day-to-day management of credit and market risk is performed by the Chief Credit Officer / Head of Wholesale
Credit and Market Risk North America and the HSBC North America Chief Retail Credit Officer, who report directly to the HSBC
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North America Chief Risk Officer and maintain independent risk functions. The credit risk associated with commercial portfolios
is managed by the Chief Credit Officer, while credit risk associated with retail consumer loan portfolios, such as credit cards,
installment loans and residential mortgages, is managed by the HSBC North America Chief Retail Credit Officer. Further discussion
of credit risk can be found under the "Credit Quality" caption in this MD&A.

Liquidity Risk Management There have been no material changes to our approach towards liquidity risk management since
December 31, 2013. See “Risk Management” in MD&A in our 2013 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of our approach
to liquidity risk. Although our overall approach to liquidity management has not changed, we continuously monitor the impact of
market events on our liquidity positions and continue to adapt our liquidity framework to reflect market events and the evolving
regulatory landscape and view as to best practices. Current regulatory initiatives encourage banks to retain a portfolio of extremely
high quality liquid assets. As such, we are maintaining a large portfolio of high quality sovereign and sovereign guaranteed securities.

Our liquidity management approach includes increased deposits and potential sales (e.g. residential mortgage loans) in liquidity
contingency plans. As previously discussed, HSBC Finance ceased issuing under its commercial paper program in 2012 and now
relies on its affiliates, including HSBC USA, to satisfy its funding needs outside of cash generated from its loan sales and operations.

In 2009, the Basel Committee proposed two minimum liquidity metrics for limiting risk: the liquidity coverage ratio ("LCR"),
designed to be a short-term measure to ensure banks have sufficient high-quality liquid assets to cover net stressed cash outflows
over the next 30 days, and the net stable funding ratio ("NSFR"), which is a longer term measure with a 12-month time horizon
to ensure a sustainable maturity structure of assets and liabilities. The ratios are subject to an observation period and are expected
to become established standards, subject to phase-in periods, by 2015 and 2018, respectively.

In October 2013, the FRB, the OCC and the FDIC issued for public comment a rule to implement the LCR in the United States,
applicable to certain large banking institutions, including HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA. The LCR proposal is
generally consistent with the Basel Committee guidelines, but is more stringent in several areas including the range of assets that
will qualify as high-quality liquid assets and the assumed rate of outflows of certain kinds of funding. Under the proposal, U.S.
institutions would begin the LCR transition period on January 1, 2015 and would be required to be fully compliant by January 1,
2017, as opposed to the Basel Committee's requirement to be fully compliant by January 1, 2019. The LCR proposal does not
address the NSFR requirement, which is currently in an international observation period. Based on the results of the observation
periods, the Basel Committee and U.S. banking regulators may make further changes to the LCR and the NSFR. U.S. regulators
are expected to issue a proposed rulemaking implementing the NSFR in advance of its scheduled global implementation in 2018.

In the first quarter of 2014, the FRB issued rules pursuant to section 165 of the Dodd-Frank Act, which established enhanced
prudential standards for U.S. bank holding companies and foreign banking organizations with total global consolidated assets of
$50 billion or more. The rules complement the capital planning, resolution planning, and stress testing requirements that have been
previously finalized. HSBC North America is anticipated to be initially treated as a domestic. The rules require bank holding
companies, such as HSBC North America, to comply with various liquidity risk management standards and to maintain a liquidity
buffer of unencumbered highly liquid assets based on the results of internal liquidity stress testing. Bank holding companies are
also required to meet heightened liquidity requirements, which include qualitative liquidity standards, cash flow projections,
internal liquidity stress tests, and liquidity buffer requirements by January 1, 2015. HSBC North America is developing plans to
meet the standard and we do not expect a significant impact to our business model.

We believe that HSBC North Americaand HSBC Bank USA will meet these liquidity requirements prior to their formal introduction.
The actual impact will be dependent on the specific final regulations issued by the U.S. regulators to implement these standards.
HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA may need to change their liquidity profile to support compliance with any future
final rules. We are unable at this time, however, to determine the extent of changes we will need to make to our liquidity position,
if any.
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Our ability to regularly attract wholesale funds at a competitive cost is enhanced by strong ratings from the major credit ratings
agencies. The following table reflects the long and short-term debt ratings we and HSBC Bank USA maintained at March 31,
2014:

Moody’s S&P Fitch pBRs"”
HSBC USA Inc.:
Short-term DOITOWINGS ....cceevveeeeriieieriieie et P-1 A-1 F1+ R-1 (middle)
Long-term/senior debt...........cccecveeierierierieeienieeiere e seeveeens A2 A+ AA- AA (low)
HSBC Bank USA:
Short-term DOITOWINGS .....c.evvveeereeeieeiieie st eeeee e P-1 A-1+ F1+ R-1 (middle)
Long-term/senior debt...........cccccveeeeviieieriieienieeeenie e Al AA- AA- AA (low)

(1) Dominion Bond Rating Service.

On February 6, 2014, Standard and Poor's published a request for comment regarding proposed revisions to their treatment of
Bank and Prudentially Regulated Finance Company Hybrid Capital Instruments. The adoption of any such revisions may
unfavorably impact the ratings of our preferred stock, trust preferred securities and subordinated debt.

As of March 31, 2014, there were no pending actions in terms of changes to ratings on the debt of HSBC USA or HSBC Bank
USA from any of the rating agencies.

Interest Rate Risk Management Various techniques are utilized to quantify and monitor risks associated with the repricing
characteristics of our assets, liabilities and derivative contracts. Our approach to managing interest rate risk is summarized in
MD&A in our 2013 Form 10-K under the caption “Risk Management”. There have been no material changes to our approach
towards interest rate risk management since December 31, 2013.

Present value of a basis point ("PVBP) 1is the change in value of the balance sheet for a one basis point upward movement in all
interest rates. The following table reflects the PVBP position at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Institutional PVBP MOVEMENt ML ..........ccooieviirieiiriteeeeeeceeceeeeeeee ettt et et eee s eneenseneeneenea $ 80 §$ 8.0
PVBP position at period €Nd.........coeeiiiieriiiieie ettt st st 4.7 6.8

Net interest income simulation modeling techniques are utilized to monitor a number of interest rate scenarios for their impact on
net interest income. These techniques include both rate shock scenarios, which assume immediate market rate movements by as
much as 200 basis points, as well as scenarios in which rates rise or fall by as much as 200 basis points over a twelve month period.
The following table reflects the impact on net interest income of the scenarios utilized by these modeling techniques:

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Amount % Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

Projected change in net interest income (reflects projected rate movements on April 1
and January 1):

Change resulting from a gradual 100 basis point increase in the yield curve .............. $ 6 — $ B —
Change resulting from a gradual 100 basis point decrease in the yield curve.............. (80) “@) (68) (3)
Change resulting from a gradual 200 basis point increase in the yield curve .............. 21) 1) (43) 2)
Change resulting from a gradual 200 basis point decrease in the yield curve.............. (156) @) 137) (6)

Other significant scenarios monitored (reflects projected rate movements on April 1
and January 1):

Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point increase in the yield curve ....... 20 1 @) —
Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point decrease in the yield curve....... (135) 6) (109) %)
Change resulting from an immediate 200 basis point increase in the yield curve ....... 18 1 (39) 2)
Change resulting from an immediate 200 basis point decrease in the yield curve....... (281) (13) (257) (12)
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The projections do not take into consideration possible complicating factors such as the effect of changes in interest rates on the
credit quality, size and composition of the balance sheet. Therefore, although this provides a reasonable estimate of interest rate
sensitivity, actual results will differ from these estimates, possibly by significant amounts.

Capital Risk/Sensitivity of Other Comprehensive Income Large movements of interest rates could directly affect some reported
capital balances and ratios. The mark-to-market valuation of available-for-sale securities is credited on a tax effective basis to
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). This valuation mark is included in two important accounting based capital ratios:
tangible common equity to tangible assets and tangible common equity to risk weighted assets. Under the final rule adopting the
Basel III regulatory capital reforms, the valuation mark will be included in common equity Tier 1 capital and the impact of this
change for HSBC USA will be assessed along with the other Basel III changes being introduced. As of March 31, 2014, we had
an available-for-sale securities portfolio of approximately $53,588 million with a positive mark-to-market of $181 million included
in tangible common equity of $13,483 million. An increase of 25 basis points in interest rates of all maturities would lower the
mark-to-market by approximately $259 million to a net loss of $78 million with the following results on our tangible capital ratios.

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Actual Proforma” Actual Proforma”
Tangible common equity to tangible assets .........ccecvererieriiecienreciereeeene. 7.27% 7.19% 7.28% 7.20%
Tangible common equity to risk weighted assets.........c.ccocevvererenenenieeene. 10.48 10.36 10.82 10.69

M Proforma percentages reflect a 25 basis point increase in interest rates."

Market Risk Management We have incorporated the qualitative and quantitative requirements of Basel 2.5, including stressed
value atrisk ("VAR"), Incremental Risk Charge and Comprehensive Risk Measure into our process and received regulatory approval
to initiate these enhancements effective January 1, 2013. See “Risk Management” in MD&A in our 2013 Form 10-K for a more
complete discussion of our approach to market risk. There have been no material changes to our approach towards market risk
management since December 31, 2013.

Value at Risk VAR analysis is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur on risk positions as a result of
movements in market rates and prices over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence. VAR calculations are
performed for all material trading activities and as a tool for managing risk inherent in non-trading activities. VAR is calculated
daily for a one-day holding period to a 99 percent confidence level.

Trading Activities Our management of market risk is based on a policy of restricting individual operations to trading within an
authorized list of permissible instruments, enforcing new product approval procedures and restricting trading in the more complex
derivative products to offices with appropriate levels of product expertise and robust control systems. Market making trading is
undertaken within Global Banking and Markets.

In addition, at both portfolio and position levels, market risk in trading portfolios is monitored and managed using a complementary
set of techniques, including VAR and a variety of interest rate risk monitoring techniques as discussed above. These techniques
quantify the impact on capital of defined market movements.

Trading portfolios reside primarily within the Markets unit of the Global Banking and Markets business segment, which include
warehoused residential mortgage loans purchased with the intent of selling them, and within the mortgage banking subsidiary
included within the RBWM business segment. Portfolios include foreign exchange, interest rate swaps and credit derivatives,
precious metals (i.e. gold, silver, platinum), equities and money market instruments including “repos” and securities. Trading
primarily occurs as a result of customer facilitation and economic risk hedging. In this context, economic risk hedging may include
forward contracts to sell residential mortgages and derivative contracts which, while economically viable, may not satisfy the
hedge accounting requirements.

The trading portfolios have defined limits pertaining to items such as permissible investments, risk exposures, loss review, balance
sheet size and product concentrations. “Loss review” refers to the maximum amount of loss that may be incurred before senior
management intervention is required.

The following table summarizes trading VAR for the three months ended March 31, 2014:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

March 31, December 31,
2014 Minimum Maximum Average 2013
(in millions)
Total trading........ccoveveveveveieeerereieeeee e $ 9 3 7 9 12§ 8 3 9
Foreign exchange 6 5 8 6 7
Interest rate directional and credit spread 9 7 14 10 10
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The following table summarizes the frequency distribution of daily market risk-related revenues for trading activities during the
three months ended March 31, 2014. Market risk-related trading revenues include realized and unrealized gains (losses) related
to trading activities, but exclude the related net interest income. Analysis of the gain (loss) data for the three months ended March
31, 2014 shows that the largest daily gain was $6 million and the largest daily loss was $4 million.

Below $(5) $0 $5 Over
Ranges of daily trading revenue earned from market risk-related activities $(5) to $0 to $5 to $10 $10

(dollars are in millions)

Number of trading days market risk-related revenue was within
the Stated FANZE.......eovverieieeieieeeee e — 32 28 1 —

VAR — Non-trading Activities Interest rate risk in non-trading portfolios arises principally from mismatches between the future
yield on assets and their funding cost as a result of interest rate changes. Analysis of this risk is complicated by having to make
assumptions on embedded optionality within certain product areas such as the incidence of mortgage repayments, and from
behavioral assumptions regarding the economic duration of liabilities which are contractually repayable on demand such as current
accounts. The prospective change in future net interest income from non-trading portfolios will be reflected in the current realizable
value of these positions if they were to be sold or closed prior to maturity. In order to manage this risk optimally, market risk in
non-trading portfolios is transferred to Global Markets or to separate books managed under the supervision of the local ALCO.
Once market risk has been consolidated in Global Markets or ALCO-managed books, the net exposure is typically managed through
the use of interest rate swaps within agreed upon limits.

Non-trading VAR also includes the impact of asset market volatility on the current investment portfolio of financial investments
including assets held on an available for sale (AFS) and held to maturity (HTM) basis. The main holdings of AFS securities are
held by Balance Sheet Management within GB&M. These positions which are originated in order to manage structural interest
rate and liquidity risk are treated as non-trading risk for the purpose of market risk management. The main holdings of AFS assets
include U.S. Treasuries and Government backed GNMA securities.

The following table summarizes non-trading VAR for the three months ended March 31, 2014, assuming a 99 percent confidence
level for a two-year observation period and a one-day "holding period":

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

March 31, December 31,
2014 Minimum Maximum Average 2013
(in millions)
Total Accrual VAR ....ccovvviiiieiieeeeeeeee e $ 63 $ 57 $ 100 $ 70 S 104

Trading Activities MSRs — Trading occurs in mortgage banking operations as a result of an economic hedging program intended
to offset changes in the value of mortgage servicing rights. Economic hedging may include, for example, forward contracts to sell
residential mortgages and derivative instruments used to protect the value of MSRs.

MSRs are assets that represent the present value of net servicing income (servicing fees, ancillary income, escrow and deposit
float, net of servicing costs). MSRs are separately recognized upon the sale of the underlying loans or at the time that servicing
rights are purchased. MSRs are subject to interest rate risk, in that their value will decline as a result of actual and expected
acceleration of prepayment of the underlying loans in a falling interest rate environment.

Interest rate risk is mitigated through an active hedging program that uses trading securities and derivative instruments to offset
changes in value of MSRs. Since the hedging program involves trading activity, risk is quantified and managed using a number
of risk assessment techniques.
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The following table reflects the modeling techniques, primarily rate shock analyses, used to monitor certain interest rate scenarios
for their impact on the economic value of net hedged MSRs:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Projected change in net market value of hedged MSRs portfolio (reflects projected rate
movements on April 1 and January 1):

Value of hedged MSRS POTTIOLI0 ....c..eovirieriiieieieietciete ettt e $ 205§ 227
Change resulting from an immediate 50 basis point decrease in the yield curve:
Change [imit (N0 WOTSE than)........ccceririiiriniirierieeeeet ettt (20) (20)
Calculated change in net market Value ...........cocovevienieienieiiiiiein et 4)) 2)

Change resulting from an immediate 50 basis point increase in the yield curve:
Change limit (n0 Worse than).............cooiiiiiii 8) (8)
Calculated change in net Market VAIUC ...........ccoovevieriieieniieiec e 2 3
Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point increase in the yield curve:
Change limit (10 WOrse than)...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiii e 12) (12)
Calculated change in net market Valtie ............ooooiiiiiiiiiii e 5 6

The economic value of the net hedged MSRs portfolio is monitored on a daily basis for interest rate sensitivity. If the economic
value declines by more than established limits for one day or one month, various levels of management review, intervention and/
or corrective actions are required.

The following table summarized the frequency distribution of the weekly economic value of the MSR asset during the three months
ended March 31, 2014. This includes the change in the market value of the MSR asset net of changes in the market value of the
underlying hedging positions used to hedge the asset. The changes in economic value are adjusted for changes in MSR valuation
assumptions that were made during the course of the year.

Below $(2) $0 $2 Over
Ranges of mortgage economic value from market risk-related activities $Q2) to $0 to $2 to $4 $4

(dollars are in millions)

Number of trading weeks market risk-related revenue was within
the stated raNge........ocvveeieeieeeeeee e e — 6 8 — —

Operational Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward operational risk since December 31, 2013.
Compliance Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward compliance risk since December 31, 2013.
Fiduciary Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward fiduciary risk since December 31, 2013.
Reputational Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward reputational risk since December 31, 2013.
Strategic Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward strategic risk since December 31, 2013.

Security and Fraud Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward security and fraud risk since December
31, 2013.

Model Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward model risk since December 31, 2013.

Pension Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward pension risk since December 31, 2013.

121



HSBC USA Inc.

CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES

The following tables summarize the quarter-to-date average daily balances of the principal components of assets, liabilities and
shareholders' equity together with their respective interest amounts and rates earned or paid, presented on a taxable equivalent
basis. Net interest margin is calculated by dividing annualized net interest income by the average interest earning assets from
which interest income is earned. Loan interest for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 included fees of $19 million,
$24 million, respectively.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
Average Average
Balance Interest Rate” Balance Interest Rate”
(dollars are in millions)
Assets
Interest bearing deposits With banks ...........cccoeveueirinecnninernnccreccrene $ 21,633 14 26% $ 17,383 § 11 26%
Securities purchased under resale agreements...........c.cceeeveevererereccnirrecnenenene 1,247 2 .61 1,910 3 .50
TTAAING ASSEES ... vveveuiieteniieiet ettt ettt ettt bbbttt benene 12,581 48 1.56 11,463 24 .83
SEOUIIIES ...ttt 56,110 211 1.53 62,445 233 1.52
Loans:
COMMETCIAL.....uiiiiiiiiiiiiicec ettt 49,467 287 2.36 43,311 273 2.56
Consumer:
Residential MOItZages ... ...ueueuerirueueririeieiirieieiirietee ettt 15,957 135 343 15,758 146 3.76
Home eqUity MOIZAZES ..........veeeveeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeesseee s eeeeereenanes 1,971 17 3.45 2,278 19 3.33
Credit CardS ......cuevevueieiiieieieieieieieieie ettt 698 17 10.10 771 18 9.25
Other CONSUMET ....c..eueiiiiiiiitirieieieetee ettt 555 8 5.12 655 8 5.39
TOtal CONSUMET.......vviiiiiieiieieieietetete ettt ettt bttt 19,181 177 3.73 19,462 191 3.99
TOtAl 10ANS.......ouiiiiiiieieiicieieicieetete ettt 68,048 464 2.74 62,773 464 3.00
OBRET ..ttt 3,560 10 1.19 3,223 10 1.37
Total interest earning assets.. 163,779 749 1.86% 159,197 745 1.90%
Allowance for credit 10SSES.......iviiirriirieierieciieieie et (591) (633)
Cash and due from banks...........cccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiecce e 960 1,126
OMRET ASSES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e et e et et e e e e eteeereeereeereeeaeeans 21,240 24,973
TOUAL ASSELS................eoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et n m m
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity - -
Deposits in domestic offices:
Savings deposits... . 13 A2% $ 44,563 19 18%
Other time dePOSIES ......c.eueueueueuiueieieieieieieieieieteteietete ettt senes 19,027 20 43 21,048 21 40
Deposits in foreign offices:
Foreign banks depOsits........c.ceirueiriririeieeneriet ettt 8,110 1 .05 7,685 1 .07
Other interest bearing dePOSItS........ccevverieirierieirirerieeeereeeeeeee e 5,437 1 .08 6,080 2 11
Total interest bearing dePOSItS ........covevveerrerieirenieieereeeeree e 75,576 35 19 79,376 43 22
ShOrt-term DOITOWINES ......eeviieiiriirieieiriereeter ettt 26,867 9 14 16,193 9 22
Long-term debt.......c.ceuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceiiccrecec s 22,815 170 3.02 22,075 167 3.07
Total interest bearing deposits and debt..........cocooeeeieneniininiinreeeee 125,258 214 .69 117,644 219 .76
TaX HADILIHES. . .c.vvviiieiiiicieiieccccccce e 506 12 9.77 494 16 12.69
Total interest bearing Habilities..........ccveevverieirineiiiree e 125,764 226 .73 118,138 235 .81
Net interest income/Interest rate spread 523 1.13% 510 1.09%
Noninterest bearing dePOSItS........ccerueirirrerieiirerieieterereeeteee e 30,177 31,115 -
Other HabIIIES. ......cvevviueiiiiiieiiicicitieiciecereeieete e 12,749 17,594
Total shareholders” EqUILY.......c..ceeerueiririeieirereeet e 16,698 17,816
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity......................ccocueveveeeevieneanannnns m m
Net interest margin on average €arning assetS.........cccevevveerrereererereneeeseneenens - 1.30% 1.30%
Net interest income to average total aSSEtS ........coeoeeererieerierieiinereieeseneeneas T 1.15% TL12%
)

Rates are calculated on amounts that have not been rounded to the nearest million.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Information required by this Item is included within Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations in the Risk Management section under the captions "Interest Rate Risk" and "Market Risk".

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We maintain a system of internal and disclosure controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by HSBC USA in the reports we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis. Our
Board of Directors, operating through its Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of independent outside directors, provides
oversight to our financial reporting process.

We conducted an evaluation, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end
of the period covered by this report so as to alert them in a timely fashion to material information required to be disclosed in reports
we file under the Exchange Act.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2014 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

PART II
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See “Litigation and Regulatory Matters” in Note 19, “Litigation and Regulatory Matters,” in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements beginning on page 71 for our legal proceedings disclosure, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 5. Other Information

Disclosures Pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act requires
disclosure of certain activities or transactions relating to Iran or to persons targeted by U.S. economic sanctions programs relating
to terrorism or the proliferation of weapons of mass destruction. Disclosure is required even if the activities are not prohibited by
U.S. law or if they are conducted outside the United States by non-U.S. affiliates in compliance with local laws and regulations.

In order to comply with this requirement, HSBC has requested relevant information from its affiliates globally. During the period
covered by this Form 10-Q, HSBC USA did not engage in any activities or transactions requiring disclosure pursuant to Section
13(r) other than those activities related to frozen accounts and transactions permitted under relevant U.S. sanction programs
described under “Frozen Accounts and Transactions” below. The following activities conducted by our non-U.S. affiliates are
disclosed in response to Section 13(r):

Loans in repayment Between 2001 and 2005, the Project and Export Finance (“PEF”) division of HSBC Group arranged or
participated in a portfolio of loans to Iranian energy companies and banks. All of these loans were guaranteed by European and
Asian export creditagencies, and they have varied maturity dates with final maturity in 2018. For those loans that remain outstanding,
the HSBC Group continues to seek repayment in accordance with its obligations to the supporting export credit agencies and, in
all cases, with appropriate regulatory approvals. Details of these loans follow.

The HSBC Group has 13 loans outstanding to an Iranian petrochemical and energy company. These loans are supported by the
official Export Credit Agencies of the following countries: the United Kingdom, France, Germany, Spain, The Netherlands, South
Korea and Japan. The HSBC Group continues to seek repayments from the company under the existing loans in accordance with
the original maturity profiles. All repayments made by the Iranian company have received a license or an authorization from
relevant authorities. Repayments have been received under a number of the loans in the first quarter of 2014.
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Bank Melli and Bank Saderat acted as sub-participants in three of the aforementioned loans. In the first quarter of 2014, the
repayments due to these banks under the loan agreements were paid into frozen accounts under licenses or authorizations from
relevant European governments.

In 2002, the HSBC Group provided a loan to Bank Tejarat with a guarantee from the Government of Iran to fund the construction
of a petrochemical plant undertaken by a U.K. contractor. This loan was supported by the U.K. Export Credit Agency and is
administered under license from the relevant European Government. A repayment was received in the first quarter of 2014. This
loan has now matured, but claims for non-payment are still being processed with the UK Export Credit Agency.

The HSBC Group also maintains sub-participations in loans provided by other international banks to Bank Tejarat and Bank Mellat
with guarantees from the Government of Iran. These sub-participations were supported by the Export Credit Agencies of Italy,
The Netherlands and Spain. In relation to Bank Mellat, HSBC Group has two sub-participations, both of which matured in the
first quarter of 2014. The repayments due under these facilities have not been been received from Bank Mellat in the first quarter
0f 2014 and claims for non-payment are being processed with the supporting Export Credit Agencies. In relation to Bank Tejarat,
HSBC has two sub-participations; one facility matured in the first quarter of 2014 and the second will mature in June 2014. The
payments due under the sub-participations were not received from Bank Tejarat during the first quarter of 2014, and claims are
being processed and settled by the relevant European Export Credit Agencies. Licenses and relevant authorizations have been
obtained from the competent authorities of the European Union in respect of the transactions.

Estimated gross revenue to the HSBC Group generated by these loans in repayment for the first quarter of 2014, which includes
interest and fees, was approximately $393,000. Estimated net profit for HSBC during the first quarter of 2014 was approximately
$256,000. While the HSBC Group intends to continue to seek repayment under the existing loans, it does not intend to extend any
new loans.

Legacy contractual obligations related to guarantees Between 1996 and 2007, the HSBC Group provided guarantees to a number
of its non-Iranian customers in Europe and the Middle East for various business activities in Iran. In a number of cases, the HSBC
Group issued counter indemnities in support of guarantees issued by Iranian banks as the Iranian beneficiaries of the guarantees
required that they be backed directly by Iranian banks. The Iranian banks to which the HSBC Group provided counter indemnities
included Bank Tejarat, Bank Melli, and the Bank of Industry and Mine.

The HSBC Group has worked with relevant regulatory authorities to obtain licenses where required and ensure compliance with
laws and regulations while seeking to cancel the guarantees and counter indemnities. None were canceled during the first quarter
of 2014 and approximately 20 remain outstanding.

There was no measurable gross revenue to the HSBC Group for the first quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group does not allocate direct
costs to fees and commissions and, therefore, has not disclosed a separate profits measure. The HSBC Group is seeking to cancel
all relevant guarantees and does not intend to provide any new guarantees involving Iran.

Other relationships with Iranian banks Activity related to U.S.-sanctioned Iranian banks not covered elsewhere in this disclosure
includes the following:

*  The HSBC Group maintains a frozen account in the U.K. for an Iranian-owned, U.K.-regulated financial institution. In
April 2007, the U.K. government issued a license to allow the HSBC Group to handle certain transactions (operational
payments and settlement of pre-sanction transactions) for this institution. In December 2013, the U.K. government issued
a new license allowing the HSBC Group to deposit certain check payments. There was some licensed activity in the first
quarter of 2014.

e The HSBC Group acts as the trustee and administrator for two pension schemes involving three employees of a U.S.-
sanctioned Iranian bank in Hong Kong. Under the rules of these schemes, the HSBC Group accepts contributions from
the Iranian bank each month and allocates the funds into the pension accounts of the three Iranian bank employees. The
HSBC Group runs and operates these pension schemes in accordance with Hong Kong laws and regulations. During the
first quarter of 2014, one of the two schemes was terminated and the only member and accrued benefits were transferred
into the other scheme. The HSBC Group continues to act as trustee and administrator for the remaining pension scheme.

* In 2010, the HSBC Group closed its representative office in Iran. The HSBC Group maintains a local account with an
Iranian bank in Tehran in order to facilitate residual activity related to the closure. The HSBC Group has been authorized
by the U.S. Government (and by relevant non-U.S. regulators) to make these types of payments in connection with the
liquidation and deregistration of the representative office in Tehran. In the first quarter of 2014, the HSBC Group initiated
a payment of approximately $55,000 to this account to settle taxation assessments as well as to pay outstanding and future
accounting, legal, and administrative related expenses associated with the closure.
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Estimated gross revenue to the HSBC Group in the first quarter of 2014 for all Iranian bank-related activity described in this
section, which includes fees and/or commissions, was approximately $147,000. The HSBC Group does not allocate direct costs
to fees and commissions and therefore has not disclosed a separate profits measure. The HSBC Group intends to continue to wind
down this Iranian bank-related activity and not enter into any new such activity.

Activity related to U.S. Executive Order 13224 The HSBC Group maintains a frozen personal account for an individual sanctioned
under Executive Order 13224, and by the U.K. and the U.N. Security Council. Activity on this account in the first quarter of 2014
was permitted by a license issued by the U.K. There was no measurable gross revenue or net profits generated to the HSBC Group
in the first quarter of 2014.

The HSBC Group undertook a review of an account held for a customer in the U.K. in the first quarter of 2014 and identified a
domestic currency payment in the second quarter of 2013 from an entity designated under Executive Order 13224 in 2003. The
HSBC Group is closing the account.

Activity related to U.S. Executive Order 13382 The HSBC Group held an account for a customer in France that was sanctioned
under Executive Order 13382 in the first quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group is closing the account. There was no measurable gross
revenue or net profits generated to the HSBC Group in the first quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group also maintains an account for
a customer in the U.K for whom the HSBC Group processed a payment received from the same sanctioned entity. The payment
related to an invoice raised prior to designation but was made five days after designation.

Other activity The HSBC Group holds a lease of branch premises in London which it entered into in 2005 and is due to expire in
2020. The landlord of the premises is owned by the Iranian government and is a specially designated national under U.S. sanctions
programs. Pursuant to the lease, the HSBC Group made payments of approximately $320,000 during 2013. The HSBC Group
made one payment of approximately $50,000 in the first quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group is considering all options available
under the lease. There was no gross revenue or net profit to the HSBC Group.

Frozen accounts and transactions The HSBC Group and HSBC Bank USA maintain several accounts that are frozen under relevant
sanctions programs and on which no activity, except as licensed of otherwise authorized, took place during the first quarter of
2014. In the first quarter of 2014, the HSBC Group and HSBC Bank USA also froze payments where required under relevant
sanctions programs. There was no gross revenue or net profit to the HSBC Group or HSBC Bank USA.
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Item 6.  Exhibits

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred
Stock Dividends.

31 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS  XBRL Instance Document"?

101.SCH xBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document?

101.CAL xBRrRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document"?
101.DEF xBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document "
101.LAB xBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document”

101.PRE xBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document'?

Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, includes the following financial information included in HSBC USA Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31,2012, formatted in eXentsible Business Reporting Language ("XBRL") interactive data files: (i) the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
December 31. 2012 and 2011, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (v) the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information shall be not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to liability under those sections.
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Index

Assets:
by business segment 44
consolidated average balances 122
fair value measurements 57
nonperforming 19, 24, 26, 103
trading 10, 83
Asset-backed commercial paper conduits 47
Asset-backed securities 11, 59, 69, 115
Balance sheet:
consolidated 5
consolidated average balances 122
review 80
Basel II 108
Basel 111 46, 108
Basis of reporting 79
Business:
consolidated performance review 76
Capital:
2014 funding strategy 110
common equity movements 108
consolidated statement of changes 7
regulatory capital 46
selected capital ratios 46, 77, 108, 119
Cash flow (consolidated) 8
Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements 74
Collateral — pledged assets 53
Collateralized debt obligations 69, 115
Commercial banking segment results (IFRSs) 45, 93
Compliance risk 116, 121
Controls and procedures 123
Credit card fees 87
Credit quality 98
Credit risk:
adjustment 55
component of fair value option 38
concentration 26, 105
exposure 116
management 116
related contingent features 35
related arrangements 49
Current environment 76
Deferred tax assets 91
Deposits 84, 107
Derivatives:
cash flow hedges 33
fair value hedges 32
notional value 36
trading and other 34
Equity:
consolidated statement of changes 7
ratios 46, 77, 108, 119

Equity securities available-for-sale 11
Estimates and assumptions 9
Executive overview 76
Fair value measurements:
assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis 58
assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a non-recurring basis 65
control over valuation process 113
financial instruments 57
hierarchy 55, 113
transfers into/out of level one and two 61
transfers into/out of level two and three 61
valuation techniques 67
Fiduciary risk 116, 121
Financial assets:
designated at fair value 37
reclassification under IFRSs 45, 79
Financial highlights metrics 76
Financial liabilities:
designated at fair value 37
fair value of financial liabilities 57
Forward looking statements 74
Funding 110
Gain on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives 38
Gains (losses) from securities 15, 88
Global Banking and Markets 45, 93
Geographic concentration of receivables 106
Goodwill 30
Guarantee arrangements 49
Impairment:
available-for-sale securities 14
credit losses 27, 86, 98
nonperforming loans 99, 103
impaired loans 19, 104
Income (loss) from financial instruments designated at fair value, net 37
Income tax expenses 3, 91
Intangible assets 29
Interest rate risk 116, 118
Internal control 123
Key performance indicators 76
Legal proceedings 123
Liabilities:
commitments, lines of credit 111
deposits 84, 107
financial liabilities designated at fair value 37
trading 10, 83
long-term debt 41, 57, 84, 107
short-term borrowings 41, 57, 84, 107
Liquidity and capital resources 107
Liquidity risk 116, 117
Litigation and regulatory matters 71
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Loans:
by category 17, 81
by charge-off (net) 27, 102
by delinquency 25, 101
criticized assets 24, 104
geographic concentration 106
held for sale 28
impaired 19, 23, 104
nonperforming 19, 24, 26, 103
overall review 80
purchases from HSBC Finance 42
risk concentration 26, 105
troubled debt restructures 19
Loan impairment charges — see Provision for credit losses
Loan-to-deposits ratio 77
Market risk 116, 119
Market turmoil:
exposures 119
impact on liquidity risk 107
Monoline insurers 15, 114
Mortgage lending products 17, 81
Mortgage servicing rights 29
Net interest income 85
New accounting pronouncements 73
Off balance sheet arrangements 111
Operating expenses 90
Operational risk 116, 121
Other revenue 86
Other segment results (IFRSs) 45, 96
Pension and other postretirement benefits 40
Performance, developments and trends 76
Pledged assets 53
Private banking segment results (IFRSs) 45, 95
Profit (loss) before tax:
by segment — IFRSs 45
consolidated 3
Provision for credit losses 86
Ratios:
capital 46, 108, 119
charge-off (net) 76
credit loss reserve related 98
delinquency 101
earnings to fixed charges — Exhibit 12
efficiency 76, 90, 91
Reconciliation of U.S. GAAP results to IFRSs 79
Refreshed loan-to-value 81
Regulation 46, 107, 123
Related party transactions 41

Reputational risk 116, 121
Results of operations 85

Retail banking and wealth management segment results (IFRSs) 45, 92

Risk elements in the loan portfolio 105
Risk management:
credit 116
compliance 116, 121
fiduciary 116, 121
interest rate 116, 118
liquidity 116, 117
market 116, 119
operational 116, 121
reputational 116, 121
strategic 116, 121
Securities:
fair value 11
impairment 14
maturity analysis 16
Segment results - IFRSs basis:
retail banking and wealth management 45, 92
commercial banking 45, 93
global banking and markets 45, 93
private banking 45, 95
other 45, 96
overall summary 44, 91
Selected financial data 76
Sensitivity:
projected net interest income 118
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity 7
Statement of changes in comprehensive income 4
Statement of income 3
Strategic risk 116, 121
Stress testing 107, 109
Table of contents 2
Tax expense 3, 91
Trading:
assets 10, 83
derivatives 10, 83
liabilities 10, 83
portfolios 10
Trading revenue (net) 87, 88
Troubled debt restructures 19, 104
Value at risk 119
Variable interest entities 47
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 7, 2014

HSBC USA INC.

By: /s GERARD MATTIA
Gerard Mattia
Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit Index
12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and
Preferred Stock Dividends.
31 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document"?
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document'-”
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document''-?)
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document''”
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document'*
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document'')

Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, includes the following financial information included in HSBC USA Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
three months ended March 31, 2014, formatted in eXentsible Business Reporting Language ("XBRL") interactive data files: (i) the Consolidated Statement
of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the three months ended March
31, 2014 and 2013, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2014 and December 31. 2013, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Shareholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, (v) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March
31,2014 and 2013, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information shall be not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to liability under those sections.
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HSBC USA INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Ratios excluding interest on deposits:

Income (10ss) from CONtINUING OPEIATIONS ......cveivrerireiereetertietesteeteereeseeseeseeseesseeseessesssesseessesseessesseessenns $ 104 §$ 183
TNCOME tAX EXPEIISE ...eeveeniieeiiieite ettt ettt ettt e b et st b e st e s bt e sab e sbe e e bt e bt e s bt e nbeesabeenbeeeaneens 149 125
Less: Undistributed eqUity CarMINgS........ccveevirierieriierierieriestesteesesieesesseesesseesesseessesssessesssessesssessesssessens — —

Fixed charges:

Interest on:

BOTTOWEd TUNAS ...ttt ettt et 9 9
LONGEITN AEDE ...ttt ettt et b bbb be sttt 170 167
OBNETS ...ttt ettt et ettt b et h et be et ne e eneen 12 16
One third of rents, net of iINCOME frOmM SUDIEASES .........ooveviiiieie e 7 9
Total fixed charges, excluding interest 0N dePOSILS.........ccereeririerieierieieee et 198 201
Earnings from continuing operations before taxes and fixed charges, net of undistributed equity
(S22 100 04PN 451 509
Ratio of earnings to fiXed ChArZES.......cciviiviiiiiiiiice et T 228 253
Total preferred stock dividend fAactor ................cooviiveioeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 30 3 30
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend factor..........c.ccoeoierieieiiiniiiininceeeeeee $ 228 $ 231

Ratio of earnings from continuing operations to combined fixed charges and preferred stock
QIVIAENAS ..ottt sttt ettt st sa e et a e ennene 1.98 2.20

Ratios including interest on deposits:

Total fixed charges, excluding interest 0n depPoSIts.........ceeerieruerienienieiieieieieiere et $ 198 $ 201
Add: TNLETESt ON AEPOSILS ....viuveutinieieiieiteteiteieet ettt sttt ettt et eb et be bt b s bt b st b b e e et et eeenees 35 43
Total fixed charges, including interest on dePOSILS .........ceeerieruirierienieiieieieieieeee e $ 233 § 244

Earnings from continuing operations before taxes and fixed charges, net of undistributed equity

CATTIIIIZS .-t teenteeteeute et teteete et estenteeaeeeueemeeeaeemeeseeemeeeaeemeees e et e eseeasees e et e ene e et en e e ebeenteeheeneeeneenteeneeteeneenteas $ 451 $ 509
Add: TNLETESt ON AEPOSILS ....veuveuienienieiieiieitet ettt sttt ettt eb et eb e s bt bt sbe st sb e bt e e et et eneenean 35 43
TOTAL et e e e e e et e e e e e e e ——aaaa e e e e e —————————ateeeeaeaeeaaeaaaas $ 486 $ 552
Ratio of earnings to fIXed CharZES........couevieieiiiiiriirer ettt 209 226
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend factor..........cccccecveeieviriiniiniinininicnineenccieene $ 228 § 231
Add: TNLETESt ON AEPOSILS ....veuveueenienieiieieitet ettt ettt ettt ettt et eb et e bt s bt bt e bt st bt be st e e et eteneenean 35 43
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend factor and interest on deposits...........c.cceeerueennen.

$ 263 § 274

Ratio of earnings from continuing operations to combined fixed charges and preferred stock
IVIAEIIAS ...ttt st sttt ettt 1.85 2.01

M Ppreferred stock dividends grossed up to their pretax equivalents.



EXHIBIT 31

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
I, Irene M. Dorner, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of HSBC USA Inc., certify that:
1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of HSBC USA Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 7, 2014

/s/ IRENE M. DORNER
Irene M. Dorner

President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board



Certification of Chief Financial Officer
I, Gerard Mattia, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of HSBC USA Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of HSBC USA Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in

the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 7, 2014

/s/ GERARD MATTIA

Gerard Mattia

Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the HSBC USA Inc. (the “Company”) quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

I, Irene M. Dorner, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of the Company, certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of HSBC USA Inc.

Date: May 7, 2014

/s/ IRENE M. DORNER
Irene M. Dorner

President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board



Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the HSBC USA Inc. (the “Company”) quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

I, Gerard Mattia, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and
2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results

of operations of HSBC USA Inc.

Date: May 7, 2014

/s/ GERARD MATTIA

Gerard Mattia

Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

These certifications accompany each Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to
the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by HSBC USA Inc. for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Signed originals of these written statements required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have been provided to
HSBC USA Inc. and will be retained by HSBC USA Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.
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